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Company profile

SVG Capital is a private equity investor and 
fund management business listed on the 
London Stock Exchange.

Our investment objective

SVG Capital’s investment objective is to achieve
capital appreciation by investing principally in
private equity funds that are managed or advised 
by Permira, a leading international private 
equity specialist1.

In addition, the Company invests in private 
equity funds that invest in Japan, North America, 
Asia and the life sciences sectors, and in unquoted 
and quoted businesses through specialist funds 
and co-investments alongside these funds.

To complement this investment objective and 
create capital and income for the Company, 
its fund management business structures, markets,
manages and advises products for investment in
private equity and in public equity using private
equity techniques.

Our businesses

Private equity investment

SVG Capital invests 
in a portfolio of
private equity funds, 
the majority of which 
are advised by Permira, 
a leading international
private equity specialist1.
Information on our investment portfolio is included on pages 14 to 25

Fund management

SVG Capital’s fund
management business,
SVG Advisers, structures,
markets, manages 
and advises products
for investment in
private and public
equity using private
equity techniques.

Welcome to SVG Capital plc

1 The majority of Permira’s investments will be in companies 
with significant European operations.
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Financial and operational highlights 2006

Fully diluted shareholders’ funds pence
(excluding the unaudited Directors’ valuation of SVG Advisers)

2002 445.8

2003 465.0

2004 558.2

2006 810.1

+21.3% to 810.1p

Fully diluted net asset value per share pence  
(including the unaudited Directors’ valuation of SVG Advisers)

2002 445.8

2003 465.0

2004 580.2

2005 691.8

2006 859.2

+24.2% to 859.2p

2005 667.8

Shareholders’ funds £000

2002 463,192

2003 547,069

2004 708,850

2005 902,357

2006 1,154,080

Price of ordinary shares pence

2002 379.0

2003 484.0

2004 579.0

2005 716.5

2006 834.5

+16.5% to 834.5p

Gross assets1 £000

2002 502,746

2003 621,381

2004 751,224

2005 945,346

2006 1,260,410

Notes:
1 Gross assets: Equity shareholders’ funds plus debt. Total debt of £106.3 million (2005: £43.0 million).

Capital changes:
2006: 2013 bonds fully converted into 10,208,327 ordinary shares
2005: 6,000,000 ordinary shares issued at 600p per share
2004: 2011 bonds fully converted into 9,874,679 ordinary shares
2003: Issue of 10,239,100 ordinary shares and conversion of £0.6m nominal 2011 bonds into 150,375 ordinary shares
2000: ‘B’ bonds fully converted into 3,299,380 ordinary shares
1999: Buy-back of 3,204,171 ordinary shares
1998: ‘A’ bonds fully converted into 5,683,236 ordinary shares

“This strong set of results is further testament 
to the success of SVG Capital’s investment
strategy and the impressive performance of 
our fund management business, SVG Advisers.
Portfolio companies are reaping the benefits 
of strategic and operational changes made by
our private equity managers and their earnings
are increasing. At the same time, SVG Advisers
has continued its robust development with
significant revenue growth, further increasing
its importance to the Company.”
Nicholas Ferguson
Chairman
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Performance record Five year overview
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FTSE World IndexSVG Capital (share price) SVG Capital (NAV) FTSE All-Share
Source: Datastream

Outperformance per annum Compound annual growth per annum

+9.9% p.a. +15.1% p.a.
Outperformance of the FTSE All-Share (capital only) since  
inception in 1996.

Compound annual growth in net asset value per share since 
listing in 1996 (including the unaudited Directors’ valuation 
of SVG Advisers).

2005 

667.8

2006 

810.1

2005 

691.0

2006 

859.22006 815.5

+21.3% to 810.1p
Excluding the unaudited Directors’ valuation of SVG Advisers

+24.2% to 859.2p
Including the unaudited Directors’ valuation of SVG Advisers

Fully diluted Shareholders’ funds pence per shareFully diluted net assets per share pence
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04 Portfolio overview

20 largest underlying companies
By value at 31 December 2006

Company Cost £000s Value £000s

Freescale 146,912
US

95,800Ferretti Group 21,130
Italy

79,013BorsodChem 79,013
Hungary

61,215SEAT Pagine Gialle 28,245
Italy

47,409TDC 48,105
Denmark

43,927SBS Broadcasting 31,968
The Netherlands

42,875Gala Coral Group 42,886
UK

39,833AA 4,409
UK

35,777iglo Birds Eye 35,777
UK

35,158Parkway Holdings 18,581
Singapore

30,389Cortefiel 15,800
Spain

26,091Intelsat 436
Bermuda

22,162Maxeda (Vendex) 1,192
The Netherlands

21,352Jet Aviation 21,779
Switzerland

19,826Rodenstock 12
Germany

19,740Aearo Technologies 20,259
US

18,829debitel 361
Germany

18,600DinoSol Supermercados 10,496
Spain

17,648New Look 599
UK

146,912

14,335Strides Arcolab 3,235
India

The 20 largest underlying companies represent 80% of the portfolio.
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New additions to our portfolio
At 31 December 2006

Company Cost £000s Overview

iglo Birds Eye 00.000
UK

iglo Birds Eye is a leading manufacturer of frozen
foods in Europe, operating mainly in the UK under
the Birds Eye brand and in Germany and Austria
under the iglo brand. The company’s main 
products include fish, vegetable and ready meals, 
in addition to iconic products such as fish fingers
and Schlemmer Filets.

£35.8m

Freescale 00.000
US

Freescale is a global leader in the design and
manufacture of embedded semiconductors for
wireless, networking, automotive, consumer and
industrial markets. Based in Texas, Freescale is the
third largest broadline semiconductor company in 
the US and the ninth largest in the world. Historically,
Freescale was part of Motorola’s semiconductor
business and was spun out of Motorola to be 
an independent public entity in 2004.

£146.9m

BorsodChem 00.000
Hungary

BorsodChem is a leading European chemical
company focusing on isocyanates and PVC.
Isocyanates are the key building blocks for PU foams
which are used in applications such as furniture,
bedding, construction, automotive interiors,
coatings and adhesives.

£79.0m

Realisations during 2006
By value at 31 December 2006

Company

Ferretti(iii)
(partial realisation)

Travelodge 

Grandi Navi Veloci(iv)

Marazzi
(partial realisation)

Rodenstock(v)

Hogg Robinson
(partial realisation)

EEMS
(partial realisation)

Gross uplift £000s

57,804

46,113

13,380

4,675

13,665

4,002

1,787

Realisation value(i)/31 December valuation 2005(ii) £000s

(i) including Permira feeder vehicles
(ii) attributable December 2005 value
(iii) distributed in March 2007
(iv) distributed in January 2007 and not including recapitalisation proceeds
(v) distributed in April 2007 and including proceeds in escrow

86,267

28,463

81,047

34,934

19,826

          6,161

23,302

9,922

16,192

12,190

21,0605,470

16,385

   5,470

3,683

™
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Including the unaudited Directors’ valuation of 
SVG Advisers, over the 12 months fully diluted 
net assets per share increased by 24.2% to 
859.2p per share, with fully diluted Shareholders’
funds1 increasing by 21.3% to 810.1p per share.

Shareholders’ funds do not take full account of 
the underlying value of SVG Advisers, based on
its expanding and recurring income streams and
assets under management. As we have previously
highlighted to shareholders, SVG Advisers has
become a valuable asset for SVG Capital and the
Board has therefore decided to report two figures;
the first, net asset value, includes the unaudited
Directors’ valuation of SVG Advisers; and the
second, Shareholders’ funds, is in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting practice.

Private equity portfolio performance

The performance of the investment portfolio over
the year has been driven by a mixture of material
valuation uplifts and significant realisations. Many
portfolio companies are beginning to reap the
benefits of strategic and operational changes made
by our private equity managers and we are seeing
increases in portfolio company earnings.

In addition, the private equity portfolio has
continued to benefit from high levels of distributions
which totalled £307.5 million2 for the 12 months,
comfortably ahead of 2005. Since listing in 1996,
SVG Capital’s average uplift on realisations to previous
valuation has been 44% (excluding recapitalisations)
and a net multiple of 2.2x original investment cost.

I am pleased to report
another strong set of
results, both in terms 
of the performance 
of our investment
portfolio and our fund
management business,
SVG Advisers.

1 Shareholders’ funds in this context refers to audited 
consolidated net asset value per share.

2 Including £18.0 million of income.
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SVG Advisers

SVG Advisers has continued to build on its
impressive performance and ended the year 
with funds and commitments under management
of u3.3 billion and external fee revenues of 
£20.3 million, an increase of 91% on 2005. 
The company has become a valuable asset for 
SVG Capital. Accordingly, the Directors have placed
an unaudited IPEVC valuation of £72.3 million
(49.1p per share (fully diluted)) on the business.
More information on SVG Advisers’ operations is
contained in the Chief Executive’s review overleaf.

New commitments and investments

During the year, the Company made several new
investment commitments. In the June 2006 interim
accounts we announced our commitments of
u2.8 billion to Permira IV and US$50 million to 
SV Life Sciences Fund IV. Both of these funds have
now held a final close, with Permira IV raising
u11 billion and SV International Life Sciences 
Fund IV raising US$550 million.

In addition to these, SVG Capital has agreed to
invest up to u35.0 million in a Collateralised Loan
Obligations (“CLO”) fund. The fund will be
managed by SVG Advisers and Key Capital, 
and is seeking to raise approximately u100 million 
of commitments. 

Borrowing policy

As announced in the Interim Report, the Board
believes that it is in shareholders’ best interests 
to enhance returns through the sensible use of
borrowing, and that the desired level of debt for the
Company should be approximately 20%, over time.
Accordingly, during the year SVG Capital increased
its credit facility to b600.0 million (£404.3 million)
and issued US$208.0 million (£107.3 million) of
unsecured Private Placement Notes.

In line with SVG Capital’s borrowing policy and 
to take advantage of the relatively low interest 
rate environment, it is currently intended that the
Company issue a further b100.0 million of 
Private Placement Notes in the next 12 months.

Board

The Board worked well together during the course
of 2006 and a full review of the Board’s activities can
be found in the Directors’ Report in the Annual
Report and Accounts.

Since the year-end, the Company has appointed
Gary Steinberg as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 15 March 2007.

Gary Steinberg, aged 54, is currently working as an
investment consultant. Prior to this, Gary was the
Chief Investment Officer of The Wellcome Trust and
the Chief Executive of BP Investment Management,
responsible for managing investment portfolios of
£11 billion and £12 billion respectively. Gary has
also held senior investment management positions
with Capital House Investment Management and
Universities Superannuation Scheme.

Gary Steinberg will bring valuable experience to the
Board, and on behalf of the Directors, I welcome
him. His election as a Director of the Company will
be proposed at the 2007 Annual General Meeting.

Dividend

The Company’s investment objective is one of
capital growth and it is anticipated that returns 
for shareholders will derive primarily from capital
gains. During the 12 months, the Company
received approximately £18.0 million of income
from its private equity portfolio, primarily a result 
of recapitalisations during the year. Accordingly, 
in order to maintain Investment Trust status, 
the Board is recommending that the Company 
should declare a dividend of 7.5p per share.

9.9% p.a.
outperformance of
FTSE All-Share (capital
only) since inception
(including the unaudited
Directors’ valuation 
of SVG Advisers)

24.2%
growth in fully diluted
net asset value 
per share to 859.2p
(including the unaudited
Directors’ valuation of
SVG Advisers)
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Circular to shareholders

We will be posting a Circular to shareholders 
seeking shareholder approval at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting for:

• A proposed change in the Company’s long-term
incentive plan, following a comprehensive review
of all aspects of the Company’s remuneration policy.

• To change the Company’s Articles of Association,
including to:

– Allow the Company to take advantage of 
the new electronic communications provisions
contained in the Companies Act 2006.

– Change the exemption to the US Investment
Company Act of 1940 that the Company relies
on. The new exemption will provide increased
flexibility to offer securities to US persons.

• Amendment of investment objective:
The Company will be seeking shareholder
approval to amend its investment objective to
allow for investment in other private equity related
assets (such as Collateralised Loan Obligations),
and other alternative asset classes. Accordingly, 
the proposed new investment objective is:

“SVG Capital’s investment objective is to achieve
capital appreciation by investing principally in
private equity funds that are managed or 
advised by Permira, a leading international 
private equity specialist.

“In addition, the Company invests in private
equity funds that invest in Japan, North America,
Asia and the life sciences sectors, and in unquoted
and quoted businesses through specialist funds
and co-investments alongside these funds. 
The Company may also invest in other private
equity related assets and alternative asset classes.

“To complement this investment objective and
create capital and income for the Company, 
its fund management business structures, markets,
manages and advises products for investment 
in private equity, private equity related assets,
alternative asset classes and in public equity 
using private equity techniques.”

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at 
12 noon on Thursday 10 May 2007 at 111 Strand,
London, WC2R 0AG, and, as in previous years, 
it will include a presentation on the activities of 
the Company.

Market commentary

The results for the 12 months were strong and 
there were no material write-downs. Cash-flow
remains robust across our investments. Various
commentators have suggested that the high returns
from private equity are simply due to the use of
leverage. While Permira and our other managers 
use and benefit from leverage, which is an
important tool, this is not the principal driver 
of our returns. Rather, the principal returns have 
come from investing in companies where marked
improvements have been made in the operations
and margins; or where they have increased
concentration on growth markets, and often both.

Our managers continue to see a satisfactory flow 
of new deals. However, the signs that we are in 
the second part of an ‘up-cycle’ are increasing.
Multiples paid are rising and so are interest rates 
and the spreads between these two are therefore
narrowing. The key to the timing of any market
slow down will most likely be the debt markets.
Debt continues to be widely available on historically
attractive terms. So far these markets have proved
resistant to recent economic and political problems.
Whether this will continue in the face of either
increasing inflation or a specific market reverse
remains to be seen. For the time being, the sensible
approach is to be cautious and not to overpay and
this is the approach that Permira and our other
managers are taking.

Nicholas Ferguson
Chairman
5 April 2007

O
verview
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In 2006 the team raised b1.4 billion, taking our
funds and commitments under management to
b3.3 billion at the year-end. Of the b1.4 billion 
of new capital raised, b500 million was raised 
for SVG Diamond II, a structured fund of funds
comprising 65% debt and 35% equity; a further
b155 million was raised for Schroder Private Equity
Fund of Funds III, taking the total fund size to 
b422 million; b651 million was raised for feeder
funds investing in Permira IV; and b60 million 
for two public equity investment vehicles.

Outlook

Performance across our portfolio and within our
fund management business has been impressive.
The operating environment for the private equity
portfolio companies has remained favourable, with
many companies reporting improved earnings, and
the portfolio valuation has benefited from material
write-ups and several realisations. Deal-flow across
the various markets is healthy, although current
prices and leverage levels argue for caution. 
During 2006, the exit environment was buoyant
with 29 full or partial realisations in the portfolio.
Clearly, the level of future realisations will be
dependent, in part, on market conditions.

Since its establishment in 2001, SVG Advisers has
grown significantly and now has a team of over 
55 people focused on providing intelligent solutions
for investing in private equity or public equity using
private equity techniques. 2007 is set to be yet
another busy year at SVG Advisers, with two new
private equity funds of funds and one new public
equity fund expected to be launched in the first half.

Andrew Williams 
Chief Executive Officer – SVG Advisers Limited
5 April 2007

We are pleased with the performance of our
investment portfolio over the year and feel confident
that the Company is well placed to capitalise on
future investment opportunities that have the
potential to yield strong net asset growth in the
medium to long term.

Cash balances and uncalled commitments

The private equity portfolio continues to be highly
cash generative, with the Company reporting
£307.5 million3 of distributions in the year, which
compares to calls paid of £297.0 million. Therefore,
the Company had relatively high cash balances of
£284.44 million at the year-end. 

Since the year-end, the Company has received 
a further £98.6 million5 of distributions and paid 
calls of £196.9 million6 and at 9 March 2007 had
effective cash balances of £185.9 million. 

In order to mitigate the impact of cash-drag on our
performance, the Company has always pursued a
strategy of over-commitment, and at 9 March 2007
had uncalled commitments of £1.6 billion, or 142%
of Shareholders’ funds. In line with our investment
objective, the bulk of these uncalled commitments
are to Permira IV, which is currently 24% committed
and 19% called. As these uncalled commitments are
drawn down, we expect the Company to move into
a leveraged position.

SVG Advisers

The strong performance of SVG Capital’s fund
management business, SVG Advisers, continued into
the latter half of 2006 with the business reporting
growth in external fees of 91% to £20.3 million
(2005: £10.6 million). Including fees paid by 
SVG Capital to SVG Advisers total fees earned 
by the operating subsidiaries were £24.3 million,
contributing £8.2 million to the Group’s profit
before tax in 2006.

The majority of SVG Advisers’ fee income is derived
from stable long-term management fees from
investment vehicles whose legal lives ranges from 
10 to 15 years and the business has become a
valuable asset for SVG Capital. Accordingly, the
Directors have placed an unaudited IPEVC valuation
of £72.3 million (49.1p per share (fully diluted)) 
on SVG Advisers.

O
verview

3 Including £18.0 million of income.
4 Not including SVG Advisers. Group cash balances were

£295.5 million at 31 December 2006.
5 Including £3.1 million of income.
6 Including £184.5 million payable to Permira IV on 22 March 2007.

Performance across our
portfolio and within our
fund management business
has been impressive.
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Freescale
Freescale is a global leader in
the design and manufacture
of embedded semiconductors
for wireless, networking,
automotive, consumer and
industrial markets. Based in
Texas, Freescale is the third
largest broadline semiconductor
company in the US and the
ninth largest in the world.
Historically, Freescale was part
of Motorola’s semiconductor
business and was spun out of
Motorola to be an independent
public entity in 2004.
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12 Business review

Introduction

SVG Capital is a private equity investor and fund
management business.

Investment objective

The investment objective is to achieve capital
appreciation by investing principally in private
equity funds that are managed or advised by Permira,
a leading international private equity specialist.

In addition, the Company invests in private equity
funds that invest in Japan, North America, Asia and
the life sciences sectors, and in unquoted and quoted
businesses through specialist funds and co-investments
alongside these funds.

To complement this investment objective and 
create capital and income for the Company, its fund
management business, structures, markets, manages
and advises products for investment in private equity
and in public equity using private equity techniques.

Strategy

Investing in international private equity

The Company’s core investment focus is on international
private equity and within that, its primary focus is 
on Europe and to a lesser extent Japan.

Majority of the portfolio is focused

Within these two markets, the Company’s
investments are focused on two, highly rated,
managers, Permira and MKS Advisers, whose funds
represented 87.7% of SVG Capital’s investment
portfolio at 31 December 2006.

Diversification 

The remainder of the Company’s portfolio is invested
in or committed to funds investing in North America,
Asia and the life sciences sectors and in unquoted
and quoted businesses through specialist funds and
co-investments alongside these funds.

Building a successful fund management business

SVG Capital’s fund management business, 
SVG Advisers, was established in 2001 with the
strategy of providing intelligent solutions for 
mid-sized institutions and high-net-worth investors
for investing in private equity or public equity using
private equity techniques. Funds and commitments
under management now stand at over b3.3 billion
and the team currently manage five diversified
private equity fund of funds, five single manager
funds (all investing in Permira Funds) and four 
funds investing in public equities using private
equity techniques.

The Business review provides
shareholders with an
overview of SVG Capital’s:
Investment objective
Strategy
Key Performance Indicators
Marketplace
Financial review
Private equity portfolio
review
20 largest underlying
companies
SVG Advisers
Risks and risk management
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Key Performance Indicators

The Group’s Key Performance Indicators are:

• Shareholder total return

• Net asset growth

• Long-term net IRRs of the investment portfolio 
of underlying funds

Marketplace

In the wider private equity market, 2006 looks 
set to be a record year in terms of fundraising with
over US$340 billion reported to have been raised 
for the asset class. This may be cyclical. A number 
of major groups have been fundraising in the last
two years and may not be fundraising again until
2009/10. High levels of fundraising is, in itself, 
not a bad thing – much of the money raised 
over the last two years has gone into the hands 
of experienced managers. A very substantial 
amount of new money raised for private equity 
can be accounted for by a handful of firms, 
with the top 15 firms accounting for roughly 
51% of the money raised, but only 12% of number
of funds raised. What is more of a concern is if high
investor demand continues and less experienced
managers are able to raise too much money. 
We do not believe that has happened yet. 
What we have witnessed in Europe is a focus on
quality managers, rather than a general boom.

On the other side of the equation, money is being
invested at a fast rate, with the global value of 
deals done in 2006 reaching US$720 billion. It is
important to note, that whilst private equity has
become a mainstream asset class and represents 
an increasing part of global M&A, it is still far 
from the dominant source of capital, representing
only approximately 2% of western stock market
capitalisation and therefore there is still significant
scope for growth. That said, auctions are
competitive, multiples paid are rising, as are interest
rates, and spreads between the two are therefore
narrowing. The increases in prices have largely 
been driven by high levels of debt finance available.
Here, there has been a systemic change in the
banking market, as lending criteria has moved 
up to incorporate larger levels of debt, which are
then typically widely syndicated. For the time being,
the sensible approach is to be cautious and not 
to overpay and this is the approach that Permira
and our other managers are taking.

Financial review

Including the unaudited Directors’ valuation 
of SVG Advisers, over the 12 months fully diluted
net assets per share increased by 24.2% to 
859.2p per share, with fully diluted Shareholders’
funds7 increasing by 21.3% to 810.1p per share. 

Shareholders’ funds do not take full account 
of the underlying value of SVG Advisers, based on 
its expanding and recurring income streams and
assets under management. It is for this reason 
that the Directors have announced fully diluted 
net assets per share of 859.2p, which includes 
the incremental unaudited Directors’ valuation of 
SVG Advisers of 49.1p per share (fully diluted). 

SVG Capital has an over-commitment strategy 
to private equity funds in general and Permira IV 
in particular, to which the Company committed 
12.8 billion during the year (both directly and
through various feeder vehicles). In order to facilitate
this strategy and take advantage of the relatively
benign interest rates environment, the Company
raised additional finance in July 2006 with the 
issue of £107.3 million of Senior Notes. This was
complemented by also increasing our available loan
facility from 1285.0 million to 1600.0 million during
the year. Largely as a result of the Note issuance, 
the cash and cash equivalents of the Company 
rose from £205.0 million at the start of the year to
£284.4 million at the year-end. The most significant
cash movements during the year related to calls 
and distributions in respect of the private equity
portfolio, which are discussed in more detail 
in the private equity portfolio review overleaf.

In line with SVG Capital’s borrowing policy and 
to take advantage of the relatively low interest 
rate environment, it is currently intended for the
Company to issue a further 1100.0 million of 
Private Placement Notes in the next 12 months.

7 Shareholders’ funds in this context refers to audited 
consolidated net asset value per share.
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Private equity portfolio review

Overview

A stable operating environment, increased earnings
and several material realisations have resulted in
total gains, including income, on the opening
private equity portfolio valuation of £208.9 million
over the year.

Overall, the performance of the portfolio has been
strong with a mixture of material valuation uplifts and
significant realisations driving growth. Many portfolio
companies are beginning to reap the benefits of
strategic and operational changes made by our
private equity managers and we are seeing increases
in portfolio company earnings. In particular, the AA
and Maxeda have reported increased earnings and
have been written up.

The portfolio is very cash generative with
distributions for the year totalling £307.5 million8,
comfortably ahead of total distributions for 2005.
The vast majority of these distributions were from
the full or partial realisations of portfolio companies.
This high level of distributions underlines the 
cash generative nature of the portfolio which 
has continued into 2007 with £98.6 million9

of distributions received since the year-end. 
Since listing in 1996, SVG Capital’s average uplift 
on realisations to previous valuation has been 
44% (excluding recapitalisations) and a net 
multiple of 2.2x original investment cost.

The most material change in the portfolio’s 
valuation basis is the decrease of the percentage 
valued on a quoted basis, which now represents
15% of the portfolio. With the recent new deal-flow,
the portfolio’s weighting to companies valued on 
a cost basis has risen to 34%, whilst the portfolio’s
exposure to companies valued on an earnings 
basis10 has remained broadly unchanged at 38%.
The percentage of the portfolio valued on a 
third-party basis increased to 13%, primarily due 
to the sales of Ferretti and Rodenstock, which did
not complete until 2007.

The portfolio’s largest sector exposure is to
Computer, electronics and communications 
(26%), which is predominantly a result of the 
new investment in Freescale Semiconductors. 
The remainder of the portfolio is broadly split
between Leisure (17%), Retail (12%) and 
Consumer (11%). Medical and health, Chemicals
and Other services each represented 8% of 
the portfolio, which also has smaller exposures 
to Media, Industrial products/services and 
Other manufacturers.

Geographically, the portfolio is well diversified, 
with 37% of the companies operating in 
Continental Europe, 32% globally and 17% in the 
UK. The remainder of the portfolio is split between 
the Far East and North America representing 8% 
and 6% respectively.

The weighted average discounted earnings multiple
rose over the 12 months to 7.5, although much of 
this was due to changes in valuation bases within 
the portfolio rather than significant like-for-like
increases. The average composite discount applied
to companies valued on an earnings basis was 27%.

The number of portfolio companies decreased from
125 to 120, with the 20 largest representing 80% of 
the portfolio11. As mentioned in the interim report, 
over time we would expect SVG Capital’s portfolio
of companies to decrease to approximately 
60-80 as the older private equity funds in the
portfolio realise their remaining holdings.

Foreign exchange continues to have a negative
impact on the portfolio’s valuation, primarily 
because of the 14% weakening of the US dollar
against sterling, as well as the euro depreciating 
by almost 2%.

Portfolio changes

The two largest portfolio movements during the
year were a result of the full and partial realisations
of Travelodge and Ferretti, together adding 
£83.9 million (57.0p per share) to the value of 
the portfolio (net of carried interest provision).

As reported in the interim accounts, Travelodge was
sold to Dubai International Capital in August 2006.
The value of this sale for SVG Capital was £81.0 million,
representing a net uplift of £37.1 million (25.2p per
share) to the December 2005 valuation.
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2.2x
net multiple to 
original investment 
cost since inception

44%
uplift on realisations 
to previous valuation
since inception

8 Including income of £18.0 million.
9 Including income of £3.1 million.
10Valuations based on earnings are predominantly calculated at an

appropriate multiple of EBITDA, or in some cases EBITA or EBIT.
11 Gross investment portfolio of £1,043.6 million.
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Uplifts in valuation £’000

In October, funds advised by Permira agreed 
to sell the majority of their holding in the high
performance luxury motoryacht manufacturer,
Ferretti. The value of the partial realisation for 
SVG Capital is approximately £86.3 million and 
SVG Capital’s remaining holding in Ferretti is valued
at £9.5 million. This, together with the value of the
part-disposal, represents an approximate net uplift
(after a provision for carried interest) of £46.8 million
(31.8p per share) to the December 2005 valuation.
The partial realisation of Ferretti did not complete
until the first quarter of 2007, hence the company 
is valued on a third-party basis at December 2006.

Funds advised by Permira announced in December
that they had agreed to sell their holding in
Rodenstock, the leading manufacturer of spectacles.
The value of this realisation for SVG Capital is 
£19.8 million, an approximate net uplift (after 
a provision for carried interest) of £10.9 million 
(7.4p per share) to the December 2005 valuation 
of Rodenstock. The sale of Rodenstock did not
complete until the end of the first quarter of 2007
and the company is valued on a third-party basis
at December 2006.

In addition to the above, there were several other
smaller full and partial realisations, including Grandi
Navi Veloci, Marazzi, Hogg Robinson and EEMS
together adding £22.4 million (15.2p per share) to
the portfolio valuation at 31 December 2006.

With regards to the remainder of the portfolio and
ignoring share price movements in quoted portfolio
companies, the key material uplifts during the year
have been driven by a combination of improved
operating performance and companies moving
from a cost to an earnings valuation for the first
time. Two of the largest movements, the AA and
Maxeda, underwent recapitalisations during the
year, which together with improved operating
performance and increases in earnings have 
resulted in valuation uplifts.

The AA is the UK’s largest roadside recovery 
business and one of the UK’s leading insurance
brokers. As highlighted in the interim report, 
the AA has undergone a series of operational
improvements which have led to an increase in
earnings. In the first half of the year, the company
underwent a recapitalisation, returning approximately
80% of cost to investors and taking total proceeds
back to investors, to date, to 1.1x cost. At 
31 December 2006, SVG Capital’s holding in the 
AA was valued at £39.8 million, which together 
with the proceeds of the recapitalisation, represents
an uplift of £33.1 million (22.4p per share) to the
December 2005 valuation.

Cortefiel

14,723
30,389 1,137

16,803

Maxeda

16,609
10,609†22,162

16,161

AA

33,063
27,378†39,833

34,148

SBS

11,849
43,927

32,078

New Look

9,572
18,83217,648

26,908

DinoSol

9,121
11,977†18,600

21,456

Takko

7,652
11,594

3,942

Intelsat

6,397

*including Permira feeder vehicles
**gross of carried interest provision

†including proceeds not yet distributed

26,091
19,694

Valuation 31 December 2006**

Valuation 31 December 2005** Change in 12 months

Proceeds in 12 months*

Key realisations £’000

31 December 
Realisation 2005 Attributable

value valuation cost
Company £’000(i) £’000(ii) £’000(iii)

Ferretti (distributed in March 2007) 86,267 28,463 19,035

Travelodge 81,047 34,934 31,973

Grandi Navi Veloci 23,302(iv) 9,922 8,188

Marazzi 21,060 16,385 6,238

Rodenstock (distributed in April 2007) 19,826(v) 6,161 12

Hogg Robinson 16,192 12,190 7,829

EEMS 5,470 3,683 413

(i) including Permira feeder vehicles
(ii) attributable December 2005 value
(iii) attributable December 2005 cost
(iv) distributed in January 2007 and not including recapitalisation proceeds
(v) including proceeds in escrow
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Maxeda, the largest non-food retailer in the Benelux
region, was acquired by funds advised by Permira in
September 2004. Since its acquisition, the company
has undergone significant management change and
has improved its operating performance and cash
generation. In the first half of the year, the company
successfully completed a recapitalisation returning
approximately 46% of cost to investors and
bringing total proceeds back to investors, to date, 
to 1.2x cost. At 31 December 2006, the company
was valued at £22.2 million, which together with
the proceeds of the recapitalisation, represents a
£16.2 million (11.0p per share) uplift to the
December 2005 valuation.

Funds advised by Permira backed the public-to-private
of Spain’s second largest specialist clothing retailer,
Cortefiel, in 2005. Since acquisition, the company
has undergone a series of management, strategic
and operational changes which have resulted in
improved operating performance. At 31 December
2006, Cortefiel was valued on an earnings basis 
for the first time at £30.4 million, an uplift of 
£14.7 million (10.0p per share) to the December
2005 cost valuation.

SBS Broadcasting, a leading pan-European
commercial television and radio broadcasting
company, has been written up on an earnings basis
for the first time. Funds advised by Permira acquired
SBS Broadcasting in October 2005. Since its
acquisition, the company has reported strong
organic growth, further fuelled by new channel
launches and selective complementary acquisitions.
At 31 December 2006, SBS Broadcasting was
valued on an earnings basis for the first time at
£43.9 million, an uplift of £11.8 million (8.0p per
share) to the December 2005 cost valuation.

In addition, there have been some smaller 
write-ups during the year, namely New Look,
DinoSol, Takko and Intelsat together adding 
£32.7 million (22.2p per share) to the portfolio
valuation at 31 December 2006. Takko has been
written up from 25% to 75% of cost on the 
back of improved operational performance.

The only mark-down of note is LaOX, a Japanese
home electronics appliance retailer, whose share
price fell by 50%, resulting in a £7.5 million 
(5.1p per share) mark down.
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Valuation analysis by value

31 December 31 December
2006 2005

% %

1 Earnings12 36 36

2 Cost 34 20

3 Quoted 15 35

4 Third-party 13 7

5 Written down – earnings 2 2

1

2

5

3

4

Geographical analysis by value

31 December 31 December
2006 2005

% %

1 Continental Europe 37 36

2 Multinational 32 21

3 UK 17 26

4 Far East/Asia Pacific 8 10

5 North America 6 7

1

2

3

4
5

Sector analysis by value

31 December 31 December
2006 2005

% %

1 Computer/electronics 
and communications 26 25

2 Leisure 17 19

3 Retail 12 16 16

4 Consumer 11 7

5 Chemicals 8 1

6 Medical/health 8 11

7 Other services 8 10

8 Media 6 5

9 Industrial products/services 3 5

10 Other manufacturing 1 1

1
8

2

34

5

6

7 109

SVG Capital Group’s return on its holdings of its private equity funds, including
Permira feeder vehicles, is summarised below:

Return on holdings

Year to Year to
31 December 31 December 

2006 2005
£ millions £ millions

Opening valuation 674.1 714.1

Calls payable 297.0 89.1

Distributions receivable (307.5)* (285.8)**

663.6 517.4

Return on portfolio 234.3* 151.8**

(Less)/plus FX movement (25.4) 4.9

208.9 156.7

Closing portfolio 872.5 674.1

*Including £18.0 million of income. **Including £17.7 million of income.
12 Valuations based on earnings are predominantly calculated 

at an appropriate multiple of EBITDA, or in some cases EBITA 
or EBIT.
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Valuation basis

Much as at the interim stage, the largest shift 
in the portfolio’s valuation basis was the increase 
in its weighting to companies valued on a cost 
basis and decrease in the percentage valued on 
a quoted basis. 

The portfolio’s exposure to companies valued on 
an earnings basis has remained unchanged, despite
a number of realisations during the year. This is 
a reflection of a number of companies such as
Cortefiel, SBS Broadcasting and Jet Aviation moving
from cost to an earnings valuation for the first time. 

The increase in the portfolio’s weighting to
companies valued on a third-party basis is a result 
of the realisations of Ferretti and Rodenstock, 
neither of which completed until 2007.

The weighted average discounted earnings multiple
has increased to 7.5, predominantly driven by some
of the new investments, particularly those in sectors
with higher average multiples, moving from a cost
to an earnings basis for the first time. The weighted
average composite discount applied to companies
valued on an earnings basis decreased to 27%,
primarily as a result of the portfolio becoming more
focused on larger companies which are viewed as
‘market leaders’ in their respective sectors. The result
of this is that the company specific discount to the
average of the industry comparables is lower in a
number of instances.

+22.4p
SVG Capital’s 
investment in the AA
has been written up by 
£33.1 million (22.4p)

Geographical and sector distribution (by value)

The portfolio’s largest geographical exposure
remains Continental Europe. The portfolio’s
weighting to UK companies has fallen to 17%,
predominantly a reflection of the sale of Travelodge
and Inmarsat. The investment in Freescale and 
the third-party write-up of Ferretti have increased
the portfolio’s exposure to Multinational companies 
to 32%.

The portfolio’s weighting to Computer/electronic
and communications has remained broadly
unchanged, in spite of the realisations of Avnet,
Inmarsat and austriamicrosystems earlier in the 
year, owing to the new investment in Freescale
Semiconductors. The decrease in the percentage 
of the portfolio invested in the Retail sector is a
reflection of investment in Other sectors, on an
absolute basis the exposure is broadly unchanged.
The increase in the portfolio’s weighting to the
Consumer sector has been driven by the write-up 
of the AA, the sale of Rodenstock and the 
new investment in iglo Birds Eye. With the 
new investment in BorsodChem the portfolio’s
weighting to Chemical companies has risen to 8%.
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Major new investments

There have been 20 new and 24 follow-on
investments made in the year, representing an
investment cost for SVG Capital of £383.2 million, 
of which £297.0 million has been called and paid
for by SVG Capital plc. The remainder represents a
combination of amounts not yet called and indirect
exposures via SVG Capital’s investments in Permira
feeder vehicles.

The largest new investment was Freescale, a 
global leader in the design and manufacture of
embedded semiconductors for wireless, networking,
automotive, consumer and industrial markets. 
Based in Texas, Freescale is the third largest
broadline semiconductor company in the US and
the ninth largest in the world. Historically, Freescale
was part of Motorola’s semiconductor business and
was spun out of Motorola to be an independent
public entity in 2004. SVG Capital’s share of this
investment is £146.9 million.

In December 2006, funds advised by Permira
completed the public-to-private of BorsodChem.
BorsodChem is a leading European chemical
company focusing on isocyanates and PVC.
Isocyanates are the key building blocks for PU 
foams which are used in applications such as
furniture, bedding, construction, automotive
interiors, coatings and adhesives. The value of 
this investment for SVG Capital is £79.0 million
(called in March 2007).

Funds advised by Permira have acquired iglo 
Birds Eye from Unilever. iglo Birds Eye is a leading
manufacturer of frozen foods in Europe, operating
mainly in the UK under the Birds Eye brand and 
in Germany and Austria under the iglo brand. 
The company’s main products include fish,
vegetable and ready meals, in addition to iconic
products such as fish fingers and Schlemmer 
Filets. SVG Capital’s share of this investment 
is £35.8 million

Post balance sheet events

In addition, in December 2006 funds advised by
Permira agreed to acquire an indirect participation in
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, and launched an all-cash
voluntary public takeover offer for the remaining
outstanding shares in issue. The acquisition of 
the majority stake in ProSiebenSat.1 Media closed 
in March and the voluntary public takeover offer 
is expected to settle in April. SVG Capital’s share 
of the initial investment in ProSiebenSat.1 Media 
is £110.6 million (called in March 2007).

In January 2007, funds advised by Permira agreed 
to acquire 74% of the share capital of Provimi SA, 
a public company listed in Paris, and announced
their intention to launch an all-cash mandatory
public offer for the remaining outstanding shares 
in issue. Provimi is a world leader in animal 
nutrition solutions. The company has almost 
9,000 employees, operating from over 100 plants 
in 30 countries specialising in innovative products
serving the nutritional and health needs of all
animals. The completion of the transaction is subject
to customary regulatory clearances. SVG Capital’s
share of the initial investment in Provimi is expected
to be approximately £43.6 million (uncalled).

Distributions

Distributions from the private equity portfolio
reached £307.5 million13 in the year, the majority of
which have been from the full or partial realisations 
of portfolio companies, with a minority from
recapitalisations.

With the exception of recapitalisations, the most
material distributions during the year were
Travelodge (£66.9 million), Avnet (£47.8 million),
austriamicrosystems (£19.9 million) and Inmarsat
(£7.7 million). Since the year-end, SVG Capital 
has received further distributions of £98.6 million
predominantly from the partial realisation of 
Ferretti and the full realisations of GNV, Marazzi
and Premiere.

13 Including income of £18.0 million and excluding the realisations
of Ferretti and Rodenstock, which did not complete until 2007.

31.8p
Ferretti partial realisation
was at a 31.8p uplift to
December 2005 value
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Deal type

In line with SVG Capital’s investment objective 
the vast majority of the portfolio is invested in
management buy-outs.

Fund commitments

At 31 December 2006, SVG Capital had 
£1,665.8 million of uncalled commitments to 
eight private equity funds (December 2005: 
£314.4 million to six funds). In addition, SVG Capital
also had £78.8 million of uncalled commitments
to four Permira feeder vehicles and an uncalled
commitment of £83.8 million to three generalist
fund of funds.

Cash and marketable securities

At 31 December 2006, the Company’s gross 
cash balance of £284.4 million14 (December 2005: 
£205.0 million) was held principally in money
market funds and treasury bills. Since the year-end,
SVG Capital has received further distributions totalling
£98.6 million and paid calls of £196.9 million,
including a call of £184.5 million to Permira IV.

Portfolio maturity investments in companies 31 December 2006 £ millions

Uncalled private equity commitments

Amount Amount SVG Capital
called uncalled uncalled

(local currency) (local currency) commitment*
millions millions £ millions

Permira funds

Permira Europe II b633.9 b16.3 11.0

Permira Europe III b340.8 b85.2 57.4

Permira IV b191.6 b2,264.9 1,526.0

P123 b53.0 b13.3 9.0

P1234 b30.8 b7.7 5.2

P25 – b82.0 55.2

SVG Sapphire IV – b14.0 9.4

1,673.2

Other private equity funds

The Japan Fund IV ¥3,566.6 ¥7,147.0 30.6

SV Investments Fund I US$62.9 US$0.3 0.2

SV Life Sciences Fund II US$42.2 US$4.5 2.3

SV Life Sciences Fund III US$50.0 US$25.1 12.8

SV Life Sciences Fund IV – US$50.0 25.5

1,744.6

Generalist funds of funds

Key Capital SVG CLO Equity Fund b15.0 b10.0 6.7

SVG Diamond – b52.8 35.6

SVG Diamond II – b61.6 41.5

Total 1,828.4**

*Based on exchange rates at 31 December 2006.
**Excluding warehoused assets.

1996*

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

*1996 and prior years

*Year of original investment in underlying companies.

Write down Earnings/third-party

Cost Quoted 

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350

14 Not including SVG Advisers. Group cash balances were 
£295.5 million at 31 December 2006.
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Maxeda
Maxeda is the largest 
non-food retailer in the Benelux
area with market leading
positions in the department
store, DIY, apparel and
consumer electronics sectors.
The company trades from 
11 store fascias and around
1,600 outlets. Maxeda has a
diversified portfolio of strong
brands with most of the
company’s retail formats
being household names in
The Netherlands and Belgium.
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20 largest underlying companies

In the following pages, we show SVG Capital’s
20 largest investments by value as at
31 December 2006. The valuations of these
companies have been presented in accordance 
with IFRS.
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Ferretti Group is a world
leading producer of high
performance motoryachts
larger than 40 feet.

+£46.8m
increase in value

1
Freescale (US) US

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition November 2006

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 12.7%

146,912
146,912

Cost
IFRS value

Freescale is a global leader in the design and  
manufacture of embedded semiconductors for  
wireless, networking, automotive, consumer and  
industrial markets. Based in Texas, Freescale is the  
third largest broadline semiconductor company  
in the US and the ninth largest in the world.  
The valuation basis is cost in fund currency.

2
Ferretti Group (Italy) Italy

Company £000’s

Date of acquisition October 2002

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 8.3%

21,130
95,800

Cost
IFRS value

Ferretti Group is a world leading producer  
of high performance luxury motoryachts larger  
than 40 feet, created through a buy and build  
strategy of complementary motoryacht builders.  
The valuation basis is third-party. 

3
BorsodChem Hungary

Company £000’s

Date of acquisition December 2006

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 6.8%

79,013
79,013Cost

IFRS value

BorsodChem is a leading European chemical  
company focusing on isocyanates and PVC.  
Isocyanates are the key building blocks for  
PU foams which are used in applications such  
as furniture, bedding, construction, automotive  
interiors, coatings and adhesives. The valuation  
basis is cost in fund currency.

4
SEAT Pagine Gialle Italy

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition July 2003

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 5.3%

28,245
61,215

Cost
IFRS value

SEAT Pagine Gialle is a telephone directories, 
business information and directory assistance 
company, which demerged from the internet, 
television and business publishing arm of SEAT in 
August 2003. The company has significant market 
share in Italy, the UK and Germany and is one of 
Italy’s leading yellow pages and telephone directory 
publishers. The valuation basis is quoted.

5
TDC Denmark

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition December 2005

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 4.1%

48,105
47,409

Cost
IFRS value

TDC is a leading Danish-based provider of 
communications solutions with significant presence 
in selected markets in Northern and Central  
Europe. TDC operates through four different  
units: TDC Solutions, TDC Mobile International,  
TDC Switzerland and TDC Cable TV. The valuation 
basis is earnings.
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SBS Broadcasting is a leading
pan-European commercial
free-to-air pay television and
radio broadcasting company

+£11.8m
increase in value

+£14.7m
increase in value 

Number two specialist
apparel retailer in Spain

6
SBS Broadcasting The Netherlands

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition October 2005

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 3.8%

31,968
43,927

Cost
IFRS value

SBS Broadcasting is a leading pan-European  
commercial free-to-air, pay television and radio  
broadcasting company with operations across  
Western and Central Europe. The company  
operates 19 television stations, 20 premium  
pay-TV channels and 15 radio networks.  
The valuation basis is earnings.

7
Gala Coral Group UK

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition September 2005

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 3.7%

42,886
42,875

Cost
IFRS value

The Gala Coral Group is one of Europe’s pre-eminent 
gaming groups with strong market positions in 
licensed betting offices, bingo and casinos, and an 
e-commerce platform encompassing online gaming 
and sports betting. The valuation basis is earnings.

8
AA UK

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition September 2004

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 3.5%

4,409
39,833

Cost
IFRS value

The AA is the UK’s largest roadside recovery 
business and one of the UK's leading insurance 
brokers. The group’s other activities include the 
provision of personal loans, publishing and driving 
school services. The roadside division is the AA’s 
largest profit driver with over 15 million members, 
of which six million are personal customers. 
Its business customers include fleet owners, 
vehicle manufacturers and affinity groups. 
The valuation basis is earnings.
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10
Parkway Holdings Singapore

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition December 1999

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 3.0%

18,581
35,158

Cost
IFRS value

Parkway is a private healthcare provider in 
Singapore with an established network of hospitals 
and clinics in Malaysia, Indonesia and India. 
The company has the region’s best known brand 
name and a reputation for technological leadership. 
The valuation basis is quoted.

11
Cortefiel Spain

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition September 2005

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 2.6%

15,800
30,389

Cost
IFRS value

Cortefiel is the number two specialist apparel  
retailer in Spain. It operates a multi-format network  
with three main concepts: Cortefiel, with 262 stores  
primarily in the Iberian market offering casual  
wear for 30+; Springfield, with 354 stores and  
155 franchises targeting the 18-30s; and Women  
Secret, selling underwear though 217 stores and  
162 franchises. The valuation basis is earnings.

12
Intelsat Bermuda

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition January 2005

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 2.3%

436
26,091

Cost
IFRS value

Intelsat is the largest global provider of fixed  
satellite services, supplying video, data and voice 
connectivity in over 200 territories. The valuation 
basis is earnings.

13
Maxeda (Vendex) The Netherlands

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition September 2004

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 1.9%

1,192
22,162

Cost
IFRS value

Maxeda is the largest non-food retailer in the 
Benelux area with market leading positions in  
the department store, DIY, apparel and consumer 
electronics sectors. The company trades from 
11 store fascias and around 1,600 outlets.  
Maxeda has a diversified portfolio of strong brands 
with most of the company’s retail formats being 
household names in The Netherlands and Belgium. 
The valuation basis is earnings.

14
Jet Aviation Switzerland

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition October 2005

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 1.9%

21,779
21,352

Cost
IFRS value

Jet Aviation was founded in 1967 and is a leading 
business aviation service company with over  
60 facilities and stations around the world.  
The company provides maintenance, completions 
and engineering services, fixed base operations and 
airline handling, along with aircraft sales, charter 
and management on a global basis. In addition,  
Jet Aviation operates an aircraft management  
and charter fleet of more than 160 jets in Europe, 
Asia, the Middle East and the US. The valuation  
basis is earnings.

iglo Birds Eye is a leading manufacturer of frozen 
foods in Europe, operating mainly in the UK  
under the Birds Eye brand and in Germany and 
Austria under the iglo brand. The company’s main 
products include fish, vegetable and ready meals,  
in addition to iconic products such as fish fingers 
and Schlemmer Filets. The valuation basis is cost  
in fund currency.

9
iglo Birds Eye UK

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition November 2006

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 3.1%

35,777
35,777

Cost
IFRS value
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Maxeda is the largest 
non-food retailer in the
Benelux area

+£16.2m
uplift in value over 
the year

15
Rodenstock Germany

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition September 2003

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 1.7%

12
19,826

Cost
IFRS value

Rodenstock is a leading designer, manufacturer and 
supplier of ophthalmic lenses. The company also 
designs and supplies frames and sunglasses under 
the Rodenstock and Porsche brands and operates a 
small retail chain of opticians in the UK. Rodenstock 
has approximately 4,150 employees and operates 
four main production sites in the Czech Republic, 
Thailand and two in Germany. The valuation basis  
is third-party. 

16
Aearo Technologies US

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition March 2006

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 1.7%

20,259
19,740

Cost
IFRS value

Aearo Technologies is a global leader in the personal 
protection equipment industry, competing primarily 
in the higher value added hearing, eye, head, face, 
respiratory and fall protection market segments. 
The valuation basis is cost in fund currency.

17
debitel Germany

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition June 2004

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 1.6%

361
18,829

Cost
IFRS value

debitel is Europe’s largest mobile service provider, 
offering a wide range of telecommunications products 
(mobile, fixed line and internet). The company is 
headquartered in Germany and has over 10 million 
customers and operates via a network of more  
than 8,000 retail partners through its own shops. 
The valuation basis is earnings.

18
DinoSol Supermercados Spain

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition November 2004

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 1.6%

10,496
18,600

Cost
IFRS value

DinoSol Supermercados (formerly Ahold Supermercados) 
operates c.520 core stores in Spain and the Canary 
Islands, trading primarily under the SuperSol and 
HiperDino brands. The valuation basis is earnings.

19
New Look UK

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition April 2004

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 1.5%

599
17,648

Cost
IFRS value

New Look is a leading UK fashion retailer targeting 
the young (15-44) female market. The company 
was established in 1969 and has grown to become 
the UK’s third largest single fascia retailers of 
womenswear with around 4% of the UK market. 
New Look has 565 stores in the UK and 229 stores 
in France. The valuation basis is earnings.

20
Strides Arcolab (Zenith Pharmaceutical) India

Cost/value comparison £000’s

Date of acquisition January 2002

Percentage of Shareholders' funds 1.2%

3,235
14,335

Cost
IFRS value

Strides Arcolab manufactures a range of generic 
drugs and tablets for supply to Western and 
developing markets. The valuation basis is quoted.
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SVG Advisers

The investment management and advisory business,
SVG Advisers, was established in 2001 with the 
key objective of providing intelligent solutions and
innovative structures for investing in private equity
or public equity using private equity techniques.

The business has continued to expand rapidly
building recurring fee streams and increasing 
funds and commitments under management 
from 11.9 billion in 2005 to 13.3 billion at the end 
of 2006. The business now employs over 55 people
managing five diversified private equity fund of
funds, five single manager funds (all investing in
Permira Funds) and four funds investing in public
equities using private equity techniques.  

Total external fee income increased from 
£10.6 million to £20.3 million, including recurring
external fees of £13.3 million, compared to 
£7.5 million in 2005. Including fees paid by 
SVG Capital to SVG Advisers, total fees earned 
by the operating subsidiaries were £24.3 million,
contributing £8.2 million to the Group’s profit
before tax in 2006.

Risks and risk management

The Board has adopted a matrix of key risks which
affect its business and a robust framework of internal
control which is designed to monitor those risks 
and to provide a monitoring system to enable the
Directors to mitigate these risks as far as possible. 
A fuller analysis of the Directors’ system of internal
control and its monitoring system, is set out in the
Corporate governance statement. The principal 
risks are considered to be as follows:-

General risks associated with investment 
in private equity

Investment in private equity involves a high degree
of risk. The Group invests in private equity through its
exposure to buy-out and development capital funds.
Such investments are illiquid and might be difficult 
to realise, particularly within a short timeframe. 
The Directors seek to maintain a diversified portfolio
of investments to mitigate these risks.

Valuation risk

The Group’s exposure to valuation risk comprises
mainly movements in the value of its underlying
investments. A breakdown of the Group’s portfolio
of private equity funds is given on pages 28 to 29
and a detailed analysis of the 20 largest underlying
companies is given on pages 22 to 25. 
All underlying investments are valued at fair value 
by the Directors in accordance with the current
International Private Equity and Venture Capital
(“IPEVC”) Guidelines. The IPEVC Guidelines contain
detailed methodology setting out best practice with
respect to valuing unquoted investments. Valuation
risks are mitigated by a comprehensive review of
underlying investments in the private equity funds
which are carried out by the managers of the private
equity funds twice each year. These valuations are
then considered by the Audit Committee and the 
Board with advice and assistance from SVG Advisers, 
the managers of the private equity funds and 
other advisers as appropriate. The Group’s Auditor
also reviews the valuations as part of their audit 
and agrees any changes with the Audit Committee
and the Board. 

Future commitment/funding risk

At 31 December 2006, the Group had significant
uncalled commitments of £1,828.4 million 
(2005: £314.4 million), compared to Shareholders'
funds of £1,154.1 million (2005: £906.7 million). 
The Group has in place a b600.0 million 10 year
multicurrency borrowing facility and has in addition
issued £107.3 million of Private Placement Notes.
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The Board considers cash-flow forecasts at each
Board meeting and expects to meet a substantial
portion of its uncalled commitments, as well as
commitments from future funds, from distributions
received from its investments and from borrowings
available to the Group. At the present time, 
an amount of b114.4 million is utilised by way 
of guarantees of the Company’s commitments to
the SVG Diamond programme. Any reduction in 
the net asset value and the share price is amplified 
by the gearing. The Directors keep the Group’s
gearing under review and impose restrictions on
borrowings to mitigate this risk.

Investment holdings period

Investment in private equity requires a long-term
commitment with no certainty of return. Many of
the investments made by the Group are illiquid
holdings in buy-out and development capital funds
and, in some cases, may not be capable of being
realised in a timely manner or at all. The timing 
of cash distributions, if any, made by the buy-out
and development capital funds is uncertain and
unpredictable. Investments in buy-out and
development capital funds may be difficult to value
and dispositions may require a lengthy time period
since there is only a limited market for secondary
sales of private equity investments. Further, sales 
or other transfers of interests in buy-out and
development capital funds sometimes require 
the written consent of the general partner of the
fund, the granting of which is at its discretion.
Accordingly, the Group may not be able to sell its
investments in buy-out and development capital
funds at their net asset value or even at discounted
prices below the net asset value.

However, the Directors believe that the investment
process employed when initially selecting
investments helps to ensure that the Group’s
investments would be attractive to buyers in 
the secondary market.

Concentration risk

The Company has investments in 23 private 
equity funds providing it with a portfolio of 
120 companies that are diversified by vintage year,
size, geography and sector. The majority of the
Company’s investments are managed or advised 
by Permira, and the future performance of the
Group will therefore be largely dependent on the
future performance of the Permira Funds in which
it invests. The Directors believe that this represents 
an opportunity, but greater concentration of 
the investment portfolio also presents a risk. 
Each investment proposition is considered by the
Investment Committee and the Board in accordance
with a structured investment process. This includes
presentations from the manager of the proposed
fund, extensive due-diligence, consideration of 
the terms and conditions for investment in the fund,
consideration of the Group’s own cash flows and
future commitments and a review of the effect 
of any such investment on portfolio concentration.

Currency and interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk directly 
since the majority of its assets and liabilities are
denominated in foreign currency and their Sterling
value can be significantly affected by movements 
in foreign exchange rates. The Group does 
not normally hedge against foreign currency
movements affecting the value of its investments.
However, currency risk is monitored on a regular
basis by the Board and cash balances are held in
accordance with an agreed policy to match, 
as far as possible, anticipated future commitments.

Regulatory risks

The regulatory environment in which the Group
operates is increasingly complex and the Group
faces a number of regulatory risks. Breaches of
regulations such as the UK Listing Authority’s 
Listing Rules could lead to a number of detrimental
outcomes and damage the Group’s reputation.
Breaches of controls by service providers could 
also lead to reputational damage or loss. 
Key regulatory risks have been identified and
appropriate monitoring of such risks is undertaken 
on behalf of the Board.

Taxation risks

Any change in the taxation legislation or practice
could affect the value of the Group’s investments
and as a result, its performance. A breach of 
Section 842 of the Income and Corporation Taxes
Act 1988 could result in the Group being subject 
to capital gains tax on the sale of portfolio
investments. However, the Group has strict 
controls in place to ensure that it complies with 
the requirements of Section 842 and contracts 
with specialist tax advisers to provide advice on
changes to tax regulation and practice.
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SVG Capital’s Value of SVG Capital’s
holding in SVG Capital’s Shareholders' 

Year Original the fund holding funds
formed life (years) % £’000 %

Europe
Permira Europe I
The first US$1 billion fund raised for private equity investment 
in Europe focusing on large and medium-sized leveraged 
buy-out opportunities. 1997 10 13.5 14,335 1.2

Permira Europe II
Formed as the successor to Permira Europe I, the fund focuses 
on European buy-outs and buy-ins, in addition to growth 
capital investments. 2000 10 19.7 215,260 18.7

Permira Europe III
Formed as the successor to Permira Europe II, the fund focuses
on buy-outs/ins and growth capital investments in European 
businesses or of global businesses with a strong European presence. 2003 10 10.3 237,843 20.6

Permira IV
Formed as a successor fund to Permira Europe III, the fund focuses 
on buy-outs/ins and growth capital investments in businesses 
which have or intend to have significant activities in Europe. 
The fund may invest up to 30% of its committed capital in 
businesses which do not have or intend to have significant 
activities in Europe. 2006 10 22.7 119,423 10.4

P123
A fund of Permira pan-European buy-out funds, with interests 
in Permira Europe I, II and III. 2003 15 38.6 63,894 5.5

P1234
A fund of Permira buy-out funds, with interests in 
P123 and Permira IV. 2006 15 42.8 36,723 3.2

P25
A fund of Permira buy-out funds, with interests in 
Permira Europe III and Permira IV. 2006 15 47.7 32,938 2.9

SVG Sapphire IV
A feeder fund that invests solely in Permira IV. 2006 15 34.2 – 0.0

Permira German Buy-Outs
Established to invest in buy-outs of companies in Germany and 
some of its neighbouring countries. 1986 10* 29.7 526 0.0

Permira Italy II
Established to make equity and near-equity investments in 
buy-outs and buy-ins, including development capital businesses, 
principally in Italy. 1993 10* 21.0 1,486 0.1

Permira UK III
Established as Permira’s third buy-out fund in the United Kingdom 
to invest in equity and near-equity investments in buy-outs, 
buy-ins, development capital businesses and turnarounds. 1993 10* 0.3 58 0.0

Permira UK Venture III
Established to invest in a diversified portfolio of venture or 
development capital businesses and buy-outs principally in 
the United Kingdom. 1990 10* 8.7 119 0.0

Permira UK Venture IV
Established to follow the policies of the fully invested Permira UK 
Venture III. 1995 10* 4.2 193 0.0

Total Europe 722,798 62.6

* The lives of these funds have been extended.
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SVG Capital’s Value of SVG Capital’s
holding in SVG Capital’s Shareholders'

Year Original the fund holding funds 
formed life (years) % £’000 %

Asia
Asia Pacific Trust
Formed to invest in equity and near-equity investments in the high 
growth economies of the Asia Pacific region. This trust has been 
in liquidation since 1998. 1990 8* 6.4 723 0.1

Asia Pacific Fund II
Established to make equity or near-equity investments in buy-outs, 
buy-ins, development capital businesses and turnarounds, principally 
in the Asia Pacific region with an emphasis on Australia, China, 
Hong Kong, India, Indonesia, Malaysia, Singapore and Thailand. 1994 10* 14.0 5,457 0.5

Schroder Ventures Asia Pacific Fund
Established to make equity or near-equity investments in companies 
that have significant exposure to the Asia Pacific region. The fund focuses
principally on management buy-outs and buy-ins, financial acquisitions
and larger development capital opportunities. 1999 10 29.9 56,284 4.9

Co-investments with Asia Pacific Fund II and 
Schroder Ventures Asia Pacific Fund 4,572 0.4

The Japan Venture Fund III
Established to invest directly or indirectly in equity and near-equity investments 
in a diversified portfolio of early-stage or development capital investments 
and leveraged and management buy-outs and buy-ins principally in Japan. 1997 10 20.3 30 0.0

The Japan Fund IV
Established to invest in buy-out transactions in Japan
across a range of industries and sectors. 2004 10 27.2 20,484 1.7

Total Asia 87,550 7.6

North America
Schroder Canadian Buy-Out Fund III
Established to invest principally in buy-outs, buy-ins, leveraged
build-ups and development capital opportunities in Canada. 2000 10 26.6 929 0.1

Co-investments with Schroder Canadian Buy-Out Funds III 
and SV Investments Fund I 4,799 0.4

SV Life Sciences Fund II
Formerly known as Schroder Ventures International Life Sciences Fund II.
SV Life Sciences Fund II invests in a diversified portfolio of life sciences 
companies principally in the United States and Europe. The majority of
these investments will be in early-stage opportunities. 1999 10 16.7 8,832 0.8

SV Life Sciences Fund III
Formerly known as International Life Sciences Fund III. The successor 
to SV Life Sciences Fund II, established to invest in a diversified portfolio
of life sciences companies principally in the United States and Europe. 
The majority of these investments will be in early-stage opportunities. 2002 10 19.1 22,600 1.9

SV Life Sciences Fund IV
Formed as a successor fund to SV Life Sciences Fund III, to invest 
in a diversified portfolio of life sciences companies principally in the  
United States and Europe. The majority of these investments will 
be in early-stage opportunities. 2006 10 9.1 – 0.0

SV Investments Fund I
Established to invest in larger development capital and mid-size 
buy-outs in the United States, with a particular focus on media,
telecommunications and technology sectors. 1999 10 25.9 24,983 2.2

Total North America 62,143 5.4

Total private equity funds and co-investments 872,491 75.6
Generalist funds and other investments 18,825 1.6

Public equity funds 30,218 2.6

Total investment portfolio 921,534 79.8

Other assets less total liabilities 232,653 20.2

Total Shareholders’ funds 1,154,187 100.0

Comparative values for the 10 largest fund investments are shown in note 33.
* The lives of these funds have been extended.
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30 Directors

Damon Buffini

Non-Executive Director (aged 44)

Damon Buffini was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 25 April 2005. He joined Permira in
1988. He became a partner of Permira in 1992,
Managing Partner of the UK in 1999 and Managing
Partner in 2000. He is Chairman of Permira's
operating committee and has worked on numerous
buy-outs, buy-ins and growth capital transactions. 

Committees:
Nominations

Francis Finlay

Non-Executive Director (aged 64)

Francis Finlay was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 1 October 2004. He is Chairman of
Clay Finlay Inc., a New York based investment
management firm with offices in Europe and Asia.
His other non-executive directorships include two
London listed investment trusts, Scottish Investment
Trust plc and Indochina Capital Vietnam Holdings
Limited.

Committees:
Remuneration (Chairman) 
Investment 
Nominations

Anthony Habgood

Non-Executive Director (aged 60) 

Anthony Habgood was appointed as a 
Director of the Company on 12 February 1996 
and is Chairman of Bunzl plc and Chairman of 
Whitbread plc. Anthony Habgood is the Senior
Independent Director of the Company.

Committees:
Audit 
Investment 
Nominations
Remuneration
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Nicholas Ferguson

Chairman (aged 58)

Nicholas Ferguson was appointed as a Director of
the Company on 12 February 1996 and Chairman
on 25 April 2005. He is non-executive Chairman 
of SVG Advisers Limited and was formerly 
Chairman of Schroder Ventures and instrumental 
in its development since 1984. He is a non-executive
Director of BSkyB plc. 

Committees:
Investment (Chairman) 
Nominations (Chairman)
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Andrew Williams

Executive Director (aged 54)

Andrew Williams was appointed as a Director of 
the Company on 3 May 2002. He is Chief Executive
of SVG Advisers Limited, Managing Principal 
of SVG North America Inc and a non-executive
Director of CDC Group plc.

Committees:
Investment

Edgar Koning

Non-Executive Director (aged 54)

Edgar Koning was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 12 February 1996 and is Executive
Vice President with AEGON Nederland NV. 
He joined AEGON in 1981 and has held various
senior management positions in the Group.

Committees:
Investment
Nominations

Denis Raeburn

Non-Executive Director (aged 62)

Denis Raeburn was appointed as a Director 
of the Company on 25 June 2001 and was
Managing Director of the asset management
company Global Asset Management (GAM)
between 1986 and 1999.

Committees:
Audit 
Investment 
Nominations
Remuneration

Charles Sinclair

Non-Executive Director (aged 59)

Charles Sinclair was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 1 January 2005. He is Chief Executive
of Daily Mail and General Trust plc. He is a 
non-executive Director of Euromoney Institutional
Investor PLC. He retired from the Board of Reuters
Group PLC in December 2005.

Committees:
Audit (Chairman) 
Investment

Gary Steinberg

Non-Executive Director (aged 54) 

Gary Steinberg was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 15 March, 2007. He is currently working
as an investment consultant. Prior to this, Gary was
the Chief Investment Officer of The Wellcome Trust
and the Chief Executive of BP Investment Management,
responsible for managing investment portfolios of
£11 billion and £12 billion respectively. His election
to the Board is being proposed at the 2007 Annual
General Meeting.

Committees:
Audit 
Investment 
Remuneration
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32 Report of the Directors
for the year ended 31 December 2006

The Directors submit their report and the audited accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2006.

Company’s business

The Company carries on business as an investment trust and is an investment company within the meaning of Section 266 of the
Companies Act 1985. In order to obtain exemption from capital gains tax, the Company has conducted itself with a view to being 
an approved investment trust for the purposes of Section 842 of the United Kingdom Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 
(as amended). The last accounting period for which the Company has been treated as approved by HM Revenue & Customs as
meeting the qualifying criteria for investment trust status is the year ended 31 December 2005 and the Company has subsequently
conducted its affairs so as to enable it to continue to qualify for such approval.

The Company is not a close company for taxation purposes.

A review of the Company’s business and its likely future development is given in the Chairman’s statement on pages 6 to 8, 
the Chief Executive’s review on page 9 and the Business review on pages 12 to 27.

Revenue and earnings

As an investment trust and an investment company, it is important to distinguish between revenue profits and capital profits. 
The consolidated revenue profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders was £21,957,000 (2005: £14,300,000). 
The Company’s revenue profit for the year was £14,851,000 (2005: £14,741,000).

The consolidated capital profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders was £190,026,000 (2005: £142,274,000). 
The Company’s capital profit for the year was £189,257,000 (2005: £143,304,000).

Taking capital returns into account, the consolidated profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders was £211,983,000
(2005: £156,574,000). The Company’s profit for the year was £204,108,000 (2005: £158,045,000).

Dividend

The Company is prohibited by its Articles of Association from distributing as dividends any capital surpluses that arise from the
realisation of investments. Accordingly, any dividends paid by the Company will be funded out of its revenue account.

The Company’s investment objective is one of capital growth and it is anticipated that returns for shareholders will derive primarily
from capital. However, the Directors recommend that the Company should declare the payment of a final dividend of 7.5p per share
for the year ended 31 December 2006 in order to meet the requirements to ensure that the Company continues to qualify as an
investment trust. 

Policy for payment of creditors

It is the policy of the Company to settle all investment transactions in accordance with the terms and conditions of the relevant
markets in which it operates. All other expenses are paid on a timely basis in the ordinary course of business. The Company had 
no trade creditors at 31 December 2006.

Purchase of shares for cancellation

The Directors have not used the authority given to them at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 24 April 2006
to purchase any of the ordinary shares of the Company.

The total number of shares in issue on 5 April 2007 was 138,813,795 shares. To provide maximum flexibility, the Directors wish 
to renew the authority to purchase shares for cancellation. A resolution authorising the Company to purchase up to 14.99% of the
share capital in issue on 5 April 2007 will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting for which notice is given on pages
81 to 85.

This authority will lapse at the conclusion of the Company’s Annual General Meeting in 2008, unless renewed earlier.

As at 5 April 2007, the Company held no shares in treasury. Accordingly, the percentage figures in this and other sections 
of the report are all calculated exclusive of treasury shares.

The total number of options to subscribe for ordinary shares outstanding at 5 April 2007 was 8,542,043, which represented
approximately 6.2% of the issued ordinary share capital at that date. If the Company were to purchase the maximum number 
of ordinary shares permitted by this resolution and by the existing buy-back authority given on 24 April 2006 (for 19,268,983
shares) then the options outstanding at 5 April 2007 would represent approximately 8.7% of the issued ordinary share capital.
However, the Directors do not presently intend to exercise the existing authority prior to its expiry on 10 May 2007.

Issue of new shares

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 24 April 2006, the Directors were given powers (in substitution for the
powers taken at the Annual General Meeting of the Company in April 2005) to allot relevant securities as if the pre-emption provisions
in Section 89(1) of the Companies Act 1985 did not apply. A total of 71,957 shares were issued during the year in connection with
the Company’s Executive Share Option Plan and a further 3,658 shares were issued after the year-end. The Directors wish to renew
these powers at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Therefore, Resolutions 9 and 10 (set out in the notice of the Annual General Meeting on pages 81 to 85) will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting.

If passed, Resolution 9 will give the Directors the power to allot relevant securities up to an aggregate nominal amount of 
(a) £1,388,137 (equivalent to 1% of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at 5 April 2007) in connection with the
Company’s Executive Share Option Plan and the proposed SVG Capital 2007 Performance Share Plan; and (b) £46,271,264
(equivalent to one-third of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at 5 April 2007).

If passed, Resolution 10 will give the Directors the power to allot equity securities as if the pre-emption provisions in Section 89(1) 
of the Companies Act 1985 did not apply (a) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,388,137 (equivalent to 1% of the
Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at 5 April 2007) in connection with the Company’s Executive Share Option Plan and 
the proposed SVG Capital 2007 Performance Share Plan; (b) pursuant to rights issues and other pre-emptive issues; and (c) up to an
aggregate nominal amount of £13,881,379 (equivalent to 10% of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at 5 April 2007). 
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The Directors are seeking the authority referred to in paragraph (c) of Resolution 10 in order to provide flexibility in raising monies 
to take advantage of opportunities arising through the launch of new funds, and for general corporate purposes. It is the intention 
of the Board that any equity securities allotted under this authority will be allotted at an effective premium to the estimated net 
asset value per ordinary share at the date of pricing of the issue of the relevant equity securities. The Directors intend to exercise the
authority referred to in paragraph (b) of Resolution 10 generally to issue relevant securities whenever they believe it is advantageous 
to shareholders to do so.

The Directors intend to exercise the authority referred to in paragraph (a) of Resolution 9 and paragraph (a) of Resolution 10 to 
grant options under part D of the Company’s Executive Share Option Plan and the proposed SVG Capital 2007 Performance Share
Plan to individuals seconded to the Company or its subsidiaries (which, for this purpose, include joint ventures). Options granted
pursuant to this authority will nevertheless count towards limits on the number of new ordinary shares that may be issued pursuant 
to the exercise of options.

The authorities proposed to be taken under Resolutions 9 and 10 will lapse at the conclusion of the Company’s Annual General
Meeting in 2008, unless renewed, revoked or varied earlier.

Directors

Gary Steinberg was appointed as a Director of the Company on 15 March 2007 and his election will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association. Mr Steinberg, aged 54, is currently working as an investment
consultant. Prior to this, he was the Chief Investment Officer of The Wellcome Trust and the Chief Executive of BP Investment
Management, responsible for managing investment portfolios of £11 billion and £12 billion respectively. Gary has also held senior
investment management positions with Capital House Investment Management and Universities Superannuation Scheme.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Charles Sinclair and Anthony Habgood will retire at the Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Edgar Koning retires in accordance with the Company’s policy on tenure
outlined on page 39. Mr Habgood also retires in accordance with the Company’s policy on tenure.

The Board supports the election of Gary Steinberg and the re-elections of Charles Sinclair, Anthony Habgood and Edgar Koning, who
continue to demonstrate commitment to their roles and provide valuable contributions to the deliberations of the Board and its
Committees.

Anthony Habgood and Edgar Koning have served as non-executive Directors of the Company for more than nine years. They are
considered to be independent in both character and judgement.

Biographical details of all current Directors may be found on pages 30 and 31.

The Directors do not have service contracts with the Company. However, Andrew Williams, who is employed by Schroder Investment
Management Limited, is seconded to SVG Advisers Limited (“SVGA”). As part of the secondment arrangements, SVGA will reimburse
Schroder Investment Management Limited for the salary, bonus and other benefits paid by Schroder Investment Management
Limited to Andrew Williams.

The Directors of the Company and their beneficial and family interests in the Company’s share capital during the year to 
31 December 2006 are given below:

Ordinary shares
of £1.00 each

At At
31 December 1 January

2006 2006

Beneficial

Nicholas Ferguson*† 551,507 447,341

Damon Buffini** 6,000,000 6,000,000

Francis Finlay 100,000 100,000

Anthony Habgood† 66,666 25,000

Edgar Koning Nil Nil

Denis Raeburn† 164,166 60,000

Charles Sinclair 67,062 67,062

Andrew Williams* 13,091 13,091

Non-beneficial

Nicholas Ferguson 42,900 42,900

Anthony Habgood 8,333 12,500

Charles Sinclair 5,000 6,250
* In addition, Nicholas Ferguson and Andrew Williams have options over ordinary shares, details of which are given on page 37.

** Damon Buffini has an interest in 6 million SVG Capital shares since he has an interest in Permira Holdings Limited, the parent of Permira Capital Limited which owns 
6 million SVG Capital shares. Further, Permira Holdings Limited is a party to an operating agreement with the Company dated 21 March 2005 (more particularly described
in a Circular to shareholders dated 24 March 2005) pursuant to which (a) SVG Capital Group has committed to be the major investor in future funds designed, managed or
advised by entities in the Permira Group and during the term of that agreement is entitled to access to such funds; and (b) SVG Capital Group has agreed not to commit to
any private equity fund or product for direct investment, other than agreed commitments to other private equity funds and Japan funds, which are not designed, managed
or advised by entities in the Permira Group. As a result of Mr Buffini’s interest in the Permira entities described above, Mr Buffini will not participate in any decisions relating
to commitments made, or which may be made, by SVG Capital Group to any funds or products designed, managed or advised by entities in the Permira Group.

† The following number of shares were issued to Directors during the year on conversion of the 2013 convertible bonds: Nicholas Ferguson – 104,166; 
Denis Raeburn – 104,166; and Anthony Habgood – 41,666.

Gary Steinberg was appointed as a Director on 15 March 2007 and, at the date of his appointment, did not hold shares 
in the Company.

There had been no changes in the above holdings up until 5 April 2007.
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34 Report of the Directors continued

Nicholas Ferguson and members of his family and Andrew Williams have an interest in the carried interest in respect of certain private
equity funds. Nicholas Ferguson and Andrew Williams have foregone a portion of their entitlement to carried interest on existing
private equity funds and any entitlement they may have to carried interest on Permira or Schroder Ventures’ funds launched after
2001 in return for share options granted by the Company under the Executive Share Option Plan. Nicholas Ferguson will receive no
further options following his retirement from an executive role in April 2005. Nicholas Ferguson and Andrew Williams also participate
in the Schroder Ventures Co-Investment Scheme and Schroder Ventures Investments Limited. They have received no new carried
interest allocations and made no new commitments since they joined SVG Capital plc in 2001.

Damon Buffini is Managing Partner of Permira. As more particularly described in a Circular to shareholders dated 24 March 2005,
Permira entered into an operating agreement with the Company under which for the life of the operating agreement, and subject 
to agreement on terms, due diligence and Board approval, (a) the SVG Capital Group will be a major investor in future Permira Funds
and will be entitled to full access to such funds; and (b) SVG Capital Group will not commit to any non-Permira private equity fund 
or product for direct investment other than agreed commitments to other private equity funds and Japan funds. Mr Buffini will not
participate in any decisions relating to commitments made, or which may be made, by the SVG Capital Group to any Permira funds
or Permira products.

No other Director has any material interest in any other contract that is significant to the Company’s business.

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance

During the year the Company maintained cover for its Directors and Officers, under a directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy
as permitted by Section 309A(5) of the Companies Act 1985 (as amended).

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to remain in office and a resolution to re-appoint them and to authorise the
Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

The Auditor provides non-audit services to the Group, details of which are set out in note 4 on page 59. The Audit Committee has
adopted a pre-approval policy on the engagement of the Auditor to supply non-audit services to the Group. It is not considered 
that the independence of the Auditor has been prejudiced by the provision of non-audit services. Terms of Reference of the Audit
Committee may be found on page 42.

Provision of information to auditors

As far as the Directors are aware there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware and they have taken all steps
they should have taken as Directors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
auditors are aware of that information.

Financial instruments

The main financial risks faced by the Company and the Group, and the management of those risks, are set out in note 32 on 
pages 75 to 78.

Substantial share interests

As at the date of this report, the Company has received notifications in accordance with the FSA’s Disclosure and Transparency Rule
5.1.2 R of the following interests in 3% or more of the voting rights attaching to the Company’s issued share capital.

Voting rights attached to shares
Number of Percentage

ordinary shares of voting rights

AEGON Investment Management BV 24,603,665 17.72

Schroders plc and its subsidiaries:

– non beneficial, managed for clients 17,470,569 12.59

– beneficial 7,113,449 5.13

Lansdowne Partners 9,715,839 6.99

Blackrock Investment Management UK Ltd 7,453,840 5.36

Permira Capital Limited 6,000,000 4.32

Legal & General 4,820,264 3.47

By order of the Board

Schroder Investment Management Limited
Company Secretary
5 April 2007

Registered Number: 3066856

Registered Office: 31 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7QA
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35Remuneration report
for the year ended 31 December 2006

Introduction

This report deals with the remuneration paid to the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2006 including the Company’s
executive Director, Andrew Williams. It also addresses the policy for future remuneration of the Directors.

This report has been prepared in accordance with schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985 as inserted by the Directors’ Remuneration
regulations 2002 and a resolution to approve this report will be put to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

The Remuneration Committee (the “Committee”)

The Committee’s members during the year were Francis Finlay (Chairman), Anthony Habgood and Denis Raeburn, all considered by
the Board to be independent non-executive Directors. 

The Committee meets at least twice a year and invites selected executives and advisers to attend as appropriate. Meetings held 
during the year were attended by all members of the Committee, none of which participated in any discussions or decisions
regarding their own remuneration.

The Committee is responsible for determining the remuneration policy for executives, including executive Directors of the SVG Group
(the “Group”) and the operation of the Company’s Executive Share Option Plan. Its terms of reference take into account the
provisions of the Combined Code on corporate governance. The Committee has appointed New Bridge Street Consultants LLP and
Towers Perrin, independent remuneration consultants, to advise it. New Bridge Street Consultants LLP also provides advice on the
operation of the Company’s share schemes.

The terms of reference of the Committee are set out on page 44 and are available on request from the Company Secretary.

Appointment, re-appointment and re-election of Directors

All Directors are appointed for an initial term of three years subject to election at the first Annual General Meeting following their
appointment. Thereafter Directors retire by rotation at least every three years. The Chairman meets with each Director before a
Director is proposed for re-election, and, subject to the evaluation of performance carried out each year, the Board agrees whether it is
appropriate for that Director to seek an additional term. When recommending whether an individual Director should seek re-election,
the Board will take into account the provisions of the Combined Code, including the need to refresh the Board and its committees.

Policy on the remuneration of non-executive Directors

Remuneration paid to non-executive Directors is determined by the Board and reviewed each year. When considering remuneration
levels, the Board will consider, amongst other things, industry practice and contribution to various committees and time spent on the
business of the Company.

Policy on the remuneration of executive Directors

The Committee’s aim is to ensure that remuneration packages should attract, retain and motivate senior executives (including
executive directors) but should avoid paying more than is necessary for this purpose. Basic salaries are set on this basis and the
Committee has due regard to competitive market data on similar positions in other private equity organisations and financial
institutions (this is provided by Towers Perrin). The Committee is sensitive to wider issues including pay and employment conditions 
in the Group when setting pay levels. No executive Director of the Company is involved in deciding his own remuneration. 

Andrew Williams is the only executive Director of the Company. The Committee’s policy is that performance-related elements of
remuneration form a significant proportion of the total remuneration package.

During the year the Committee reviewed the structure of remuneration for the Company’s executives. As a result, the Committee 
is proposing that future share option grants are replaced by grants of performance shares under a plan which will be presented to
shareholders for approval at the 2007 AGM. A UK HM Revenue & Customs approved all-employee Share Investment Plan will also be
presented to shareholders for approval at the AGM. Full details of both plans are set out in the circular to shareholders accompanying
the Notice of AGM. 

The basic salary of executive Directors is reviewed annually, having regard to individual performance and comparative market data. 
In addition, they are eligible for a non-pensionable discretionary bonus, which is conditional on Group performance and the
achievement of predetermined personal objectives based on the successful implementation of the business plan and strategies 
agreed by the Board. The normal maximum annual bonus for an executive Director has been set at 300% of salary. The bonus 
limit of 300% will also apply in respect of the current financial year.

Benefits in kind (which are not pensionable) relate to the provision of health insurance and life assurance cover.

External appointments

The Company permits executive Directors of the Company to accept limited non-executive directorships and other similar
appointments, it being recognised that such appointments increase their commercial knowledge and business experience 
to the general benefit of the Company. Fees earned from such directorships may be retained by the executive Directors.

Andrew Williams was, throughout the year, a non-executive Director of CDC Group plc. Directors’ fees of £26,000 for this
appointment are retained by Mr Williams.

Service contracts 

Andrew Williams, the only executive Director, does not have a service contract with the Company. He is employed by Schroder
Investment Management Limited (“SIM”) and is seconded to the Group. His contract with SIM provides for three months’ notice and
does not include liquidated damages provisions.

Mr Williams’ contract with SIM is dated 1 March 2004. It is the Company’s policy to have regard to the duty of a departing executive
Director to mitigate his loss when determining the level of any termination payment.
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36 Remuneration report continued

Performance graph

The Companies Act 1985 requires this report to include a performance graph comparing the Company’s total shareholder return
performance against that of a broad equity market index. For this purpose, the Committee has decided that the FTSE All-Share Index
is the most appropriate available index for comparative purposes because it is the principal index in which the Company’s shares 
are quoted.

This graph looks at the value, by the end of 2006, of £100 invested in SVG Capital on 30 June 2002 compared with the value 
of £100 invested in the FTSE All-Share Total Return Index. The other points plotted are the values at intermediate financial year-ends.

Pension arrangements

The following figures, prepared in accordance with UK legislation and the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, applies
to Andrew Williams (who was a member of Schroder’s Retirement Benefits Scheme) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2006,
during which he was an executive Director of the Company. No pension contributions are payable by Mr Williams. 

Executive Directors’ pensions*
Transfer value at

31 December
2006 in respect

Increase in Increase of increase
Accrued Increase in accrued Accrued Transfer in transfer Transfer in accrued

benefit at accrued benefit due benefit at value at value net value at benefit
31 December benefit due to other 31 December 31 December of director’s 31 December (excluding 

2005 to inflation factors 2006 2005 contributions 2006 inflation)
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £000 £’000

A C Williams 102 4 2 108 1,547 311 1,858 43

* This forms part of the audited section of the Remuneration Report.

Transfer values are liabilities of the relevant pension fund rather than amounts due to be paid to the executive Directors or liabilities 
of the Company.

Directors’ remuneration*

The emoluments of the Directors in respect of the year ended 31 December 2006 were as specified below:
Total Total 

emoluments emoluments
Year to Year to

Salary Benefits Annual 31 December 31 December
& fees in kind bonus§ 2006 2005
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

N E H Ferguson† 180 – – 180 392

A C Williams 307 1 700 1,008 848

D Buffini 25 – – 25 16

F Finlay 36 – – 36 32

A J Habgood 36 – – 36 36

E W Koning 23 – – 23 24

J J McLachlan – – – – 46

D Raeburn 36 – – 36 36

C Sinclair 36 – – 36 35

Aggregate emoluments 679 1 700 1,380 1,465

* This forms part of the audited section of the Remuneration Report.

† Nicholas Ferguson retired as an executive director and became the Chairman of the Company at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting held on 25 April 2005.
His remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2005 includes Chairman’s fees of £120,000.

§ Bonuses include provision for amounts accrued but not paid in each year. Annual bonuses are awarded in respect of calendar years.
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Share options

So as to link a significant proportion of their remuneration to the long-term stock market performance of the Company and to the
achievement of predetermined financial targets, it has been the policy of the Committee that the interests of the executive Directors
and other executives of the Group are aligned with shareholders’ through the operation of the Company’s Executive Share Option
Plan, which was introduced at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 3 May 2001.

It is proposed that a new ‘performance share’ plan will be introduced at the 2007 AGM to replace future grants of options.

If approved, the new plan will be utilised to make awards of performance shares regularly to qualifying employees and secondees 
of the Group and the Committee will determine grant levels, taking into account the development of the business and individual
performance in the preceding financial year. The policy on granting awards under the new plan is intended to be broadly the same 
as under the Executive Share Option Plan, with the same limit applying to the value of shares that may be awarded in any one year.
However, significantly tougher targets for growth will be set for future grants of performance shares. The Chairman and non-executive
Directors are not eligible to be granted share incentives. Options granted to Nicholas Ferguson in earlier years relate to his previous
role as an executive Director of the Company.

All options have been granted at the prevailing market price around the time of grant.

Options held by Directors over ordinary shares of the Company*

The following Directors have been granted options over ordinary shares under the Executive Share Option Plan:

At
During the year

At Exercise
Exercise dates†

31 December Options Options Options 31 December price
2005 granted exercised lapsed 2006 (pence) Earliest Latest

N E H Ferguson 715,446 – – – 715,446 410.00 21 June 2004§ 20 June 2011

357,724 – – – 357,724 410.00 21 June 2005§ 20 June 2011

404,484 – – – 404,484 334.50 5 April 2005§ 4 April 2012

349,840 – – – 349,840 392.75 13 March 2006§ 12 March 2013

363,256 – – – 363,256 479.00 12 March 2007§ 11 March 2014

250,704 – – – 250,704 564.00 23 March 2008 22 March 2015

A C Williams 373,983 – – – 373,983 410.00 21 June 2004§ 20 June 2011

186,992 – – – 186,992 410.00 21 June 2005§ 20 June 2011

272,645 – – – 272,645 334.50 5 April 2005§ 4 April 2012

239,847 – – – 239,847 392.75 13 March 2006§ 12 March 2013

248,851 – – – 248,851 479.00 12 March 2007§ 11 March 2014

242,957 – – – 242,957 564.00 23 March 2008 22 March 2015

– 179,747 – – 179,747 831.40 24 March 2009 24 March 2016

Total 4,006,729 179,747 – – 4,186,476

* This forms part of the audited section of the Remuneration Report.

† Options are exercisable subject to appropriate performance targets being met.

§ Performance conditions have been met.

For options granted in 2006, the target is for growth in the Company’s net asset value per ordinary share to exceed the growth in 
the Retail Prices Index plus 4% per annum over the three years from the date of grant. If the performance target is not satisfied on 
the third anniversary of the date of grant it will lapse (i.e. there will be no retesting of this performance condition). This change was
introduced from 2005 to reflect best practice. For all options granted up to the end of March 2004, performance targets have 
been met.

The mid-market price of shares at 31 December 2006 was 834.5p and the range during the year was 695.0p to 839.0p. 

All of the above options were granted for nil consideration.

The number of options in issue or exercised at 31 December 2006 in respect of current and former executive Directors represented
3.0% (2005: 3.1%) of issued share capital.

It is not anticipated that the value of performance shares to be granted in any financial year will exceed two times an individual’s
remuneration, including bonuses.

The performance of the net asset value of the Company has been chosen as the target in order to align the interests of executive
Directors and other executives of the Group with shareholders’ interests. 

External advisers will confirm the performance criteria calculations for the Committee, which will be measured on a consistent basis. 

The Company has established an employee benefit trust to enable it to purchase shares in the market to satisfy options exercised by
employees of the Group. New shares will be issued in respect of options exercised by seconded individuals. The Board will regularly
review the benefit of using the trust to make market purchases.

On behalf of the Board

Francis Finlay
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
5 April 2007
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38 Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable 
United Kingdom law and those International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union.

The Directors are required to prepare financial statements for each financial year which present fairly the financial position of 
the Company and of the Group and the financial performance and cash flows of the Company and of the Group for that period. 
In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

• present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information; and

• provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs is insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance; and

• state that the Company has complied with IFRSs, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the 
financial statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and of the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors believe that they have complied with these responsibilities.

The accounts are published on the www.svgcapital.com website, which is a website maintained by SVG Advisers Limited (“SVGA”), 
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The maintenance and integrity of this website is the responsibility of SVGA.

The accounts are also published on the www.schroders.co.uk website, which is a website maintained by Schroders. The maintenance
and integrity of the website maintained by Schroders or any other subsidiary of Schroders plc is, so far as it relates to the Company,
the responsibility of Schroders.

The work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of the maintenance and integrity of these websites and
accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that have occurred to the accounts shown on the websites from 
this published report and accounts. Visitors to the websites need to be aware that legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of the accounts may differ from legislation in their jurisdiction.
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39Corporate governance

The Company is committed to high standards of corporate governance. The UK Listing Authority requires all listed companies 
to disclose how they have applied the principles of, and complied with, the provisions of the Combined Code on corporate
governance published in July 2003 by the Financial Reporting Council (the “Code”).

Application of code principles

The Board considers that the Company has, throughout the year under review, complied with the best practice provisions in 
Section 1 of the Code.

Role of the Board

The Board determines and monitors the Company’s investment objectives and policy, decides on individual fund investments and
considers the future strategic direction of the Company. The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s position and, where appropriate, future prospects in annual and interim reports and other forms 
of public reporting. It monitors and reviews the shareholder base of the Company, marketing and shareholder communication
strategies, and evaluates the performance of all service providers, with input from its Committees where appropriate. 

A procedure for Directors, in the furtherance of their duties, to take independent professional advice at the expense of the Company
has been agreed. 

Composition and independence

The Board currently consists of one executive and eight non-executive Directors, including the Chairman. Profiles of each of the
Directors, including age and length of service, may be found on pages 30 and 31. The Board considers each of Francis Finlay,
Anthony Habgood, Edgar Koning, Denis Raeburn, Charles Sinclair and Gary Steinberg to be independent. The independence 
of each Director is considered on a continuing basis.

A review of Board composition and balance, including succession planning for appointments to the Board, is included as part of the
annual performance evaluation of the Board, details of which may be found below. 

The Board is satisfied that it is of sufficient size, with an appropriate balance of skills and experience, and that no individual or group 
of individuals is or has been in a position to dominate decision making. 

The role of the Chairman

The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and setting its agenda.

Senior Independent Director

Anthony Habgood was appointed as Senior Independent Director with effect from 1 December 2004. The Senior Independent
Director leads the evaluation of the performance of the Chairman and is available to shareholders if they have concerns that cannot
be resolved through discussion with the Chairman. As part of the evaluation process, the non-executive Directors meet without the
Chairman being present, and the Senior Independent Director chairs these meetings.

Company Secretary

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the corporate Company Secretary through its appointed representative, 
who is responsible to the Board, inter alia, for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that applicable rules and regulations
are complied with. 

Tenure

The Directors have adopted a policy on tenure that they consider appropriate for the Company as a self-managed investment 
trust. The Board does not believe that length of service, by itself, leads to a closer relationship with Executive Management. 
The independence of non-executive Directors will continue to be assessed on a case-by-case basis. In order to allow shareholders the
opportunity to endorse this policy, however, any non-executive Director who has served for more than nine years will be subject to
annual re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

Induction and training 

When a Director is appointed he or she receives a full, formal and tailored induction. Changes affecting Directors’ responsibilities 
are advised to the Board as they arise.

Advisers to the Company also prepare reports for the Board from time to time. In addition, Directors may attend ad hoc seminars
covering issues and developments relevant to the Company.

Performance evaluation

The Board has adopted a formal and rigorous annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its Committees and individual
Directors. The last evaluation was completed in March 2007. The evaluation is in two stages. First, the evaluation of individual
Directors is led by the Chairman, and the evaluation of the Chairman’s performance is led by the Senior Independent Director.
Evaluation is conducted utilising a questionnaire. Secondly, the Board evaluates its own performance and that of its Committees. 
The Board has developed criteria for use at the evaluation, which focuses on the individual contribution to the Board and its
Committees made by each Director and the responsibilities, composition and agenda of the Committees and of the Board itself.
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40 Corporate governance continued

Meetings

The Board held five scheduled meetings during 2006. Additional meetings were also arranged as required.

Attendance at the five scheduled meetings was as set out below:
Maximum 

Meetings possible
Director attended attendance

Nicholas Ferguson 5 5
Damon Buffini 4 5
Francis Finlay 5 5
Anthony Habgood 5 5
Edgar Koning 2 5
Denis Raeburn 5 5
Charles Sinclair 5 5
Andrew Williams 5 5

The Board is satisfied that each of the Chairman and the other non-executive Directors commit sufficient time to the affairs of the
Company to fulfil their duties as Directors.

Information flows

Management reports to the Board on at least a quarterly basis and as appropriate on specific matters. The Chairman ensures that
Directors are provided, on a regular basis, with key information on the Company’s policies, regulatory requirements and internal
controls. The Board receives and considers reports regularly from its advisers and ad hoc reports and information are supplied to the
Board as required.

Committees

The Board has delegated certain responsibilities and functions to committees. Terms of Reference, as well as details of membership
and activities for all Committees of the Board, are set out on the following pages. The Board keeps under review the composition 
of each of its Committees to ensure that undue reliance is not placed on particular individuals.

Relations with shareholders

The Board believes that the maintenance of good relations with both institutional and retail shareholders is important for the prospects
of the Company. It has, since its launch, sought engagement with investors. The Chairman, the Senior Independent Director and other
Directors where appropriate, discuss governance and strategy with major shareholders and the Chairman ensures communication of
shareholders’ views to the Board. The Board also receives feedback on the views of shareholders from its corporate broker.

The Board believes that the Annual General Meeting provides an appropriate forum for investors to communicate with the Board, 
and encourages participation. The Annual Report and Accounts is, when possible, sent to shareholders at least 20 business days’ 
before the Annual General Meeting, which is normally attended by the full Board of Directors. Proceedings include a presentation 
on the activities of the Company. There is an opportunity for individual shareholders to question the chairmen of the Board, Audit 
and Remuneration Committees. Details of proxy votes received in respect of each resolution are made available to shareholders at the
meeting. The Board believes that the Company’s policy of reporting to shareholders as soon as possible after the Company’s year-end
is valuable. The Notice of Meeting on pages 81 to 85 sets out the business of the meeting.

Going concern

The Directors believe that it is appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts as the Company
has adequate financial resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

For this reason, and in accordance with IAS 10, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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Internal control

The Code requires the Board to at least annually conduct a review of the adequacy of the Group’s systems of internal control and
report to shareholders that it has done so. The Board has undertaken a full review of all the aspects of the Turnbull Guidance for
Directors, as revised in October 2005 (the “Turnbull Guidance”) under which the Board is responsible for the Group’s system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board has approved a detailed Risk Map identifying significant strategic,
investment-related, operational and service provider-related risks and has adopted an enhanced monitoring system to ensure that risk
management and all aspects of internal control are considered on a regular basis.

The Board believes that the key risks identified and the implementation of an ongoing system to identify, evaluate and manage these
risks are based upon and relevant to the Group’s business as an investment trust. The ongoing risk assessment, which has been in place
throughout the financial year and up to the date of this report, includes consideration of the scope and quality of the systems of internal
control (including whistleblowing polices where appropriate) adopted by major service providers, and ensures regular communication
of the results of monitoring by third parties to the Board, the incidence of significant control failings or weaknesses that have been
identified at any time and the extent to which they have resulted in unforeseen outcomes or contingencies that may have a material
impact on the Group’s performance or condition.

Although the Board believes that it has a robust framework of internal control in place this can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material financial mis-statement or loss and is designed to manage, not eliminate, risk.

The Company has appointed Deloitte & Touche LLP to review its risk profile. This process is underway and the findings will be
reported to the Audit Committee.
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42 Board committees

Audit Committee

The members of the Committee as at 31 December 2006 were: 

Charles Sinclair (Chairman) 

Anthony Habgood 

Denis Raeburn

Gary Steinberg was appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from 15 March 2007.

The Board considers each member of the Committee to be independent. The Board also considers that the Chairman of the
Committee has recent and relevant financial experience.

Terms of reference

The Company established an Audit Committee in 1996. The role of the Audit Committee is to ensure that the Company maintains
the highest standards of integrity in financial reporting and internal control. A copy of the full terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on request from the Company Secretary.

The responsibilities of the Committee include the following:

Financial statements

(a) to monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Company, and any formal announcements relating to the Company’s
financial performance, including reviewing significant financial reporting judgements contained in such financial statements or
formal announcements;

(b) to review and, if appropriate, recommend to the Board the Company’s annual and interim reports.

Internal control

(c) to monitor and review annually whether an internal audit function is required;

(d) to monitor the Company’s accounting and financial internal control systems, and to monitor the internal control systems 
of subsidiaries and to make recommendations on any improvements to such systems;

(e) to monitor the Company’s procedures for ensuring compliance with regulatory and financial reporting requirements and the
Company’s relationship with the relevant regulatory authorities;

External audit and relationship with the external auditor

(f) to oversee and discuss any matters arising from any services provided to the Company by the auditors, including the audit, 
and to discuss any recommendations made by the auditors, and to serve as the entity to which the auditors report directly;

(g) to make recommendations to the Board, for it to put to the shareholders for their approval in general meeting, in relation to the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement 
of the external auditor;

(h) to determine the appropriate funding, to be provided by the Company, for payment of compensation to the auditors and 
any independent counsel or other advisers employed by the Committee, and payment of the ordinary administrative expenses 
of the Committee;

(i) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, taking into
consideration relevant UK professional and regulatory requirements;

(j) to develop and implement policy on the engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services, taking into account
relevant ethical guidance regarding the provision of non-audit services by the external audit firm and to report to the Board on 
any matters in respect of which the Committee considers that action or improvement is needed and to make recommendations 
as to the steps to be taken;

(k) to consider other topics, as requested and defined by the Board; and

(l) to establish procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding accounting,
internal accounting controls or auditing matters, and procedures for the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of 
the Company of concerns regarding the same matters.

Report on the Committee’s activities

To discharge its duties, the Committee met on two occasions during 2006 and considered the following: 

• the annual financial statements for 2005 and interim financial statements for 2006

• the external auditors’ interim and year-end reports and management letters

• the effectiveness of the audit process

• the independence and objectivity of the external auditor

• pre-approval of non-audit services 

The Committee has also reviewed arrangements for staff of subsidiaries to raise concerns about possible improprieties relating to the
Group’s operations.

Attendance

Each of the meetings held during 2006 were attended by all members of the Committee with one exception. Mr Raeburn did not
attend the meeting held in September 2006.
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Investment Committee

The members of the Committee as at 31 December 2006 were:

Nicholas Ferguson (Chairman)

Francis Finlay

Anthony Habgood

Edgar Koning

Denis Raeburn

Charles Sinclair

Andrew Williams

Gary Steinberg was appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from 15 March 2007.

Terms of reference

The Company established an Investment Committee in 1996. A copy of the full terms of reference of the Investment Committee is
available on request from the Company Secretary.

The responsibilities of the Committee include the following:

• to review investment proposals for the Company

• to provide investment recommendations to the Board; and

• to implement the Board’s decision as regards to any investment

Report on the Committee’s activities

To discharge its duties, the Committee met on several occasions during 2006, and considered various investment proposals.

Attendance

Each of the meetings held during 2006 were attended by all members of the Committee.

Nominations Committee

The members of the Committee as at 31 December 2006 were:

Nicholas Ferguson (Chairman)

Damon Buffini

Francis Finlay

Anthony Habgood

Edgar Koning

Denis Raeburn

The Board considers a majority of the members of the Committee to be independent. 

Terms of reference

The Company established a Nominations Committee in 1999. The role of the Committee is to consider and make recommendations
to the Board on its composition and balance of skills and experience, and on individual appointments, to lead the process and make
recommendations to the Board. A copy of the full terms of reference of the Nominations Committee is available on request from the
Company Secretary. 

The responsibilities of the Committee include the following: 

(a) to evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board of Directors and to prepare a description of the role and
capabilities required for a particular appointment. In the case of the appointment of a Chairman, to prepare a job specification; 

(b) to select potential candidates to fill vacancies on the Board of Directors for recommendation to the Board; 

(c) to interview, or arrange for suitable Directors to interview, candidates for Directors; 

(d) to consider and, if appropriate, approve all outside appointments of executive Directors; 

(e) to review periodically the terms of appointment of the non-executive Directors; and 

(f) to consider whether a Senior Independent Director should be appointed and, if appropriate, to identify and recommend to the
Board suitable candidates for the role.

A formal procedure for the appointment of new Directors is contained in the Terms of Reference of the Committee. 

Report on the Committee’s activities

To discharge its duties, the Committee met on two occasions during 2006 and considered the following:

• an evaluation of the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board

• the selection of suitable candidates to fill a vacancy on the Board

• arranging for suitable candidates to be interviewed
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44 Board committees continued

The Committee considered the appointment of a non-executive Director during the year under review. On this occasion, an external
search consultancy was engaged to identify suitable candidates to fulfil the criteria established by the Committee.

Attendance

Each of the meetings held in 2006 were attended by all members of the Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The members of the Committee as at 31 December 2006 were: 

Francis Finlay (Chairman)

Anthony Habgood

Denis Raeburn

Gary Steinberg was appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from 15 March 2007.

The Board considers each member of the Committee to be independent. 

Terms of reference

The Company established a Remuneration Committee in 2001. The role of the Committee is to determine the remuneration policy
for executives, including executive Directors, of the SVG Group and the operation of the Company’s Executive Share Option Plan and
the proposed SVG Capital 2007 Performance Share Plan. A copy of the full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
available on request from the Company Secretary.

The responsibilities of the Committee include the following:

(a) to determine remuneration policy (including salaries, bonuses, pensions and other benefits) throughout the SVG Group, including: 

(i) to recommend to the Board the remuneration and benefits of executive Directors of SVG Capital; 

(ii) to review the overall remuneration costs and budgets for employees of the SVG Group; 

(iii) to approve annual bonus plans and to review performance against objectives; 

(iv) to make proposals for the level of fees payable to non-executive Directors; and 

(v) to approve exit packages on an individual basis and to oversee severance policy throughout the SVG Group.

(b) to operate the Company’s share option schemes and other incentive schemes (if any), including: 

(i) to determine grants of options to be made to eligible participants, including the setting of any performance targets to be met 
as a condition of the exercise of such options; 

(ii) to liaise with the trustees of the employee trusts operating in conjunction with the Company’s share option schemes and 
other incentive schemes (if any); 

(iii) to make amendments to the terms of such schemes (subject to the provisions of the schemes relating to amendment); and 

(iv) to agree, amend and approve all documents required in connection with the grant of options under, or the operations of, the
Company’s share option schemes, employee trusts and other incentive schemes (if any), execution of all such documents by
any Director or the Company Secretary, or where any documents are to be executed as a deed, by any two Directors or any
one Director and the Company Secretary. 

Report on the Committee’s activities

To discharge its duties, the Committee met on two occasions during 2006 and considered the following: 

• evaluation of remuneration philosophy and the structure of incentivisation and retention of executive Directors and key staff 

• approving the annual bonus proposals for recommendation to the Board 

• approving appropriate targets and long-term incentives for the executive Directors and key staff based on performance 

• review of the composition of the Committee 

• review of the operation of the Company’s share option schemes and approval of grant of options

• review of all aspects of remuneration within the SVG Capital Group with particular emphasis placed on long-term incentive provision

Attendance

Each of the meetings held in 2006 were attended by all members of the Committee.
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45Independent auditors’ report
to the shareholders of SVG Capital plc

We have audited the Group and parent Company financial statements (the “financial statements”) of SVG Capital plc for the year
ended 31 December 2006 which comprise the Consolidated and Company Income Statements, the Consolidated and Company
Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Change in
Equity and the related notes 1 to 33. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein. 
We have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. 
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state 
to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, 
or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

The Directors responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Remuneration Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable United Kingdom law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union 
are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial statements
and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985
and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also report to you whether, in our opinion, the
information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements. 

In addition, we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other
transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate governance statement reflects the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the 2006 
FRC Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. 
We are not required to consider whether the Board’s statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial statements.
The other information comprises only the Investment objective, Financial and operational highlights 2006, Chairman’s statement,
Chief Executive’s review, Business review, Board of Directors, Report of the Directors, the unaudited part of the Remuneration Report,
Corporate governance, Board Committees, Company Summary, Information for shareholders, Notice and Agenda, Advisers and the
Glossary. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent mis-statements or material inconsistencies
with the financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices
Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Group’s and Company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report
to be audited are free from material mis-statement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration
Report to be audited.

Opinion

In our opinion:

• the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the
Group’s and the parent Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of the Group’s and the parent Company’s profit for the year
then ended;

• the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation; and

• the information given in the Director’s Report is consistent with the financial statements.

Ernst & Young LLP
Registered auditor London
5 April 2007
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Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2006 For the year ended 31 December 2005

Revenue Capital Revenue Capital
return return Total return return Total

Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Gains on investments – gains on 
fair value through profit or loss – 198,038 198,038 – 142,451 142,451

Exchange (losses)/gains on other items (1) (6,845) (6,846) (63) 994 931

(1) 191,193 191,192 (63) 143,445 143,382

Operating income

Investment income 28,168 – 28,168 21,314 – 21,314

Other operating income 21,539 – 21,539 12,054 – 12,054

Total operating income 3 49,707 – 49,707 33,368 – 33,368

Operating expenses

Administrative expenses 4 (18,971) – (18,971) (14,079) – (14,079)

Other operating expenses – (389) (389) – (517) (517)

Total expenses (18,971) (389) (19,360) (14,079) (517) (14,596)

Operating profit/(loss) 30,736 (389) 30,347 19,289 (517) 18,772

Finance costs 7 (6,300) – (6,300) (4,588) – (4,588)

Profit before tax 24,435 190,804 215,239 14,638 142,928 157,566

Tax 9 (2,413) (737) (3,150) (328) (527) (855)

Profit for the year 22,022 190,067 212,089 14,310 142,401 156,711

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 11 21,957 190,026 211,983 14,300 142,274 156,574

Minority interest 65 41 106 10 127 137

Earnings per share

From continuing activities

Basic 11 158.0p 123.7p

Diluted 11 153.9p 113.7p

The total column of this statement represents the income statement of the Group, prepared in accordance with IFRS. 
The supplementary revenue return and capital return columns are both prepared under guidance published by the Association 
of Investment Trust Companies. All items in the above statement derive from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or
discontinued during the year.

The notes on pages 54 to 78 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Company income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2006 For the year ended 31 December 2005

Revenue Capital Revenue Capital 
return return Total return return Total

Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Gains on investments – gains on 
fair value through profit or loss – 197,214 197,214 – 143,203 143,203

Exchange (losses)/gains on other items – (6,683) (6,683) – 997 997

– 190,531 190,531 – 144,200 144,200

Operating income

Investment income 29,294 – 29,294 21,081 – 21,081

Other operating income 582 – 582 392 – 392

Total operating income 3 29,876 – 29,876 21,473 – 21,473

Operating expenses

Administrative expenses 4 (6,510) – (6,510) (1,868) – (1,868)

Other operating expenses – (389) (389) – (517) (517)

Total expenses (6,510) (389) (6,899) (1,868) (517) (2,385)

Operating profit/(loss) 23,366 (389) 22,977 19,605 (517) 19,088

Finance costs 7 (6,300) – (6,300) (4,588) – (4,588)

Profit before tax 17,066 190,142 207,208 15,017 143,683 158,700

Tax 9 (2,215) (885) (3,100) (276) (379) (655)

Profit for the year 11 14,851 189,257 204,108 14,741 143,304 158,045

Earnings per share

From continuing activities

Basic 11 152.1p 124.8p

Diluted 11 148.2p 114.8p

The total columns of this statement represents the income statement of the Company, prepared in accordance with IFRS. 
The supplementary revenue return and capital return columns are both prepared under guidance published by the Association 
of Investment Trust Companies. All items in the above statement derive from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or
discontinued during the year.

The notes on pages 54 to 78 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Share Share-
Share Share Revenue Capital option Other holders’ Minority Total

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves funds interest equity
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

For the year ended
31 December 2006

Profit for the year – – 21,957 190,026 – – 211,983 106 212,089

Dividends – – (3,985) – – – (3,985) (641) (4,626)

Issue of share options – – – – 1,885 – 1,885 – 1,885

Issue of shares on 
conversion of 
convertible bonds 10,208 38,792 – – – (7,446) 41,554 – 41,554

Issue of shares on exercise
of share options 72 214 – – – – 286 – 286

Issue costs – – – – – – – – –

Changes in equity 
for the year ended 
31 December 2006 10,280 39,006 17,972 190,026 1,885 (7,446) 251,723 (535) 251,188

Balance at 
31 December 2005 128,530 102,130 1,099 565,219 2,675 102,704 902,357 642 902,999

Balance at 
31 December 2006 138,810 141,136 19,071 755,245 4,560 95,258 1,154,080 107 1,154,187

For the year ended
31 December 2005

Profit for the year – – 14,300 142,274 – – 156,574 137 156,711

Issue of share options – – – – 1,425 – 1,425 – 1,425

Issue of shares via placing 6,000 30,000 – – – – 36,000 – 36,000

Issue costs – (492) – – – – (492) – (492)

Changes in equity 
for the year ended
31 December 2005 6,000 29,508 14,300 142,274 1,425 – 193,507 137 193,644

Balance at 
31 December 2004 122,530 72,622 (13,201) 422,945 1,250 102,704 708,850 505 709,355

Balance at 
31 December 2005 128,530 102,130 1,099 565,219 2,675 102,704 902,357 642 902,999

The notes on pages 54 to 78 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Company statement of changes in equity

Share Share-
Share Share Revenue Capital option Other holders’

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves funds
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

For the year ended 31 December 2006

Profit for the year – – 14,851 189,257 – – 204,108

Dividends – – (3,985) – – – (3,985)

Issue of share options – – – – 1,885 – 1,885

Issue of shares on conversion 
of convertible bonds 10,208 38,792 – – – (7,446) 41,554

Issue of shares on exercise 
of share options 72 214 – – – – 286

Issue costs – – – – – – –

Changes in equity for the year 
ended 31 December 2006 10,280 39,006 10,866 189,257 1,885 (7,446) 243,848

Balance at 31 December 2005 128,530 102,130 3,995 566,644 2,675 102,704 906,678

Balance at 31 December 2006 138,810 141,136 14,861 755,901 4,560 95,258 1,150,526

For the year ended 31 December 2005

Profit for the year – – 14,741 143,304 – – 158,045

Issue of share options – – – – 1,425 – 1,425

Issue of shares via placing 6,000 30,000 – – – – 36,000

Issue costs – (492) – – – – (492)

Changes in equity for the year 
ended 31 December 2005 6,000 29,508 14,741 143,304 1,425 – 194,978

Balance at 31 December 2004 122,530 72,622 (10,746) 423,340 1,250 102,704 711,700

Balance at 31 December 2005 128,530 102,130 3,995 566,644 2,675 102,704 906,678

The notes on pages 54 to 78 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at As at 
31 December 31 December

2006 2005 
Notes £’000 £’000

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 12 1,318 1,099

Investments designated as fair value through profit or loss 13 921,534 703,725

Deferred tax asset 2,595 38

925,447 704,862

Current assets

Financial assets 16 44,941 40,565

Other receivables 16 14,696 4,965

Cash and cash equivalents 16 295,468 205,006

355,105 250,536

Total assets 1,280,552 955,398

Current liabilities

Other payables 17 (15,970) (8,152)

Tax payable 17 (2,100) (42)

(18,070) (8,194)

Total assets less current liabilities 1,262,482 947,204

Non-current liabilities

Convertible loan notes 18 – (42,989)

Senior Notes 18 (106,330) –

Deferred staff compensation 18 (700) (689)

Deferred tax liability 18 (1,265) (527)

(108,295) (44,205)

Net assets 1,154,187 902,999

Equity

Called up share capital 20 138,810 128,530

Share premium account 21 141,136 102,130

Capital redemption reserve 22 3,204 3,204

Share purchase reserve 23 92,054 92,054

Share option reserve 24 4,560 2,675

Convertible loan notes – equity 25 – 7,446

Capital reserve 26 755,245 565,219

Revenue reserve 27 19,071 1,099

Shareholders’ funds 1,154,080 902,357

Minority interest 107 642

Total equity 1,154,187 902,999

Net asset value per ordinary share (“Shareholders’ funds”)

– undiluted 28 831.4p 702.1p

– diluted 28 810.1p 667.8p

The notes on pages 54 to 78 form an integral part of these accounts.

The Group’s financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 5 April 2007 and the balance sheets were
signed on behalf of the Board by:

Nicholas Ferguson 
Charles Sinclair
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Company balance sheet

As at As at
31 December 31 December

2006 2005
Notes £’000 £’000

Non-current assets

Investments designated as fair value through profit or loss 13 920,216 677,281

Investment in subsidiaries 15 10,684 61,775

930,900 739,056

Current assets

Financial assets 16 44,941 40,565

Other receivables 16 4,726 2,506

Cash and cash equivalents 16 283,874 170,102

333,541 213,173

Total assets 1,264,441 952,229

Current liabilities

Other payables 17 (6,320) (2,183)

Tax payable 17 – –

(6,320) (2,183)

Total assets less current liabilities 1,258,121 950,046

Non-current liabilities

Convertible loan notes 18 – (42,989)

Senior Notes 18 (106,330) –

Deferred tax liability 18 (1,265) (379)

(107,595) (43,368)

Net assets 1,150,526 906,678

Equity

Called up share capital 20 138,810 128,530

Share premium account 21 141,136 102,130

Capital redemption reserve 22 3,204 3,204

Share purchase reserve 23 92,054 92,054

Share option reserve 24 4,560 2,675

Convertible loan notes – equity 25 – 7,446

Capital reserve 26 755,901 566,644

Revenue reserve 27 14,861 3,995

Shareholders’ funds 1,150,526 906,678

Net asset value per ordinary share (“Shareholders’ funds”)

– undiluted 28 828.9p 705.4p

– diluted 28 807.5p 670.7p

The notes on pages 54 to 78 form an integral part of these accounts.

The Company’s financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 5 April 2007 and the balance sheets were
signed on behalf of the Board by:

Nicholas Ferguson 
Charles Sinclair
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Consolidated cash flow statement

As at As at
31 December 31 December

2006 2005
Notes £’000 £’000

Investment management and advisory fee income 14,775 11,819

Interest income 10,032 3,583

Other income 18,407 17,840

Expenses of the management and advisory group (12,203) (9,578)

Other expenses (2,810) (3,929)

Interest paid (5,299) (3,357)

Tax paid (2,902) (244)

Net cash from operating activities 29 20,000 16,134

Investing activities

Capital distributions from public equity funds/other investments 2,069 6,674

Capital distributions from private equity funds 289,485 268,113

Receipts in respect of warehoused funds 63,693 –

Purchases of public equity funds/other investments (14,359) (17,672)

Calls paid to private equity funds (296,966) (89,117)

Payments in respect of warehoused funds (68,571) (39,016)

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (465) (131)

Net cash (used)/from in investing activities (25,114) 128,851

Financing

Proceeds from share issues 286 36,000

Issue and listing costs of ordinary shares – (510)

Proceeds on issue of Senior Notes 113,073 –

Issue costs of Senior Notes (1,074) –

Dividends paid (4,626) –

Net cash from financing activities 107,659 35,490

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 102,545 180,475

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 205,006 25,148

Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (12,083) (617)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 295,468 205,006

The notes on pages 54 to 78 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Company cash flow statement

As at As at
31 December 31 December

2006 2005
Notes £’000 £’000

Interest income 9,304 2,372

Other income 19,533 18,335

Expenses (6,308) (4,284)

Interest paid (5,299) (3,357)

Tax (paid)/recovered (2,215) (267)

Net cash from operating activities 29 15,015 12,799

Investing activities

Capital distributions from public equity funds 2,069 6,674

Capital distributions from private equity funds 280,433 247,314

Receipts in respect of warehoused funds 63,693 –

Purchases of public equity funds/other investments (14,359) (17,672)

Calls paid to private equity funds (298,489) (86,231)

Payments in respect of warehoused funds (68,571) (39,016)

Capital distribution from investment subsidiary 37,602 –

Investment in subsidiary – (150)

Net cash from investing activities 2,378 110,919

Financing

Share placing 286 36,000

Issue and listing costs of ordinary shares – (510)

Proceeds on issue of Senior Notes 113,072 –

Issue costs of Senior Notes (1,074) –

Dividends paid (3,985) –

Net cash from financing activities 108,299 35,490

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 125,692 159,208

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 170,102 11,445

Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (11,920) (551)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 283,874 170,102

The notes on pages 54 to 78 form an integral part of these accounts.



54 Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company and the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”), which comprise standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”), and International Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee (“IASC”) that remain in effect, and to the extent that they have been adopted 
by the EU and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below. Where presentational guidance set out in the Statement of
Recommended Practice (“SORP”) for investment trusts issued by the Association of Investment Companies (“AIC”) in January
2005 is consistent with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), the financial statements have
been prepared on a basis compliant with the SORP.

The Group and Company financial statements are presented in sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds
(£’000) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and all entities controlled by the 
Company (its subsidiaries).

Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as 
to obtain benefits from its activities.

Financial statements of all Group companies are prepared for the same reporting period.

The interest of minority shareholders is stated at the minority’s proportion of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognised.
Subsequently, minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries that is not held by the Group 
and are presented separately in the income statement and within equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separately from parent
shareholders’ equity. However, any losses applicable to the minority interest in excess of the minority interest are allocated against the
interests of the parent.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with
those used by the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Presentation of income statement

In order to better reflect the activities of an investment trust company and in accordance with guidance issued by the AIC,
supplementary information which analyses the income statement between items of a revenue and capital nature has been presented
alongside the income statement. In accordance with the Company’s status as a UK investment company under Section 266 of the
Companies Act 1985, net capital returns may not be distributed by way of dividend.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the Company’s contractual right to the cash flow
from the asset expires or substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the contractual obligation is discharged, with gains and losses recognised in the income account.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where a purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at
fair value.

As the Company’s business is investing in financial assets with a view to profiting from their total return in the form of income or
capital gains, such financial assets are designated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. Incidental costs on
acquisition of such assets are expensed.

Financial assets designated as fair value through profit or loss are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value, which for
investment funds is at their net asset value based on the fair value of the underlying investments.

Quoted instruments are valued at either the bid price or the last traded price, depending on the convention of the exchange on
which the investment is quoted.

In respect of unquoted instruments, or where the market for a financial instrument is not active, fair value is established by using
recognised valuation methodologies, in accordance with International Private Equity and Venture Capital (“IPEVC”) Valuation
Guidelines. New investments are initially carried at cost, for a limited period, being the price of the most recent investment in the
investee. This is in accordance with IPEVC Guidelines as the cost of recent investments will generally provide a good indication
of fair value. Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction.

Gains and losses arising from investments, designated as investments held at fair value through profit or loss, are included in the
income statement in the period in which they arise. Foreign exchange gains and losses on fair value through profit or loss investments
are included within the changes in its fair value.
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1 Accounting policies continued

Derivative financial instruments 

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk associated with interest rate fluctuations. It is not the Group’s policy
to trade in derivative instruments. 

Derivative instruments are initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. 
Fair value is determined by reference to market values for similar instruments. 

Gains or losses arising in the fair value of cash flow hedges in the form of derivative instruments are taken directly to the statement 
of changes in equity. Such gains and losses are taken to the capital reserve in the balance sheet. 

On maturity or early redemption the realised gains or losses arising from cash flow hedges in the form of derivative instruments 
are taken to the income statement, with an associated transfer from the capital reserve to the revenue reserve in the statement 
of changes in equity in respect of unrealised gains or losses arising in the fair value of the same arrangement. 

The Group considers its interest rate swap qualifies for hedge accounting when the following criteria are satisfied: 

• the instrument must be related to an asset or liability; 

• it must change the character of the interest rate by converting a variable rate to a fixed rate or vice versa; and 

• it must match the principal amounts and maturity date of the hedged item.

Current financial assets

Financial assets purchased with a view to subsequent resale to an associated entity (“warehoused investments”) are carried at fair
value, being the proposed transfer price of the asset, and included in current assets.

Investments in subsidiaries

In its separate financial statements the Company recognises its investment in subsidiaries at cost, unless they are investment vehicles,
in which case they are included at fair value.

Investments in associates

In accordance with IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates’, the standard does not apply to investments held in associates by private equity
organisations that are designated as fair value through profit and loss. Such investments are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they occur.

An associate is an entity over which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence, but not control or joint control,
through participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee.

Bank borrowings and loan notes

Interest-bearing bank loans and loan notes issued are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges,
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the income
statement account using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that
they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Convertible loan notes

Convertible loan notes are regarded as compound instruments, consisting of a liability component and an equity component. 
At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar 
non-convertible debt. The difference between the proceeds of issue of the convertible loan notes and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the embedded option to convert the liability into equity of the Group, is included in equity. 
Issue costs are allocated proportionately to the liability and equity components. The carrying amount to maturity of the liability
component is measured at amortised cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Share-based payments

The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payments’. In accordance with the transitional provisions, IFRS 2 
has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as of 1 January 2005.

The cost of equity-settled share-based payments with employees of the Group are measured at fair value at the date of grant 
and recognised as an expense over the vesting period, which ends on the date on which the employees become unconditionally
entitled to the award. Fair value is determined by an external valuer using an appropriate valuation model. In valuing equity-settled
transactions, no account is taken of any non-market vesting conditions.

At each balance sheet date before vesting, the cumulative expense is calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and management’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The movement in
cumulative expense since the previous balance sheet date is recognised in the consolidated income statement, with a corresponding
entry in equity. No expense is recognised in the Company’s income statement as there are no options issued in consideration for the
provision of employee services to the Company.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount. Interest income is classified within operating activities in the cash flow statement.
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Notes to the accounts continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment has been established and is
classified within operating activities in the cash flow statement.

The Company’s revenue and capital gains are expected to be derived primarily from future distributions in respect of its holdings in
fund investments.

The Company will account for such distributions by reference to the underlying source of the distribution. Realised profits on 
capital distributions which arise from the realisation of investments within the funds will be credited to the income statement and
taken to the Company’s capital reserve. Income distributions will be credited to the income statement and taken to the Company’s
revenue reserve.

Management and advisory fee income are accrued over the period for which the service is provided.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also spread on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. All borrowing costs are charged directly to
revenue and are classified within operating activities in the cash flow statement.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due. The costs relating to 
defined benefit schemes are accounted for in the same way as for defined contribution schemes where the Group is unable to 
identify its share of the underlying performance and financial position of the plan with sufficient reliability for accounting purposes.
Such situations arise where the contributions payable by the Group are set in terms of the scheme as a whole and, as such, 
there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the Group’s obligations, plan assets, or costs.

Other employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is pounds Sterling. Transactions in currencies other than pounds Sterling are recorded at 
the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on
retranslation are included in net profit or loss for the period.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s overseas operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s capital reserve. 
Such translation differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Investment trusts which have approval under Section 842 Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 are not liable for taxation on
capital gains.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using 
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, 
in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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1 Accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost, including direct acquisition costs, less accumulated depreciation and any recognised
impairment loss.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost less estimated residual value of assets over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, on the following bases:

Telecommunications and office equipment 10% – 20%
Leasehold improvements 10%
Computer equipment 20% – 33%

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in income.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or circumstances indicate the 
carrying value may not be recoverable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment purposes.
Assets are classified as cash equivalents if they are readily convertible to cash and are not subject to significant changes in value. 
The Company has classified short-term bank deposits, investments in money market funds and short-dated treasury bills as 
cash equivalents.

Summary of new standards and interpretations not applied

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of standards and interpretations with an effective date after the date of these
financial statements will have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements in the period of initial application.
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2 Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into the following principal activities:

Investing activities

SVG Capital’s investment objective is to achieve capital appreciation by investing principally in private equity funds that are managed
or advised by Permira, an international private equity specialist. In addition, the Company invests in private equity funds that invest 
in Japan, North America, Asia and the life sciences sectors, and in unquoted and quoted businesses through specialist funds and 
co-investments alongside these funds. Investing activities are undertaken by SVG Capital plc and The Platinum Trust.

Investment management and advisory services

To complement this investment objective and create capital and income for the Company, its fund advisory business structures,
markets, manages and advises products for investment in private equity and in public equity using private equity techniques.

These activities are undertaken by SVG Advisers Limited, SVG Investment Managers Limited, SVG Advisers Inc. and SVG North
America Inc. Segment information about these business activities is presented below.

For the year ended 31 December 2006 For the year ended 31 December 2005

Investment Investment
management management

Investing and advisory Investing and advisory
activities services Total activities services Total

Group £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Total operating income 29,153 20,554 49,707 22,574 10,794 33,368

Share option costs – (3,115) (3,115) – (1,425) (1,425)

Other administrative expenses (2,600) (13,256) (15,856) (1,919) (10,735) (12,654)

Other operating expenses (389) – (389) (517) – (517)

Operating profit/(loss) 26,164 4,183 30,347 20,138 (1,366) 18,772

Finance costs (6,300) – (6,300) (4,588) – (4,588)

Gains on fair value through profit and loss 198,029 9 198,038 142,439 12 142,451

Exchange gains/(losses) (6,703) (143) (6,846) 997 (66) 931

Profit before tax 211,190 4,049 215,239 158,986 (1,420) 157,566

Total assets 1,256,508 25,048 1,281,556 945,672 9,726 955,398

Total liabilities (114,615) (12,754) (127,369) (45,620) (6,779) (52,399)

Net assets 1,141,893 12,294 1,154,187 900,052 2,947 902,999

For the year ended 31 December 2006 For the year ended 31 December 2005

Investment Investment
management management

Investing and advisory Investing and advisory
activities services Total activities services Total

Company £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Total operating income 29,876 – 29,876 21,473 – 21,473

Share option costs – – – – – –

Other administrative expenses (6,510) – (6,510) (1,868) – (1,868)

Other operating expenses (389) – (389) (517) – (517)

Operating profit/(loss) 22,977 – 22,977 19,088 – 19,088

Finance costs (6,300) – (6,300) (4,588) – (4,588)

Gains on fair value through profit and loss 197,214 – 197,214 143,203 – 143,203

Exchange gains (6,683) – (6,683) 997 – 997

Profit before tax 207,208 – 207,208 158,700 – 158,700

Total assets 1,265,445 – 1,265,445 952,229 – 952,229

Total liabilities (114,919) – (114,919) (45,551) – (45,551)

Net assets 1,150,526 – 1,150,526 906,678 – 906,678

Income arises mainly from UK operations. A geographical analysis of investments is included in note 14.
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3 Revenue
For the For the For the For the

year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Income from investments:

Income from money market instruments 9,127 9,127 2,999 2,999

Interest from funds and co-investments 158 158 156 156

Other income from funds and co-investments 18,249 19,375 17,568 17,335

Interest on warehoused funds 634 634 591 591

Other operating income:

Income from investment advisory services 20,273 – 10,603 –

Other interest receivable and other income 1,266 582 1,451 392

49,707 29,876 33,368 21,473

Represented by:

Interest 11,183 10,500 4,998 3,939

Income from investment advisory services 20,273 – 10,603 –

Other income from funds and co-investments 18,249 19,375 17,568 17,335

Other income 2 1 199 199

49,707 29,876 33,368 21,473

4 Administrative expenses
For the For the For the For the

year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Fees payable to SVG Advisers Limited – 4,026 – –

Fees payable to Schroder Investment Management Limited 359 316 388 345

Directors’ remuneration 1,380 372 1,465 345

Share option costs (including N.I.) 3,115 461 1,425 –

Staff costs (note 5) 10,170 – 7,561 –

Depreciation (note 12) 247 – 193 –

General expenses 3,541 1,238 2,851 1,036

Auditor’s remuneration

– Statutory audit fees 87 87 78 78

– Local statutory audit for subsidiaries 52 – 41 –

– Other assurance services – – – –

– Other services 20 10 77 64

18,971 6,510 14,079 1,868

The Company has no employees (2004: nil). The Directors are the only key management personnel of the Company.
Their remuneration is discussed in more detail in the Remuneration Report. The Company’s executive Director, Andrew Williams,
received remuneration of £1,008,000 in respect of his services to SVG Advisers Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary.

Statutory audit fees include costs relating to the filing of returns with the US Securities and Exchange Commission.
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5 Staff costs
For the For the For the For the

year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Wages and salaries 8,433 – 5,485 –

Social security costs 1,041 – 694 –

Pension costs (note 6) 696 – 1,382 –

10,170 – 7,561 –

The Company has no employees under contracts of employment. The average number of staff employed by the Group was:
For the For the

year ended year ended
31 December 31 December

2006 2005
Number Number

Full-time employees 43 32

Seconded staff 3 3

46 35

6 Pension costs

The charge for pension costs comprises:
For the For the For the For the

year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Defined benefit schemes 194 – 1,118 –

Money purchase schemes 502 – 264 –

696 – 1,382 –

The Group does not participate in a SVG Group pension scheme. Costs in respect of defined benefit schemes relate to payments 
due to the Schroders Retirement Benefits Scheme (“the Scheme”) in respect of four current and former employees, including 
the Company’s executive Director, seconded from Schroder Investment Management Limited to SVG Advisers Limited (“SVGA”), 
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. SVGA and the Scheme’s trustees, taking advice from the independent actuaries, 
agree the contributions.

In accordance with IAS 19, the Scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme on the basis that the Group is unable to
readily identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the Scheme at the balance sheet date as there is no consistent and
reliable basis for allocating the obligations, plan assets and costs to the Group. Further details of the Scheme can be found in the
Annual Report and Accounts of Schroders plc. In particular, the Scheme had 357 active members in the defined benefit section 
at 31 December 2006 and the accounts of Schroders plc disclosed a net pension asset in respect of the Scheme of £16.8 million,
calculated under IAS 19 based on valuations as at 1 January 2006 prepared by independent qualified actuaries.

7 Finance costs
For the For the For the For the

year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Convertible loan note interest 858 858 2,199 2,199

Amortisation of issue and listing costs plus premium
to redemption re convertibles (1,435) (1,435) 615 615

Senior note interest 3,389 3,389 – –

Amortisation of issue costs re senior notes 70 70 – –

Swap costs 11 11 – –

Loan facility finance costs 2,416 2,416 1,541 1,541

Amortisation of loan facility issue costs 935 935 233 233

Other interest 56 56 – –

6,300 6,300 4,588 4,588
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8 Operations in the year

There is a large degree of uncertainty and risk involved in investing in private equity and the results of the Group and the Company
are primarily dependent on the performance of its private equity fund investments. During the year ended 31 December 2006,
gains on investments amounted to £198.0 million (2005: £142.5 million) for the Group and £197.2 million (2005: £43.2 million)
for the Company.

As detailed in note 31, the Company has agreed that it should focus its future investments mainly on Permira Funds. As such, and
given that our largest exposures currently are to Permira Funds (see notes 19 and 33), we expect that the future performance of the
Company will be largely dependent on the future performance of the Permira Funds in which we invest.

9 Tax

(a) The charge for tax for the year is made up as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2006 For the year ended 31 December 2005

Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Group £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Current tax

Corporation tax 2,784 – 2,784 42 – 42

Double taxation relief – – – – – –

2,784 – 2,784 42 – 42

Income tax suffered by the venture funds – – – 9 – 9

Overseas tax 1,962 – 1,962 (3) – (3)

Prior year adjustment (15) – (15) 318 – 318

Total current tax (note 9(b)) 4,731 – 4,731 366 – 366

Deferred tax

Deferred tax (313) 737 425 36 527 563

Prior year adjustment (2,005) – (2,005) (74) – (74)

Total deferred tax (note 18) (2,318) 737 (1,581) (38) 527 489

Total tax (credit)/charge 2,413 737 3,150 328 527 855

For the year ended 31 December 2006 For the year ended 31 December 2005

Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Company £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Current tax

Corporation tax – – – – – –

Double taxation relief – – – – – –

– – – – – –

Income tax suffered by the venture funds – – – 9 – 9

Overseas tax 2,215 – 2,215 – – –

Prior year adjustment – – – 267 – 267

Total current tax (note 9(b)) 2,215 – 2,215 276 – 276

Deferred tax

Deferred tax – 885 885 – 379 379

Total deferred tax (note 18) – 885 885 – 379 379

Total tax (credit)/charge 2,215 885 3,100 276 379 655

There are no profits chargeable to corporation tax for the Company in the current year. Excess management expenses relating to the
venture fund investments are available to set against any taxable income of the Company. These excess management expenses are
included within the investments in venture funds in the balance sheet of the Company and are not reflected in the Company’s
revenue account. If in a future year in relation to the venture fund investments income exceeds expenses, the taxation charge to the
Company’s revenue account will include tax on this excess with a suitable note by way of explanation.
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9 Tax continued

(b) Factors affecting current tax charge for the year:

The tax assessed for the period is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK for a large company (30%). 
The differences are explained below:

For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended year ended

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2006 2005 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Profit before tax 215,239 207,208 157,566 158,700

Corporation tax at 30% 64,572 62,162 47,270 47,610

Effects of:

Non-taxable capital gains (57,241) (57,043) (43,034) (43,260)

Non-deductible expenses (174) – 191 170

Difference between accounting and taxable income from funds 362 362 (2,354) (2,354)

Losses brought forward utilised in the year (5,616) (5,481) (2,443) (2,166)

Depreciation of items not eligible for capital allowances 8 – 8 –

UK tax on income of overseas subsidiary 338 – – –

Income of subsidiary not taxable (86) – (315) –

Income taxable at higher rates 4 – 3 –

UK income tax – – 9 9

Prior year adjustments re overseas tax 2 – 11 –

Prior year adjustments re UK corporation tax (2,020) – 244 267

Marginal relief – UK smaller companies rate of tax – – (9) –

Temporary differences arising in the period on which deferred tax
is not recognised – – 315 –

Options costs temporarily disallowed in the period on which deferred tax 
is not recognised 49 – 427 –

Overseas tax 2,215 2,215 – –

Overseas deferred tax 737 885 527 379

Foreign exchange on consolidation – – 5 –

Total tax (credit)/charge for the year (note 9(a)) 3,150 3,100 855 655

10 Dividends
For the For the For the For the

year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Amounts recognised as distributions in the year:

Dividend of 3.1p (2005: nil) 3,985 3,985 – –

The dividend of 3.1p is based on 128,529,853 shares in issue.

In order to maintain investment trust status, the Directors intend to declare a final dividend of 7.5p per share out of available profits
for the year ended 31 December 2006. The total dividend payable in respect of the financial year and which will be taken into
account in determining the amount of net revenue retained under the requirements of Section 842 of the Income and Corporation
Taxes Act 1988, is set out below.

For the For the
For the For the year ended year ended

year ended year ended 31 December 31 December
31 December 31 December 2005 2005

2006 2006 Group Company
Group Company (restated) (restated)
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Dividend of 7.5p (2005: 3.1p) 10,411 10,411 3,985 3,985

The dividend is based on 138,810,137 (2005: 128,529,853) shares in issue.
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11 Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share, in accordance with IAS 33, is based on the following data:
For the For the For the For the

year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Earnings for the purposes of basic earnings per share being net profit 
attributable to equity holders of the parent 211,983 204,108 156,574 158,045

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:

Interest on convertible loan notes (net of tax) – – 1,970 1,970

Earnings for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 211,983 204,108 158,544 160,015

Number Number Number Number

Number of shares:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes 
of basic earnings per share 134,193,840 134,193,840 126,590,127 126,590,127

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:

Share options 3,536,482 3,536,482 2,599,452 2,599,452

Convertible loan notes – – 10,208,333 10,208,333

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes 
of diluted earnings per share 137,730,322 137,730,322 139,397,912 139,397,912

Earnings per share

Basic 158.0p 152.1p 123.7p 124.8p

Diluted 153.9p 148.2p 113.7p 114.8p

12 Property, plant and equipment (Group)
Telecom-

Leasehold munications
improve- Computer and office

ments equipment equipment Art Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost

At 1 January 2006 598 575 321 37 1,531

Additions 191 200 79 – 470

Disposals (8) (1) (12) – (21)

Exchange translation (1) (8) (4) – (13)

At 31 December 2006 780 766 384 37 1,967

Depreciation

At 1 January 2006 100 248 84 – 432

Charge for the year 70 131 46 – 247

Disposals (9) – (12) – (21)

Exchange translation (2) (5) (2) – (9)

At 31 December 2006 159 374 116 – 649

Net book value

At 31 December 2006 621 392 268 37 1,318

At 1 January 2006 498 327 237 37 1,099

Property, plant and equipment are assets of SVG Capital’s subsidiary companies.
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12 Property, plant and equipment (Group) continued
Telecom-

munications
Leasehold Computer and office

improvements equipment equipment Art Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost

At 1 January 2005 586 507 308 37 1,438

Additions 11 105 10 – 126

Disposals – (44) – – (44)

Exchange translation 1 7 3 – 11

At 31 December 2005 598 575 321 37 1,531

Depreciation

At 1 January 2005 39 194 44 – 277

Charge for the year 60 94 39 – 193

Disposals – (44) – – (44)

Exchange translation 1 4 1 – 6

At 31 December 2005 100 248 84 – 432

Net book value

At 31 December 2005 498 327 237 37 1,099

At 1 January 2005 547 313 264 37 1,161

13 Investments

(a) Group
Private equity Public equity

funds and funds and Private equity Public equity
co- other Total funds and funds and other Total

investments investments portfolio co-investments investments portfolio
2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005

Fair value through profit or loss assets £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Valuation brought forward 674,054 29,671 703,725 714,093 15,179 729,272

Calls and purchases payable 296,966 14,359 311,325 88,089 18,700 106,789

Distributions and sales receivable (289,485) (2,069) (291,554) (268,113) (6,674) (274,787)

Gains on investments 190,956 7,082 198,038 139,985 2,466 142,451

Valuation carried forward 872,491 49,043 921,534 674,054 29,671 703,725

(b) Company
Private equity Public equity

funds and funds and Private equity Public equity
co- other Total funds and funds and other Total

investments investments portfolio co-investments investments portfolio
2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005

Fair value through profit or loss assets £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Valuation brought forward 647,610 29,671 677,281 682,648 15,179 697,827

Calls and purchases payable 298,489 14,359 312,848 85,203 18,700 103,903

In-specie transfer of funds * 18,257 – 18,257 – – –

Distributions and sales receivable (280,433) (2,069) (282,502) (247,314) (6,674) (253,988)

Gains on investments 187,250 7,082 194,332 127,073 2,466 129,539

Valuation carried forward 871,173 49,043 920,216 647,610 29,671 677,281

* The in-specie transfer of funds relate to a capital distribution from Platinum Trust, a subsidiary company, to SVG Capital plc in April 2006 (see note 15).

Total gains of £197,214,000 (2005: £143,203,000) shown in the Company’s income statement also include gains on subsidiaries
during the year of £2,882,000 (2005: £13,664,000).

SVG
 C

apital plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2006

SVG
 C

apital plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2006

Financial inform
ation



SVG
 C

apital plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2006

Financial inform
ation

65

14 Geographical analysis of investments
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Private equity funds and co-investments:

Europe 722,798 722,203 519,405 512,055

Total Europe 722,798 722,203 519,405 512,055

Asia

Asia Pacific 67,036 66,313 55,813 45,310

Japan 20,514 20,514 30,160 21,613

Total Asia 87,550 86,827 85,973 66,923

North America

Canada 3,835 3,835 4,196 4,196

United States* 58,308 58,308 64,480 64,436

Total Americas 62,143 62,143 68,676 68,632

Total private equity funds and co-investments 872,491 871,173 674,054 647,610

Public equity funds (UK investment focus):

Strategic Equity Capital plc 14,438 14,438 14,775 14,775

SVG UK Focus Fund 13,161 13,161 11,041 11,041

SVG Alpha Fund 1,050 1,050 – –

Strategic Recovery Fund – – 1,968 1,968

Strategic Recovery Fund ll – co-investment 1,569 1,569 – –

Total UK listed equity funds 30,218 30,218 27,784 27,784

Other investments 18,825 18,825 1,887 1,887

Total investment portfolio 921,534 920,216 703,725 677,281

* SV Life Sciences Fund II, SV Life Sciences Fund III and SV Life Sciences Fund IV have been included within the United States.

Allocations are based on the expected geographical focus of the funds.

All private equity funds held by the Group are unlisted. However, some of the underlying companies held within those funds are
listed. Included in the value of total private equity funds and co-investments of £872,491,000 are gross valuations of listed
investments amounting to £161,532,000 (31 December 2005: £257,504,000).

Significant interests in investment funds

Details of investments in which the Company or Group has an interest of 10% or more of any class of share/units are detailed in 
the list of investments on pages 28 and 29. All of these private equity funds are managed or advised by Permira or the old Schroder
Ventures network.

In addition, SVG Capital has a 7% interest in the I Class units of the SVG UK Focus Fund, a Dublin-listed OEIC managed by 
SVG Investment Managers Limited, a 22% interest in the SVG Alpha Fund and a 21% interest in Strategic Equity Capital plc, 
a UK-listed investment trust managed by SVG Investment Managers Limited. In addition, the Company has made a £13.3 million
commitment to co-invest alongside the Strategic Recovery Fund II.
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15 Investments in subsidiaries
Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December
2006 2005

Company Company
£’000 £’000

Cost at the beginning of the year 31,187 29,612

Cash contribution – 150

Capital contribution in respect of options granted over SVG Capital shares 1,885 1,425

Distributions from Platinum Trust:

–  in-specie distribution of Funds (18,257) –

–  cash distribution (37,602) –

–  realised profit on distribution 31,847 –

Cost at the end of the year 9,060 31,187

Net unrealised gain on investment at the end of the year 1,624 30,588

Carrying value at the end of the year 10,684 61,775

In accordance with IFRS 2, the fair value amount of options issued that have been charged in the income statements of SVG Advisers
Limited and SVG Advisers Inc. are treated as a non-refundable contribution to subsidiaries and added to the cost of subsidiaries in 
SVG Capital’s accounts. 

As an investment vehicle, the Platinum Trust is included in the Company’s balance sheet at its fair value of £1,624,000 
(31 December 2005: £54,600,000). The other subsidiaries are operating companies rather than investment vehicles and are included
at cost. SVG Advisers Limited is included at cost of £8,810 (31 December 2005: £6,925,000). SVG Investment Managers Limited is
included at cost of £250,000 (31 December 2005: £250,000). SVG North America Inc. and SVG Advisers Inc. are wholly owned
subsidiaries of SVGA. SVG LLP is included at cost of £122.

Subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2006:
Profit after tax

Country of Number and Capital and for the
registration, class of reserves at year ended

incorporation shares/units 31 December 31 December
and held by the Group 2006 2006

Company and business operation Group holding £’000 £’000

The Platinum Trust (unit trust)
– investment Guernsey 23,112 ‘A’ units(1) 99% 1,732 4,113

900 ‘B’ units(1) 90%

SVG Advisers Limited
– advisory and administration services UK 4,250,000 100% 12,850 8,510

ordinary shares(2)

SVG North America Inc.
– broker/dealer US 3,000 common shares(3) 100% 107 9

SVG Advisers Inc.
– investment adviser US 100 common shares(4) 100% 581 (635)

SVG Investment Managers Limited
– investment manager UK 250,000 100% 376 1

ordinary shares(5)

SVG Strand LLP
– special limited partner UK 122 units 98% – –

(1) On termination of The Platinum Trust, the ‘B’ units (non-equity) are entitled to a return of the original amount subscribed. The ‘A’ units (equity) are entitled to the
remaining net assets. In April 2006, Platinum Trust distributed cash and private equity funds to SVG Capital plc. The total value of these distributions amounted to
£55.9 million.

(2) The Company acquired 100 ordinary £1 shares in SVG Advisers Limited (“SVGA”) for £100 on 18 June 2001. On 26 June 2001, SVGA issued 749,900 ordinary £1 shares
to the Company for £749,900. On 22 April 2002, SVGA issued a further 750,000 ordinary £1 shares to the Company for £750,000. On 19 December 2002, SVGA issued a
further 1,500,000 ordinary £1 shares to the Company for £1,500,000. On 29 April 2004, SVGA issued a further 1,250,000 ordinary £1 shares to the Company for
£1,250,000.

The Company has also granted options over its own shares to employees of SVGA. In accordance with IFRS 2, the fair value of such options, at the date of grant, are
accounted for as a contribution to SVGA. The total cost of options accounted for as an investment in subsidiary amounted to £2,675,000 at 31 December 2005.

(3) SVG North America Inc. (“SVGNA”) is a subsidiary of SVGA. SVGA acquired SVGNA on 18 June 2001 for US$50,000 and subscribed for additional paid-in capital of
US$250,000 in the year ended 30 June 2002. On 31 December 2005, SVGNA repaid US$275,000 of capital to SVGA. This amount was immediately reinvested in SVGA Inc.

(4) SVG Advisers Inc. (“SVGA Inc.”) is also a subsidiary of SVGA. SVGA Inc. commenced operations on 1 January 2003. SVGA acquired 100 common US$1 shares for
US$100 on 13 December 2002. SVGA subscribed for additional paid-in capital of US$141,463 during the year ended 31 December 2004. On 31 December 2005, SVGA
subscribed for US$275,000 of additional capital in SVGA Inc.

(5) The Company acquired 100 ordinary £1 shares in SVG Investment Managers Limited (“SVG IM”) for £100 on 16 October 2002. On 16 May 2003, SVG IM issued
99,900 ordinary £1 shares to the Company for £99,900. On 4 May 2005, a further 150,000 shares were issued to the Company for £150,000.
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16 Current assets
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
Financial assets £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Warehoused fund investments* 44,941 44,941 40,565 40,565

44,941 44,941 40,565 40,565

* Further details on warehoused fund investments are included in note 31. Further calls and distributions in respect of warehoused funds have been made following 
the year-end.

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
Other receivables £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Amounts owed by subsidiaries – – – 187

Interest receivable 2,582 2,546 1,803 1,722

Prepayments and other debtors 4,978 2,180 1,524 597

Accrued investment advisory fee income 7,136 – 1,638 –

14,696 4,726 4,965 2,506

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
Cash and cash equivalents £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Bank balances and short-term deposits 7,001 5,038 36,978 2,074

Money market funds 47,714 38,083 40,713 40,713

Treasury bills 240,753 240,753 127,315 127,315

295,468 283,874 205,006 170,102

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk 
of change in value, other than those arising from fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.

Cash at bank and investments in money market funds earn interest at floating rates. Short-term deposits are typically made for 
periods of between one week and three months, earning interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. Treasury bills earn 
a yield to redemption.

17 Current liabilities
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
Other payables £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Amounts owed to subsidiaries – 319 – 93

Finance costs 4,256 4,256 684 684

Other creditors and accruals 11,714 1,745 7,468 1,406

15,970 6,320 8,152 2,183

Borrowings

During the year, the Company replaced its b285 million loan facility with an increased facility of b600 million (£404.3 million) 
with the Royal Bank of Scotland plc and HBOS plc. No drawdowns were made under the facility during the year ended 
31 December 2006, although b114.4 million (£77.1 million) was effectively utilised by way of a guarantee over SVG Capital’s
commitments to SVG Diamond Holdings Limited and SVG Diamond Holdings II Limited (note 19).

Tax payable
For the For the For the For the

year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2006 2006 2005 2005
Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Current tax liability – corporation tax

Balance brought forward 42 – – –

Corporation tax paid (711) – – –

Corporation tax charged to income statement (note 9(a)) 2,784 – 42 –

Prior year adjustment (15) – – –

Balance carried forward 2,100 – 42 –
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18 Non-current liabilities
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

4.5% Subordinated Convertible Bonds 2013 – Nominal – – 49,000 49,000

Unamortised premium, issue and listing costs – – (6,011) (6,011)

Convertible loan notes – – 42,989 42,989

Senior Notes 2013 106,330 106,330 – –

Deferred staff compensation 700 – 689 –

Deferred tax liability 1,265 1,265 527 379

108,295 107,595 44,205 43,368

Non-current liabilities include £107.3 million of Senior unsecured loan Notes on 18 July 2006 via a private placement and are
repayable on 18 July 2013. Further details of the Notes are provided in the following table:

31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

US$170 million 7.10% Fixed Rate Series A Senior Notes due 18 July 2013 86,859 86,859 – –

320 million 5.57% Fixed Rate Series B Senior Notes due 18 July 2013 13,475 13,475 – –

£7 million Floating Rate Series C Senior Notes due 18 July 2013 7,000 7,000 – –

107,334 107,334 – –

Unamortised issue costs (1,004) (1,004) – –

106,330 106,330 – –

On 18 July 2006, the Company also entered into an interest rate swap agreement with The Royal Bank of Scotland plc to effectively
fix the interest payments under the Series C Notes at a rate of 6.65% per annum.

Issue costs are charged to the revenue account over the term of the Senior Notes.

During the year the 2013 convertible bonds were fully converted into 10,208,327 ordinary shares at a conversion price of 480p 
per share.

Deferred staff compensation relates to obligations in respect of SVG Advisers Inc. under a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan.

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 30% (2005: 30%). 
The deferred tax liability relates entirely to overseas tax expected to be payable in respect of one of our private equity funds. 
A deferred tax liability of £1,265,000 (2005: £527,000) has been recognised by SVG Capital plc in respect of potential Japanese tax
that could become payable on the realisation of assets within the Company’s Japanese funds.

A deferred tax asset of £277,000 (2005: £38,000) has been recognised by SVG Advisers Inc. in respect of US taxation. A deferred tax
asset of £2,318,000 (2005: nil) has been recognised in respect of SVG Advisers Ltd.

A deferred tax asset of £16.7 million (2005 – restated: £14.3 million), of which £5.1 million (2005 – restated: £2.2 million) would 
have been recognised in equity, relating to losses and other temporary differences, has not been recognised as there is insufficient
evidence that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which these losses and temporary differences can be utilised. The excess
management expenses and other temporary differences to which this unrecognised asset relates are available indefinitely for offset
against future taxable profits.

Excess unrelieved foreign tax of £2.2 million (2005: nil) has not been recognised as a deferred tax asset as there is insufficient evidence
that there will be sufficient taxable profit in the future against which it could be utilised.
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19 Capital commitments and contingencies

At 31 December 2006, the Group had uncalled commitments to its fund investments as follows:
2006 2006 2005

Uncalled Uncalled Uncalled
commitment commitment* commitment*

(local currency) £m £m

Private equity funds

Permira Europe II 316.3m 11.0 58.5

Permira Europe III 385.2m 57.4 195.1

Permira IV 32,264.9m 1,526.0 –

P123 313.3m 9.0 14.4

P1234 37.7m 5.2 –

P25 382.0m 55.2 –

SVG Sapphire IV 314.0m 9.4 –

SV Investments Fund I US$0.3m 0.2 6.2

SV Life Sciences Fund II US$4.5m 2.3 3.9

SV Life Sciences Fund III US$25.1m 12.8 19.7

SV Life Sciences Fund IV US$50.0m 25.5 –

The Japan Fund IV ¥7,147.0m 30.6 31.0

Public equity funds

The Strategic Recovery Fund II £11.9m 11.9 –

Generalist funds of funds

Key Capital SVG CLO Equity Fund 310.0m 6.7 –

SVG Diamond Holdings Limited 352.8m 35.6 35.3

SVG Diamond Holdings II Limited 361.6m 41.5 –

Total 1,840.3 364.1

* Based on exchange rates at 31 December 2006.

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the Company used its b600 million (£404.3 million) loan facility to guarantee its uncalled
commitments of b114.4 million (£77.1 million) to SVG Diamond Holdings Limited and SVG Diamond Holdings II Limited.

Operating leases

The Group has the following obligations under operating leases:
< 1 year 1–5 years > 5 years Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

As at 31 December 2006

Operating lease obligation 400 500 – 900

As at 31 December 2005

Operating lease obligation 400 900 – 1,300
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20 Share capital
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Authorised:

200,000,000 shares of £1.00 each 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

Allotted, called up and fully paid:

Opening balance of 128,529,853 shares of £1.00 each 128,530 128,530 122,530 122,530

Issue of ordinary shares on conversion of bonds 10,208 10,208 – –

Issue of ordinary shares on exercise of options 72 72 – –

Placing of new ordinary shares – – 6,000 6,000

Closing balance of 138,810,137 shares of £1.00 each 138,810 138,810 128,530 128,530

Issue of shares

On 13 June 2006, the Company issued 10,208,327 ordinary shares on conversion of £49.0 million nominal of the 2013 
convertible bonds.

Options over ordinary shares

During the year, 725,427 options were granted (2005: 1,147,272), 71,957 (2005: Nil) options were exercised during the year and
4,267 (2005: 11,666) lapsed. 

At 31 December 2006, 8,545,701 (2005: 7,896,498) options to subscribe for ordinary shares were outstanding, as detailed below:
31 December 31 December

Options Options Options 2006 2005
granted in exercised in lapsed in Exercise price number number

Issue date Latest exercise date the year the year the year per share in issue in issue

June 2001 June 2011 – 42,682 – 410.0p 2,756,091 2,798,773

June 2001 June 2011 – – – 405.5p 28,359 28,359

April 2002 April 2012 – 5,979 – 334.5p 1,327,497 1,333,476

April 2002 April 2012 – – – 335.0p 14,476 14,476

March 2003 March 2013 – 23,296 – 392.75 1,160,274 1,183,570

March 2003 March 2013 – – – 397.50 18,616 18,616

October 2003 October 2013 – – – 493.0p 51,723 51,723

March 2004 March 2014 – – – 479.0p 1,292,882 1,292,882

March 2004 March 2014 – – 1,768 492.0p 31,583 33,351

March 2005 March 2015 – – – 564.0p 1,111,860 1,111,860

March 2005 March 2015 – – 1,496 569.5p 27,916 29,412

March 2006 March 2016 694,931 – – 831.4p 694,931 –

March 2006 March 2016 30,496 – 1,003 832.0p 29,493 –

725,427 71,957 4,267 8,545,701 7,896,498

For all options in issue, the performance target is for growth in the Company’s net asset value per ordinary share to exceed the
growth in the Retail Prices Index plus 4% per annum over the 3 years from the date of grant.

The performance target has been met for all options issued by the end of March 2004.

For all subsequent options, if the performance target is not met on the 3rd anniversary of the grant date, they lapse (i.e. there will be
no re-testing of the performance condition).
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20 Share capital continued

Share-based payments

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was 220.7p (2005: 162.3p). The range of exercise prices for
options outstanding at the year-end was 334.5p to 832.0p (2005: 334.5p to 569.5p). The weighted average exercise price of options
in issue at the year end was 463.3p (2005: 429.1p). All options in issue will be equity-settled.

The mid-market price of shares at 31 December 2006 was 834.5p and the range during the year was 695.0p to 839.0p. 

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted is estimated as at the date of grant using a stochastic model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. 

The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2005.
2006 2005

Dividend yield (%) 0 0

Expected share price volatility (%) 18 19

Historical volatility (%) 18 19

Risk-free interest rate (%) 4.4 4.8

Expected life of options (years) 5.7 5.7

Weighted average share price (pence) 832 570

The expected life of the options is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. 
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other features of options grant were incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

21 Share premium account
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance brought forward 102,130 102,130 72,622 72,622

Premium on shares issued on conversion of bonds 38,792 38,792 – –

Premium on issue of shares on exercise of options 214 214 – –

Premium on issue of shares via placing – – 29,508 29,508

Balance carried forward 141,136 141,136 102,130 102,130

22 Capital redemption reserve
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance brought forward and carried forward 3,204 3,204 3,204 3,204

This reserve represents the nominal amount of the Company’s own shares that have been purchased for cancellation. The amounts
included in this reserve represent transfers from the Company’s share capital account.

23 Share purchase reserve
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance brought forward and carried forward 92,054 92,054 92,054 92,054

On 24 June 1998, the Company obtained permission from the High Court to cancel its share premium account (in existence at that
date) and set up a new distributable reserve, the share purchase reserve, against which the cost of purchasing the Company’s own
shares for cancellation can be debited.

24 Share option reserve
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance brought forward 2,675 2,675 1,250 1,250

Fair value charge re options issued 1,885 1,885 1,425 1,425

Balance carried forward 4,560 4,560 2,675 2,675

The Group’s share option reserve represents the fair value amounts in respect of options issued that have been charged through the
income statements of SVG Advisers Limited and SVG Advisers Inc. The Company’s share option reserve represents the corresponding
amount included in SVG Capital’s accounts as a contribution to subsidiaries (note 15).
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25 Convertible loan notes – equity
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance brought forward 7,446 7,446 7,446 7,446

Released on conversion of bonds (7,446) (7,446) – –

Balance carried forward – – 7,446 7,446

This reserve represents the equity component of the convertible loan notes, which were converted in full into ordinary shares in
June 2006.

26 Capital reserves
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance brought forward 565,219 566,644 422,945 423,340

Profit for the year 190,026 189,257 142,274 143,304

Balance carried forward 755,245 755,901 565,219 566,644

This reserve represents cumulative capital profits. As an investment trust (defined by the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988), 
the Company is prohibited by its Articles of Association from distributing as dividend any surpluses arising from the realisation 
of investments.

27 Revenue reserve
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance brought forward 1,099 3,995 (13,201) (10,746)

Dividend (3,985) (3,985) – –

Profit/(loss) for the year 21,957 14,851 14,300 14,741

Balance carried forward 19,071 14,861 1,099 3,995

As an investment company (defined by the Companies Act 1985, as amended), the Company’s revenue reserve represents its profits
available for distribution.

28 Net asset value per ordinary share (“Shareholders’ funds”)
31 December 2006 31 December 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Basic 831.4p 828.9p 702.1p 705.4p

Diluted 810.1p 807.5p 667.8p 670.7p

Calculation of the net asset values per share are based on Group net assets attributable to equity shareholders of the parent of
£1,154,080,000 (31 December 2005: £902,357,000), Company net assets of £1,150,526,000 (31 December 2005: £906,678,000)
and on 138,810,137 (31 December 2005: 128,529,853) ordinary shares in issue at the year end.

The Group diluted net asset values per share assume that share options (note 20) with a strike price lower than the undiluted net
asset value per share are exercised at the balance sheet date. This would result in the issue of 8,516,208 ordinary shares
(31 December 2005: 7,896,498) for consideration of £39,346,000 (31 December 2005: £33,871,000).

The Company diluted net asset values per share assume that share options (note 20) with a strike price lower than the undiluted
net asset value per share are exercised at the balance sheet date. This would result in the issue of 7,821,277 ordinary shares
(31 December 2005: 7,896,498) for consideration of £33,568,000 (31 December 2005: £33,871,000).

Therefore, the calculation of the diluted net asset value per share of the Group is based on Group net assets attributable to equity
shareholders of £1,193,426,000 (31 December 2005: £979,217,000), and on 147,326,345 (31 December 2005: 146,634,684)
ordinary shares in issue at the year end.  The diluted net asset per share of the Company is based on Company net assets of
£1,184,090,000 (31 December 2005: £983,538,000) and on 146,631,414 (2005: 146,634,684) ordinary shares.
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29 Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2006 2005 2005

Group Company Group Company
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Profit before tax 215,239 207,208 157,566 158,700

Adjustments for:

Gains on investments (198,038) (197,214) (142,451) (143,203)

Exchange losses/(gains) on other items 6,846 6,683 (931) (997)

Finance costs 6,300 6,300 4,588 4,588

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 247 – 193 –

Share option expense 1,885 – 1,425 –

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 32,479 22,977 20,390 19,088

(Increase)/decrease in receivables (8,497) (1,162) (813) (726)

Increase/(decrease) in payables 4,219 714 158 (1,939)

Cash generated by operations 28,201 22,529 19,735 16.423

Taxes (paid)/recovered (5,299) (2,215) (244) (267)

Interest paid (2,902) (5,299) (3,357) (3,357)

Net cash from/(used) in operating activities 20,000 15,015 16,134 12,799

Purchases and sales of investments are considered to be investing activities rather than operating activities.

30 Analysis of changes in net cash/(debt)
Cash and cash Short-term Long-term Net

For the year ended 31 December 2006 equivalents debt debt cash/(debt)
Group £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance brought forward 205,006 – (42,989) 162,017

Foreign exchange movements (12,083) – 5,739 (6,344)

Debt conversion – – 42,989 42,989

Amortisation of issue costs  – – (71) (71)

Cash flow 102,545 – (111,998) (9,453)

Balance carried forward 295,468 – (106,330) 189,138

Cash and cash Short-term Long-term Net
For the year ended 31 December 2005 equivalents debt debt cash/(debt)
Group £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance brought forward 25,148 – (42,374) (17,226)

Foreign exchange movements (617) – – (617)

Debt conversion – – – –

Amortisation of issue and listing costs and convertible premium to redemption – – (615) (615)

Cash flow 180,475 – – 180,475

Balance carried forward 205,006 – (42,989) 162,017
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30 Analysis of changes in net cash/(debt) continued
Cash and cash Short-term Long-term Net

For the year ended 31 December 2006 equivalents debt debt cash/(debt)
Company £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance brought forward 170,102 – (42,989) 127,113

Foreign exchange movements (11,920) – 5,739 (6,181)

Debt conversion – – 42,989 42,989

Amortisation of issue costs – – (71) (71)

Cash flow 125,692 – (111,998) 13,694

Balance carried forward 283,874 – (106,330) 177,544

Cash and cash Short-term Long-term Net
For the year ended 31 December 2005 equivalents debt debt cash/(debt)
Company £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance brought forward 11,445 – (42,374) (30,929)

Foreign exchange movements (551) – – (551)

Debt conversion – – – –

Amortisation of issue and listing costs and convertible premium to redemption – – (615) (615)

Cash flow 159,208 – – 159,208

Balance carried forward 170,102 – (42,989) 127,113

31 Related party transactions

Nicholas Ferguson and Andrew Williams are members of the Advisory Committees of certain of the Permira funds in which the
Company invests. They do not receive fees for these services.

Nicholas Ferguson and members of his family and Andrew Williams have an interest in the Carried Interest in respect of certain private
equity funds. With the introduction of the Executive Share Option Plan in May 2001, Nicholas Ferguson and Andrew Williams gave
up a portion of their entitlement to Carried Interest on existing private equity funds and any entitlement they may have to Carried
Interest on certain private equity funds launched after 2001 in return for share options granted by the Company under the Executive
Share Option Plan. Nicholas Ferguson and Andrew Williams also participate in the Schroder Ventures Co-Investment Scheme and
Schroder Ventures Investments Limited. They have received no new carried interest allocations and made no new commitments since
they joined SVG Capital in 2001.

As detailed in the Remuneration Report, the Company’s Chief Executive, Andrew Williams, is employed by 
Schroder Investment Management Limited and is a member of Schroders Retirement Benefits Scheme. Mr Williams is seconded 
to SVG Advisers, which pays all the costs of his employment.

Damon Buffini has an interest in 6 million SVG shares since he has an interest in Permira Holdings Limited, the parent of 
Permira Capital Limited which owns 6 million SVG shares. Further, Permira Holdings Limited is a party to an operating agreement
with the Company dated 21 March 2005 (more particularly described in a Circular to shareholders dated 24 March 2005) 
pursuant to which (a) SVG Capital Group has committed to be the major investor in future funds designed, managed or advised by
entities in the Permira Group and during the term of that agreement is entitled to access to such funds; and (b) SVG Capital Group
has agreed not to commit to any private equity fund or product for direct investment, other than agreed commitments to other
private equity funds and Japan funds, which are not designed, managed or advised by entities in the Permira Group. As a result of 
Mr Buffini’s interest in the Permira entities described above, Mr Buffini will not participate in any decisions relating to commitments
made, or which may be made, by SVG Capital Group to any funds or products designed, managed or advised by entities in the
Permira Group.

No other Director has any material interest in any other contract that is significant to the Company’s business.

The Directors are the only key management personnel of the Company. Details of their remuneration are included in the
Remuneration Report.
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31 Related party transactions continued

The Company invests in a number of funds for which its subsidiary companies, SVG Advisers Limited (“SVGA”) or SVG Investment
Managers Limited (“SVG IM”), act as either investment adviser or investment manager and receive fees for their services. The
following table details funds managed or advised by SVG IM or SVGA that are also part of SVG Capital’s investment portfolio.
Investment Manager/Adviser Uncalled commitment £m Valuation £m

Permira feeder vehicles:

P123 SVG IM/SVGA 9.0 63.9

P1234 SVGA 5.2 36.7

P25 SVGA 55.2 32.9

SVG Sapphire IV SVGA 9.4 –

Generalist funds of funds:

SVG Diamond Holdings SVGA 35.6 3.1

SVG Diamond Holdings II SVGA 41.5 –

Key Capital SVG CLO Equity Fund Key Capital/SVGA 6.7 10.1

Public equity vehicles:

SVG Focus Fund SVG IM – 13.2

SVG Alpha Fund SVG IM – 1.1

Strategic Equity Capital plc SVG IM – 14.4

Strategic Recovery Fund II co-investment SVG IM 11.9 1.6

Aegon is the largest investor in SVG Capital plc and also invests in a number of other funds advised by SVGA. As a substantial investor
in SVG funds, Aegon has negotiated certain fee rebates on funds in which it invests (not including SVG Capital plc).

The Company has warehoused various private equity fund investments for subsequent transfer to SVG Diamond Holdings II Limited
(“Diamond II”) and to SVG Diamond Holdings III Limited (“Diamond III”) and Key Capital SVG CLO Equity Fund (“CLO Fund”). 
SVG Capital plc is or is expected to be a significant investor in all of these funds, which are also advised by SVGA. Diamond II closed
on 22 February 2006, the CLO Fund had a first close in December 2006 and Diamond III is expected to close shortly. All funds
warehoused by SVG Capital plc that have been transferred to date have been transferred at fair value, which in most cases is simply
cost plus an interest charge.

As detailed in last year’s financial statements, the Company made six primary commitments to, and eight secondary purchases of,
private equity funds for the Diamond II warehouse. Diamond II closed on 22 February 2006 and the funds were transferred for total
consideration of 353 million, including interest of more than 31 million.

During the year, the Company transferred 382 million of original commitments to Permira Europe III (“PE III”) to P25 Limited
Partnership Incorporated (“P25”), in direct proportion to other investors in P25, who also transferred PE III interests. P25 then made 
a direct commitment of 3550 million to Permira IV (“P IV”), of which a commitment of 3262 million had been warehoused by 
SVG Capital plc on the first close of P IV. In addition, the Company also warehoused and subsequently transferred P IV commitments
of 358 million to P1234 Limited, 359 million to SVG Sapphire IV Limited and 365 million to Sapphire IV (PCC) Limited.

During the year SVGA received 31.6 million of SVG Diamond Holdings Limited Loan Notes and 30.6 million of Diamond II Loan
Notes, as part of its ongoing investment advisory fee arrangements. These Notes were purchased from SVGA by SVG Capital plc at
par value on the date of issue, as the holding of investments is the main activity of the parent company. 

In April 2006, Platinum Trust, a subsidiary of SVG Capital, distributed assets valued at £55.9 million to the Company.

There were no other dividends paid by subsidiaries during the year (2005: none).

32 Risk

Financial instruments and risk profile

The Company’s investment objective is to achieve capital appreciation by investing principally in private equity funds which are
managed or advised by Permira, a leading international private equity specialist. These investments are typically illiquid. In addition,
the Company holds money market instruments, cash and short-term deposits and various items such as debtors and creditors that
arise directly from its operations. These financial instruments held by the Company are generally liquid.

The holding of securities, investing activities and associated financing undertaken pursuant to this objective involves certain inherent
risks. Events may occur that would result in either a reduction in the Company’s net assets or a reduction of revenue profits available
for dividend.

As an investment trust, the Company invests in securities for the long term. The Company has not taken out any derivatives contracts
to date, other than the interest rate swap agreement referred to in note 18.
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32 Risk continued

Financial instruments

(a) Financial assets of the Group
Floating Fixed Non-interest

rate rate bearing Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Currency denomination of assets at 31 December 2006:

Sterling 13,680 – 46,065 59

euro 38,769 240,753 780,720 1,060,242

US dollar 2,266 – 131,041 133,307

Japanese yen – – 20,514 20,514

Canadian dollar – – 3,835 3,835

54,715 240,753 982,175 1,217,957

Floating Fixed Non-interest
rate rate bearing Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Currency denomination of assets at 31 December 2005:

Sterling 45,191 – 41,456 86,647

euro 31,553 127,315 520,164 679,032

US dollar 922 – 153,279 154,201

Japanese yen – – 30,160 30,160

Canadian dollar 25 – 4,196 4,221

77,691 127,315 749,255 954,261

Non-interest bearing assets represent the Funds and co-investments, and other short-term debtors. Floating rate financial assets
consist of short-term deposits and money market funds. Fixed rate financial assets comprise Treasury Bills, which have a known yield
to redemption. All financial assets are included at fair value.

(b) Financial liabilities of the Group

The Company issued £107.3 million of Senior Notes during the year. The Company does not have any other borrowings at the
balance sheet date, although it does have in place a loan facility of 3600 million with The Royal Bank of Scotland plc and HBOS plc. 

The main risk arising from the Company’s financial instruments is valuation risk. The Board reviews and agrees policy for managing
this risk as summarised below. This policy has remained substantially unchanged since the launch of the Company

Interest rate risk

The Company’s revenue will be affected by changes in prevailing interest rates since the majority of its income ordinarily derives from
money market instruments and bank deposit interest. It also pays interest on its Senior Notes and drawing on the loan facility that
may be taken out from time to time.

The Company’s primary objective is to achieve capital returns from its investments and, as such, the main exposure to interest rate risk
is indirect, through its impact on the valuation of the private equity funds, although it is not possible to quantify such effects. Interest
rates are one of the key determinants of economic growth. At a more specific level, interest rates also have an important role in the
ability of private equity funds to secure profitable deals, as many transactions are partly financed by debt. The effect of interest rate
changes on the valuation of investments and debt forms part of valuation risk, which is considered separately below.

At 31 December 2006, the Company held investments in money market funds valued at £47.7 million (2005: £40.7 million), earning
interest at market rates. The money market funds were redeemable on less than 24 hours notice. Other floating rate financial assets
comprised cash at bank or short-term deposits.

At 31 December 2006, the Company held investments in short-dated euro-denominated treasury bills valued at £240.8 million
(2005: £127.3 million), earning interest at a weighted average rate of 3.3%. The treasury bills had maturity dates ranging from
11 January 2007 to 1 February 2007.

At 31 December 2006, the Company had £107.3 million of Senior Notes in issue (see note 18). Interest rate risk on the Senior Notes
is mitigated as the US dollar and euro denominated Notes pay fixed rates of interest and a swap agreement has been taken out with
respect to the floating rate sterling Notes.
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32 Risk continued

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk directly since the majority of its assets and liabilities are denominated in foreign currency
and their sterling value can be significantly affected by movements in foreign exchange rates. The Company does not normally hedge
against foreign currency movements affecting the value of its investments, but takes account of this risk when making investment
decisions. However, the Company has issued Senior Notes of US$170 million and 320 million, respectively, which act as a partial
hedge against assets denominated in those currencies. The Company also has a 3600 million loan facility which, if drawn, would act
as a hedge against the currency risk on the value of its euro-denominated assets.

A sensitivity analysis has been performed on the valuations on the effect of exchange rate fluctuations on the value of shareholders’
funds, the results of which are set out in the table below.

Hypothetical
Equity Hypothetical value

shareholders’ value (10% write-
funds (10% uplift)* down)*

£ millions £ millions £ millions

31 December 2006

Equity shareholders’ funds 1,154.1 1,257.8 1,050.4

Change in valuation +9.0% -9.0%

31 December 2005

Equity shareholders’ funds 902.4 973.0 831.7

Change in valuation +7.8% -7.8%

* All investments are included in the balance sheet at fair value. Quoted companies are valued based on market prices and recently acquired unquoted investments may 
be carried at cost. For such investments, a 10% movement in the valuation basis will have a 10% impact on fair value. For unquoted investments valued on a different basis,
such as earnings-related, a 10% movement in the earnings of the investee company will not necessarily result in a 10% change in fair value, because of other factors such 
as the level of debt.

Commitment/liquidity risk

The nature of investing in buy-out and development capital funds entails making significant financial commitments, as shown 
in note 19. At 31 December 2006, the Group had significant uncalled commitments of £1,840.3 million (2005: £364.1 million),
compared to Shareholders’ funds of £1,154.1 million (2005: £903.0 million).

It is anticipated that over the longer term, and in normal circumstances, commitments would be financed by distributions received 
on the realisation of existing investments. In addition, the Group had a 3600 million loan facility at the year-end that could be 
drawn on to meet commitments as they fall due. However, a residual risk remains that the Group could be unable to meet its future
commitments in full. If as a consequence of a failure to pay a call, the Company is treated as a defaulting investor under the relevant
Fund, it will suffer a resultant dilution in interest and possibly the compulsory sale of its interest.

The Board manages liquidity risk by regularly reviewing cash flow forecasts and available funding options. Commitments to fund
investments are reviewed by the Investment Committee and approved by the Board.

Valuation/market price risk

The Company’s exposure to valuation risk comprises mainly movements in the value of its underlying investments. A breakdown 
of the Fund portfolio is given on pages 28 and 29 and a detailed analysis of the 20 largest underlying companies is given on 
pages 22 to 25. In accordance with the Company’s accounting policies, set out on pages 54 to 57, all underlying investments are
valued at fair value by the Directors in accordance with the current International Private Equity and Venture Capital (“IPEVC”)
Valuation Guidelines. The IPEVC Guidelines contain detailed methodology setting out best practice with respect to valuing unquoted
investments. It should be noted that a large proportion of the Company’s underlying investee companies are expected to be
unquoted and therefore the valuation of such companies involves exercising judgement. The Company does not hedge against
movements in the value of these investments. Uncertainty arises as a result of future changes in the valuation of the Company’s
underlying investments, the majority of which are unquoted, and the effect changes in exchange rates may have in the sterling value
of these investments. Development-stage equity investments and early-stage equity investments, by their nature, involve uncertainty
as to the ultimate value likely to be realised on the disposal of those investments, particularly as their unquoted nature means that a
ready market may not exist for them.

The Company’s sensitivity to valuation risk will be affected by changes in levels of borrowing and liquidity, as approved by the Board.
At 31 December 2006, a 10% movement in the valuation of the Group’s aggregate investments designated as fair value through
profit and loss, would result in an 8% change in shareholders’ funds.
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32 Risk continued

A sensitivity analysis has been performed on the valuations of the 20 largest underlying investee companies, which had an aggregate
valuation (before providing for carried interest) of £836.9 million or 80.2% of the gross private equity portfolio valuation 
(2005: £550.2 million or 81.5%), the results of which are set out in the table below.

Hypothetical
Hypothetical fair value

fair value (10% write-
Fair value (10% uplift)* down)*

£ millions £ millions £ millions

31 December 2006

Valuation of 20 largest investee companies 836.9 972.6 691.4

Change in valuation +16.2% -17.4%

31 December 2005

Valuation of 20 largest investee companies 550.2 633.4 466.5

Change in valuation +15.5% -15.2%

* All investments are included in the balance sheet at fair value. Quoted companies are valued based on market prices and recently acquired unquoted investments may 
be carried at cost. For such investments, a 10% movement in the valuation basis will have a 10% impact on fair value. For unquoted investments valued on a different basis,
such as earnings-related, a 10% movement in the earnings of the investee company will not necessarily result in a 10% change in fair value, because of other factors such 
as the level of debt.

The Board manages valuation risk by reviewing and approving the valuation of the private equity fund portfolio.

Holdings risk

In certain circumstances, the Company may wish to transfer its holdings in particular funds. In a majority of the funds in which the
Company will invest, the general partner, trustee or manager has the ultimate right, similar to that exercisable by a board of a private
company, to refuse to register the transfer of an interest. While the Company has no reason to believe that any request for the transfer
of an interest would be refused, it is of course conceivable that the general partner’s, trustee’s or manager’s overriding fiduciary duty
could result in its refusing to register a particular transfer proposed by the Company.

Concentration risk

The Directors believe that the diversified nature of the underlying investments in the Company’s private equity fund portfolio reduces
the risks normally associated with making investments in the buy-out and development capital markets. However, it should be noted
that, in accordance with its stated investment objective, the Company intends to focus its investments principally in private equity
funds that are managed or advised by Permira. As outlined in note 8, the future performance of the Company will therefore be largely
dependent on the future performance of the Permira Funds in which we invest (see notes 19 and 33 for an indication of the
Company’s exposures). The Directors believe that this represents an opportunity, but investors should also be aware that greater
concentration of the investment portfolio also presents a risk.

33 Ten largest fund investments (by value)
2006 2005

Manager/Adviser £’000 £’000

Permira Europe II Permira 215,260 253,687

Permira Europe III Permira 237,843 159,564

Permira IV Permira 119,423 –

P123 SVGA 63,894 80,762

Schroder Ventures Asia Pacific Fund Symphony Capital Partners 56,284 45,343

P1234 SVGA 36,723 –

P25 SVGA 32,938 –

SV Investments Fund I SV Investment Partners 24,983 21,676

SV Life Sciences Fund III SV Life Sciences Advisers 22,600 19,787

The Japan Fund IV MKS Consulting 20,484 29,519

830,432 658,491
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The Company

SVG Capital plc carries on business as an investment trust and it is listed on the London Stock Exchange.

Investment trust companies are able to switch investments without liability for capital gains tax. This, together with the advantages 
of professional management and spread of risk, makes investment trusts a valuable investment medium.

In order to obtain exemption from capital gains tax the Company conducts itself with a view to continuing as an approved
investment trust for the purposes of Section 842 of the United Kingdom Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 (as amended). 
The Company is not a close company for taxation purposes.

Information for shareholders

The Company’s shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange. The stock exchange code for the shares is SVI. The price of the
shares is quoted daily in the Financial Times, The Daily Telegraph and The Times.

Real time share information for the shares is available on the FT Cityline by dialing: 0906 843 1432. Calls are charged at 60p per
minute at all times.

The net asset value is calculated at 30 June and 31 December each year following an extensive valuation procedure. Due to the
nature of the Company’s investments, it is not practical to publish the net asset value on a more frequent basis.

A factsheet containing information including the diversification of the portfolio and the Company’s largest investments is published
quarterly and is available on request from the Company Secretary.

Capital gains tax information

For the 2006/2007 tax year, the annual capital gains (after adjusting for indexation and taper relief) of private individuals in excess of
£8,800 (2005/2006: £8,500) are assessed for capital gains tax.

Capital gains on shares disposed of by individuals may be eligible for taper relief. The taper reduces the amount of a chargeable gain
according to how long the asset has been held for periods after 5 April 1998.

Where shares were acquired before 6 April 1998, the capital gain will also be reduced by indexation allowance for the period up to
April 1998, but not thereafter.

For the benefit of those shareholders who acquired their holdings in exchange for their interests in Schroder Ventures’ funds, the
acquisition cost of the shares for capital gains tax purposes based upon initial dealings on 23 May 1996 was as follows:

Each ordinary share of £1.00: £1.915

Schroder investment trust dealing service

The Schroder investment trust dealing service provides a convenient and cost effective means of investing in the ordinary shares of 
the Company. The service offers investors:

• a regular investment option from a minimum of £50 per month;

• a lump sum investment option from a minimum of £1,000; 

• daily dealing; 

• competitive charges; 

• the option to reinvest income.

Other investment trusts that are available through this service are Schroder AsiaPacific Fund plc, Schroder Income Growth Fund plc,
Schroder Japan Growth Fund plc, Schroder Split Investment Fund plc, Schroder Split ZDP plc, Schroder UK Growth Fund plc,
Schroder UK Mid & Small Cap Fund plc and International Biotechnology Trust plc. If you would like further information on the
Schroder investment trust dealing service, please contact the Secretary of the Company at 31 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7QA 
or call Lloyds TSB on 0870 601 5366.

Individual Savings Account – Schroder maxi ISA plan

The Schroder ISA offers investors:

• lump sum investments in the ordinary shares of the Company from a minimum of £1,000 to a maximum of £7,000 in the current
tax year;

• a regular investment option from a minimum of £50 per month;

• competitive charges;

• the option to reinvest income;

• the option to include other trusts.

If you would like further information about the Schroder maxi ISA, please contact the Secretary of the Company at 
31 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7QA or call Schroder Investor Services on freephone 0800 718 777.
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Registrar services

Communications with shareholders are mailed to the address held on the share register. Any notifications and enquiries relating to
registered share holdings, including a change of address or other amendment should be directed to Lloyds TSB Registrars Scotland 
at PO Box 28448, Finance House, Orchard Brae, Edinburgh EH4 1WQ. The helpline telephone number of Lloyds TSB Registrars is
0870 601 5366.

Lloyds TSB Registrars Scotland maintain a web-based enquiry service for shareholders. Currently the ‘Shareview’ site (address below)
contains information available on public registers. Shareholders will be invited to enter their name, shareholder reference (account
number) and post code and will be able to view information on their own holding.

Visit www.shareview.co.uk for more details.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

This notice of meeting contains important information and requires your attention. If you are in any doubt as to what action to take
you should consult with an appropriate adviser.

NOTICE is hereby given that the eleventh Annual General Meeting of SVG Capital plc will be held at 12.00 noon on Thursday, 
10 May 2007 at 111 Strand, London WC2R 0AG, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions, of which 
resolutions 1 to 9 and 12 and 13 will be proposed as Ordinary Resolutions and resolutions 10, 11, 14 and 15 will be proposed 
as Special Resolutions:

1. To receive the Report of the Directors and the audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2006.

2. To approve a final dividend of 7.5p per share for the year ended 31 December 2006.

3. To approve the Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2006.

4. To elect Gary Steinberg as a Director of the Company.

5. To re-elect Charles Sinclair as a Director of the Company.

6. To re-elect Anthony Habgood as a Director of the Company.

7. To re-elect Edgar Koning as a Director of the Company.

8. To re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

9. That, in substitution for the authority granted at the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 24 April 2006, the Board be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised to exercise all powers of the Company to allot relevant securities (within
the meaning of Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985): (a) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,388,137 (equivalent to
1% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 5 April 2007) in connection with the SVG Capital plc Executive
Share Option Plan 2001 and the proposed SVG Capital 2007 Performance Share Plan; and (b) up to an aggregate nominal
amount of £46,271,264 (equivalent to one-third of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 5 April 2007), which
authority shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company after the passing of this resolution
(unless previously revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting) save that the Company may before such expiry make
an offer or agreement which would or might require relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Board may allot
relevant securities in pursuance of such an offer or agreement as if the authority conferred hereby had not expired.

10. That, in substitution for the authority granted at the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 24 April 2006, the Board be
and is hereby empowered, pursuant to Section 95 of the Companies Act 1985, to allot equity securities (within the meaning of
Section 94 of the said Act) for cash, pursuant to the authority conferred by resolution 9 above, as if sub-section (1) of Section 89
of the said Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be limited to: (a) the allotment of equity
securities up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,388,137 (equivalent to 1% of the issued ordinary share capital of the
Company as at 5 April 2007) in connection with the SVG Capital plc Executive Share Option Plan 2001 and the proposed SVG
Capital 2007 Performance Share Plan; (b) the allotment of equity securities in connection with a rights issue, open offer or any
other pre-emptive offer in favour of ordinary shareholders where the equity securities respectively attributable to the interests of
ordinary shareholders on a fixed record date are proportionate (as nearly as may be) to the respective numbers of ordinary shares
held by them (subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Board may deem necessary or expedient to deal with
fractional entitlements or legal or practical problems arising in any overseas territory, the requirements of any regulatory body or
stock exchange or any other matter whatsoever); and (c) the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraphs (a) and (b)
above) of equity securities up to an aggregate nominal amount of £13,881,379 (equivalent to 10% of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company as at 5 April 2007), and shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company after the passing of this resolution, save that the Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which
would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Board may allot equity securities in pursuance 
of such an offer or agreement as if the power conferred hereby had not expired.

11. That the Company be and is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised in accordance with Section 166 of the Companies
Act 1985 to make market purchases (within the meaning of Section 163 of the said Act) of ordinary shares of £1.00 each in the
capital of the Company (“Shares”), provided that:

(a) the maximum number of Shares hereby authorised to be purchased shall be 20,808,187 (equivalent to 14.99% of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company as at 5 April 2007); 

(b) the minimum price which may be paid for a Share is £1.00; 

(c) the maximum price which may be paid for a Share is an amount equal to the greater of (i) 105% of the average of the
middle market quotations for a Share taken from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days
immediately preceding the day on which the Share is purchased and (ii) the higher of the price of the last independent 
trade in the shares of that class and the highest then current independent bid for the shares of that class on the London
Stock Exchange; 

(d) purchases may only be made pursuant to this authority if the Shares are (at the date of the proposed purchase) trading on
the London Stock Exchange at a discount to the net asset value; 

(e) the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company after 
the passing of this resolution unless such authority is renewed prior to such time; and

(f) the Company may make a contract to purchase Shares under the authority hereby conferred prior to the expiry of such
authority which will or may be executed wholly or partly after the expiration of such authority and may make a purchase 
of Shares pursuant to any such contract.



82

SVG
 C

apital plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2006

C
om

pany inform
ation

Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

12. That the rules of the SVG Capital 2007 Performance Share Plan (the “Plan”) referred to in Schedule 1 of Part II of the circular to
shareholders dated 5 April 2007 and produced in draft to this meeting and, for the purposes of identification, initialled by the
Chairman, be approved and the Directors be authorised to:

(a) make such modifications to the Plan as they may consider appropriate to take account of the requirements of best practice
and for the implementation of the Plan and to adopt the Plan as so modified and to do all such other acts and things as 
they may consider appropriate to implement the Plan; and

(b) establish further plans based on the Plan but modified to take account of local tax, exchange control or securities laws in
overseas territories, provided that any shares made available under such further plans are treated as counting against the
limits on individual or overall participation in the Plan.

13. That the rules of the SVG Capital Share Incentive Plan (the “SIP”) referred to in Schedule 2 of Part II of the circular to shareholders
dated 5 April 2007 and produced in draft to this meeting and, for the purposes of identification, initialled by the Chairman, be
approved and the Directors be authorised to:

(a) make such modifications to the SIP as they may consider appropriate to take account of the requirements of HMRC and 
best practice and for the implementation of the SIP and to adopt the SIP as so modified and to do all such other acts and
things as they may consider appropriate to implement the SIP; and

(b) establish further plans based on the SIP but modified to take account of local tax, exchange control or securities laws in
overseas territories, provided that any shares made available under such further plans are treated as counting against the
limits on individual or overall participation in the SIP.

14. That the investment objective of the Company be changed as set out in Chairman’s statement of the 2006 Annual Report &
Accounts and the Chairman’s letter in the Circular to Shareholders dated 5 April 2007.

15. (a) That Article 1(E) of the Company’s Articles of Association be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following new
Article 1(E):

“Number of directors

1. (E) Unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution of the company, the directors (disregarding alternate directors) 
shall be not less than two nor more than twelve in number.”

(b) That Article 1(I) of the Company’s Articles of Association be deleted in its entirety and the remainder of the Articles be
renumbered accordingly.

(c) That Article 1(K) (to be renumbered Article 1(J) pursuant to paragraph (b) above) of the Company’s Articles of Association 
be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following new Article 1(J):

“Compulsory transfer of shares

1. (J) If it shall come to the notice of the directors that any share or shares:-

(i) are or may be owned or held directly or beneficially by any person or persons whose ownership or holding or continued
ownership or holding of those shares (whether on its own or in conjunction with any other circumstance appearing to 
the directors to be relevant) might in the sole and conclusive determination of the directors cause a pecuniary or tax
disadvantage to the company or any other holder of shares or other securities of the company; or

(ii) are or may be owned or held directly or beneficially such that any United States Person who is a holder or beneficial
owner of shares or other securities of the company, including bonds (other than certain short-term securities) and who
acquired securities of the company from the company or its agents or affiliates (“direct purchasers”) or any United States
resident transferee of any direct purchaser (“Private Offering Holders” is not a “qualified purchaser” as defined in 
Section 2(a)(51) of the Investment Company Act and related rules; or

(iii) are or may be owned or held directly or beneficially by any person to whom a transfer of shares or whose ownership 
or holding of any shares might in the opinion of the directors require registration of the company as an investment
company under the Investment Company Act,

the directors may, and:-

(iv) if it shall come to the notice of the directors that any share or shares are or may be owned or held directly or beneficially
by any person who is a pension or other benefit plan subject to Title I of the United States Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”) and in the opinion of the directors the assets of the company may be
considered “plan assets” within the meaning of regulations adopted under ERISA the directors shall be required to, 

serve a notice (hereinafter called a “Transfer Notice”) upon the person (or any one of such persons where shares are registered 
in joint names) appearing in the register as the holder (the “Vendor”) of the share, shares or any of the shares concerned (the
“Relevant Shares”) requiring the Vendor within 21 days (or such extended time as in all the circumstances the directors shall 
consider reasonable) to transfer (and/or procure the disposal of interests in) the Relevant Shares to another person who, in the 
sole and conclusive determination of the directors, would not fall within (i), (ii), (iii) or (iv) above (such a person being 
hereinafter called an “Eligible Transferee”). On and after the date of such Transfer Notice, and until registration of a transfer of 
the Relevant Shares to which it relates pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph or the following paragraph, the rights and 
privileges attaching to the Relevant Shares shall be suspended and not capable of exercise.
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If within 21 days after the giving of a Transfer Notice (or such extended time as in all the circumstances the directors shall
consider reasonable) the Transfer Notice has not been complied with to the satisfaction of the directors, the company may sell
the Relevant Shares on behalf of the holder or holders thereof by instructing a member of the London Stock Exchange to sell
them in accordance with the best practice then obtaining to any Eligible Transferee or Eligible Transferees. For this purpose the
directors may authorise in writing any officer or employee of the company to execute on behalf of the holder or holders of the
Relevant Shares a transfer of the Relevant Shares to the purchaser or purchasers and an instrument of transfer executed by
that person will be as effective as if it had been executed by the holder of, or the person entitled by transmission to, the
Relevant Shares. The purchaser will not be bound to see to the application of the purchase moneys nor will his title to the
Relevant Shares be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings relating to the sale. The net proceeds of the sale
of the Relevant Shares shall be received by the company, whose receipt shall be a good discharge for the purchase moneys,
and will belong to the company and, upon their receipt, the company will become indebted to the former holder of, or person
entitled by transmission to, the Relevant Shares for an amount equal to the net proceeds of transfer upon surrender by him or
them of the certificate for the Relevant Shares which the Vendor shall forthwith be obliged to deliver to the company. No trust
will be created in respect of the debt and no interest will be payable in respect of it and the company will not be required to
account for any moneys earned from the net proceeds of transfer which may be employed in the business of the company or
as it thinks fit. The company may register the transferee or transferees as holder or holders of the Relevant Shares and issue to
him or them a certificate for the same and thereupon the transferee or transferees shall become absolutely entitled thereto.

A person who becomes aware that his holding, directly or beneficially, of shares will, or is likely to, fall within any of 
sub-paragraphs (i), (ii), (iii) or (iv) above shall forthwith, unless he has already received a Transfer Notice in accordance with
the foregoing, either transfer the shares to an Eligible Transferee or Eligible Transferees or give a request in writing to the
directors for the issue of a Transfer Notice in accordance with the foregoing. Every such request shall be accompanied by the
certificate or certificates for the shares to which it relates.

Subject to the provisions of these Articles, the directors shall, unless any director has reason to believe otherwise, be entitled to
assume without enquiry that none of the shares are held in such a way as to entitle or require the directors to serve a Transfer
Notice in respect thereof. The directors may, however, at any time and from time to time call upon any holder (or any one of
joint holders) of shares by notice in writing to provide such information and evidence as they shall require upon any matter
connected with or in relation to such holder of shares. In the event of such information and evidence not being so provided
within such reasonable period (not being less than 21 days after service of the notice requiring the same) as may be specified
by the directors in the said notice, the directors may, in their absolute discretion, treat any share held by such a holder or joint
holder as being held in such a way as to entitle or require them to serve a Transfer Notice in respect thereof.

The directors shall not be required to give any reasons for any decision, determination or declaration taken or made in
accordance with these provisions. The exercise of the powers conferred by the foregoing shall not be questioned or invalidated
in any case on the ground that there was insufficient evidence of direct or beneficial ownership or holding of shares by any
person or that the true direct or beneficial owner or holder of any shares was otherwise than as appeared to the directors at
the relevant date provided that the said powers shall have been exercised in good faith.”

(d) That Article 1(M) of the Company’s Articles of Association be deleted in its entirety.

(e) That Article 3 of the Company’s Articles of Association be amended:

(i) by the addition of the following definitions:

““communication” includes a communication comprising sound or images or both;”

““electronic signature” means anything in electronic form which the board requires to be incorporated into or otherwise
associated with a communication in electronic form for the purpose of establishing the authenticity or integrity of the
communication;” and

“references to a document being signed or to signature include references to its being executed under hand or under 
seal or by any other method and, in the case of a communication in electronic form, such references are to its bearing 
an electronic signature;”

(ii) by the deletion in its entirety of the phrase starting “references to a document being executed“ and its replacement with
the following:

“references to a document being executed include references to its being executed under hand or under seal or by any other
method and, in the case of a communication in electronic form, such references are to its bearing an electronic signature”; and

(iii) by the deletion in its entirety of the phrase starting “references to writing…” and its replacement with the following:

“references to writing include references to any method of representing or reproducing words in a legible and non-transitory
form, including in electronic form where either permitted by the board in its absolute discretion, subject to such terms and
conditions as the board may in its absolute discretion decide, or where, pursuant to the Companies Acts, the company is
deemed to have agreed (generally or specifically) that such documents or information may be sent or supplied in that form;”.

(f) That Article 74 of the Company’s Articles of Association be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following 
new Article 74:

“74.(A) Proxy forms which are not sent by electronic means must be received at the office, or at any other place in the United
Kingdom stated in or by way of note to the notice of meeting or adjourned meeting or in any accompanying document,
at least:-

(i) 48 hours (or such shorter time as the directors decide) before a meeting or an adjourned meeting; or

(ii) 24 hours (or such shorter time as the directors decide) before a poll is taken, if the poll is not taken on the same 
day as the meeting or adjourned meeting.

If such a proxy form is signed by an attorney and the directors require this, the power of attorney or other authority relied
on to sign it (or a copy which has been certified by a notary or in some other way approved by the directors, or an office
copy) must be received with the proxy form.

(B) Proxy forms which are sent by electronic means, where either an address has been specified for the purpose of receiving
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proxy forms by electronic means in or by way of note to the notice of meeting or adjourned meeting or in any
accompanying document or in any communication issued by or on behalf of the company or the Companies Acts treats
the company as having agreed to receive proxy forms for that meeting by electronic means at an address, must be
received at that address at least:-

(i) 48 hours (or such shorter time as the directors decide) before a meeting or an adjourned meeting; or

(ii) 24 hours (or such shorter time as the directors decide) before a poll is taken, if the poll is not taken on the same day
as the meeting or adjourned meeting.

If such a proxy form is signed by an attorney and the directors require this, the power of attorney or other authority relied
on to sign it (or a copy which has been certified by a notary or in some other way approved by the directors, or an office
copy) must be received at the office, or at any other place stated in the notice of meeting or adjourned meeting or in any
accompanying document for the purpose or at an electronic address at which the Companies Acts treats the company 
as having agreed to accept the receipt of such documents for that meeting, at least 48 hours (or such shorter time as the
directors decide) before a meeting or an adjourned meeting or 24 hours (or such shorter time as the directors decide)
before a poll is taken if the poll is not taken on the same day as the meeting or adjourned meeting.

(C) If the above requirements are not complied with, the proxy will not be able to act for the person who appointed him.

(D) If more than one valid proxy form is received in respect of the same share for use at the same meeting or poll, the one
which is received last (regardless of its date or the date on which it is signed) will be treated as the valid form. If it is not
possible to determine the order of receipt, none of the forms will be treated as valid.

(E) A shareholder can attend and vote at a general meeting or on a poll even if he has appointed a proxy to attend and, on a
poll, vote on his behalf at that meeting or on that poll.

(F) The proceedings at a general meeting will not be invalidated where an appointment of a proxy in respect of that meeting
is delivered in a manner permitted by these articles by electronic means, but because of a technical problem it cannot be
read by the recipient.”

(g) That Article 77 of the Company’s Articles of Association be amended by the addition of ”, or at any electronic address to which
the company is deemed, pursuant to the Companies Acts, to have agreed that any such notice for the meeting may be sent by
electronic means” inside the brackets following “(or such other place in the United Kingdom as was specified for the delivery of
instruments of proxy in the notice convening the meeting or other accompanying document”.

(h) That Article 105 of the Company’s Articles of Association be amended by the deletion of “provided that a majority 
of the directors voting in favour must be independent of Schroder Ventures and the Schroder Group”.

(i) That Articles 129 to 134 (inclusive) be deleted in their entirety and replaced by the following new Articles 129 to 
134 (inclusive):

“Service of notices

129. (A) Any notice, document (including a share certificate) or information may be served on or sent or delivered to any member
by the company:-

(i) personally;

(ii) by sending it through the post addressed to the member at his registered address or by leaving it at that address
addressed to the member;

(iii) by means of a relevant system; 

(iv) where appropriate, by sending it by electronic means to an address notified by the member concerned to the
company for that purpose (either generally or specifically);

(v) where appropriate, by making such notice, document or information available on a web site, in accordance with the
Companies Acts; or

(vi) by any other means authorised in writing by the member concerned.

In the case of joint holders of a share, service, sending or delivery of any notice, document or information on or to one of
the joint holders shall for all purposes be deemed a sufficient service on or sending or delivery to all the joint holders.

(B) In the case of joint holders of a share, anything to be agreed or specified by the holder in relation to any notice, document
or information to be sent by the company to its members may be agreed or specified by one only of the joint holders.

(C) If on three consecutive occasions any notice, document or information sent or supplied to a member by post has been
returned undelivered, such member shall not thereafter be entitled to receive notices, documents or information from 
the company until he shall have communicated with the company and supplied to the company (or its agent) a new
registered address, or a postal address within the United Kingdom for the service of notices, or shall have informed the
company, in such manner as may be specified by the company, of an address for the service of notices by electronic
means. For these purposes, a notice sent by post shall be treated as returned undelivered if the notice is sent back to 
the company (or its agents).

(D) If the company (or its agents) receives notification that any notice, document or information sent by electronic means to a
shareholder was not delivered to the address to which it was sent, the company shall follow the current relevant guidance
issued by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. 
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130. Any notice, other document or other information may be served or delivered by the company by reference to the register as 
it stands at any time not more than 15 days before the date of service or delivery. No change in the register after that time
shall invalidate that service or delivery. Where any notice, other document or other information is served on or delivered to 
any person in respect of a share in accordance with these articles, no person deriving any title or interest in that share shall 
be entitled to any further service or delivery of that notice, document or other information.

Members resident abroad 

131. Any member whose registered address is not within the United Kingdom and who gives to the company a postal address
within the United Kingdom at which notices, documents or other information may be served upon him shall be entitled to
have notices, documents or other information served upon him at that address and any notice, document or other information
posted to such address shall be deemed to have been received by that member seven London business days following posting
of the relevant notice, document or other information. Any member whose registered address is not within the United Kingdom
and who gives to the company an address for the purposes of communications by electronic means may, at the absolute
discretion of the board, have notices, documents or information sent to him at that address. Otherwise, a member whose
registered address is not within the United Kingdom shall not be entitled to receive any notice, document or information from
the company

Service of notice on person entitled by transmission

132. A person who is entitled by transmission to a share, upon supplying the company with a postal address within the United
Kingdom for the service of notices shall be entitled to have served upon or delivered to him at such address any notice,
document or information to which he would have been entitled if he were the holder of that share. A person who is entitled
by transmission to a share, upon supplying the company with an address for the purposes of communications by electronic
means for the service of notices may, at the absolute discretion of the board, have sent to him at such address any notice,
document or information to which he would have been entitled if he were the holder of that share. In either case, such 
service, sending or delivery shall for all purposes be deemed a sufficient service, sending or delivery of such notice, document 
or information on all persons interested (whether jointly with or as claimants through or under him) in the share. Otherwise,
any notice, document or information served on or sent or delivered to any member pursuant to these articles shall,
notwithstanding that the member is then dead or bankrupt or that any other event giving rise to the transmission of the share
by operation of law has occurred and whether or not the company has notice of the death, bankruptcy or other event, be
deemed to have been properly served, sent or delivered in respect of any share registered in the name of that member as sole
or joint holder.

When notice deemed served

133. Any notice, document or information, if sent by the company by post, shall be deemed to have been served or delivered on 
the day following that on which it was put in the post and, in proving service or delivery, it shall be sufficient to prove that the
notice, document or information was properly addressed, prepaid and put in the post. Any notice, document or information
not sent by post but left by the company at a registered address or at an address (other than an address for the purposes of
communications by electronic means) notified to the company in accordance with these articles by a person who is entitled 
by transmission to a share shall be deemed to have been served or delivered on the day it was so left. Any notice, document 
or information served or delivered by the company by means of a relevant system shall be deemed to have been served or
delivered when the company or any sponsoring system-participant acting on its behalf sends the issuer-instruction relating 
to the notice, document or information. Any notice, document or information sent by the company by electronic means shall
be deemed to have been received on the day on which it was sent. Any notice, document or information made available on
the company’s website or websites in accordance with the Companies Acts shall be deemed to have been received on the day
on which a notice of availability of such notice, document or information is deemed to have been served or delivered pursuant
to this article. Proof that the notice, document or information sent by electronic means was given or sent in accordance with
current guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators shall be conclusive evidence that the
notice, document or information was given or sent. Any notice, document or information served, sent or delivered by the
company by any other means authorised in writing by the member concerned shall be deemed to have been served, received
or delivered when the company has carried out the action it has been authorised to take for that purpose.

Notice when post not available 

134. If at any time by reason of the suspension or curtailment of postal services within the United Kingdom or some part of the
United Kingdom or of the relevant system for communications by electronic means the company is unable effectively to
convene a general meeting by notice sent through the post or by electronic means, notice of the general meeting may be
given to members affected by the suspension or curtailment by a notice advertised in at least one newspaper with a national
circulation. Notice published in this way shall be deemed to have been properly served on all affected members who are
entitled to have notice of the meeting served upon them, on the day when the advertisement has appeared in at least one
such paper. If at least six clear days prior to the meeting the sending of notices by post or by electronic means has again
become generally possible, the company shall send confirmatory copies of the notice by post or by electronic means to the
persons entitled to receive them.”

Registered office
31 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7QA

By Order of the Board
Schroder Investment Management Limited
Company Secretary

5 April 2007
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Explanatory notes and additional information

1. A copy of the draft rules of the SVG Capital 2007 Performance Share Plan and the SVG Capital Share Incentive Plan will be
available for inspection at the registered office of the Company, 31 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7QA and at the offices of New
Bridge Street Consultants LLP at 20 Little Britain, London EC1A 7DH during normal business hours on any weekday (Saturdays
and English public holidays excepted) until the close of the Annual General Meeting and at the place of the Annual General
Meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to and during the Annual General Meeting.

2. The proposed amendments to be made pursuant to Resolution 15 are described more fully in the circular to shareholders
dated 5 April 2007. In addition, a blacklined version of the Company’s Articles of Association showing the proposed changes 
will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company, 31 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7QA during normal
business hours on any weekday (Saturdays and English public holidays excluded) until the close of the Annual General Meeting
and at the place of the Annual General Meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to and during the Annual General Meeting.

3. An ordinary shareholder is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting and is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend
and, on a poll, vote instead of him.

4. Pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, the Company has specified that only those
Shareholders registered in the Register of members of the Company at 6.00 p.m. on 8 May 2007 shall be entitled to attend 
and vote at the meeting in respect of the number of Shares registered in their name at that time. Changes to the Register of
members after 6.00 p.m. on 8 May 2007 shall be disregarded in determining the right of any person to attend and vote at 
the meeting.

5. A proxy need not be a member. A form of proxy is enclosed for members which should be completed and returned to the
Company’s registrar, Lloyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BN99 6ZR not later than 48 hours before 
the time fixed for the meeting. Completion of the proxy will not preclude a member from attending and voting in person.

6. As at 5 April 2007, 138,813,795 ordinary shares of £1.00 each were in issue, of which none was held as a treasury share.
Accordingly, the total number of voting rights of the Company as at 5 April 2007 was 138,813,795.

7. Copies of the terms of appointment of the non-executive Directors and, in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 1985, a statement of all transactions of each Director and of his family interests in the shares of the Company, will be
available for inspection by any member of the Company at the registered office of the Company, 31 Gresham Street, London
EC2V 7QA, during normal business hours on any weekday (public holidays excepted) and by any person attending the Annual
General Meeting, during the continuance of the Meeting. None of the Directors have a contract of service with the Company.

8. Profiles of each of the persons offering themselves for election or re-election as Directors are on pages 30 and 31 of the annual
report and accounts of SVG Capital plc for the year ended 31 December 2006 accompanying this document.

9. New Bridge Street Consultants LLP has given and not withdrawn its consent to the inclusion of its name in the form and context
in which it appears.

10. CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do 
so for the Annual General Meeting and any adjournment(s) thereof by using the procedures described in the CREST Manual.
CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting services
provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action 
on their behalf.

In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message 
(a “CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in accordance with CRESTCo’s specifications and must contain the
information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message, regardless of whether it constitutes
the appointment of a proxy or an amendment to the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy must, in order to be
valid, be transmitted so as to be received by the issuer’s agent (ID 7RA01) by the latest time for receipt of proxy appointments
specified above. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the time stamp applied to
the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the issuer’s agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST
in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time any change of instructions to proxies appointed through CREST should be
communicated to the appointee through other means.

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers should note that CRESTCo does not
make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages. Normal system timings and limitations will therefore
apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or, 
if the CREST member is a CREST member or sponsored member or has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure that 
his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted
by means of the CREST system by any particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST
sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical
limitations of the CREST system and timings.

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001.
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Advisers

Directors

Nicholas Ferguson (Chairman) 
Damon Buffini 
Francis Finlay 
Anthony Habgood 
Edgar Koning 
Denis Raeburn 
Charles Sinclair 
Gary Steinberg (appointed 15 March 2007)
Andrew Williams (Executive)

Head office

111 Strand 
London WC2R 0AG 
Telephone 020 7010 8900
Fax 020 7240 5346

www.svgcapital.com

Secretary and registered office

Schroder Investment Management Limited 
31 Gresham Street 
London EC2V 7QA 
Telephone 020 7658 3206

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP 
1 More London Place 
London SE1 2AF

Bankers

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc 
Corporate Banking Office 
5–10 Great Tower Street 
London EC3P 3HX

Bank of Scotland 
Level 7 
Bishopsgate Building 
155 Bishopsgate 
London EC2M 3YB

Registrar for ordinary shares 

Lloyds TSB Registrars Scotland 
PO Box 28448 
Finance House 
Orchard Brae 
Edinburgh EH4 1WQ
Telephone 0870 601 5366

website www.shareview.co.uk

Solicitors

Slaughter and May 
One Bunhill Row 
London EC1Y 8YY

Stockbrokers

UBS 
1 Finsbury Avenue
London EC2M 2PP

Information for shareholders

Financial calendar

31 December Company’s year-end

March Preliminary results for the financial year announced

April Annual Report published

May Annual General Meeting

September Interim Results announced 

October Interim Results published

Analysis of register of shareholders
Shares

%

At 31 December 2006

% of issued shares held by:

Banks and Nominee Companies* 69.6

Pension Funds and Insurance Companies 16.6

Private individuals 1.2

Other Institutions 12.6

100

Total number of registered holders 916

* Some of the nominee company holdings include a large number of private individuals.
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Glossary

Early-stage

Seed:

• Financing provided to allow a business concept to be
developed, perhaps involving production of prototypes and
additional research, prior to bringing a product to market.

Start-up:

• Financing provided to companies for the use in product
development and initial marketing. Companies may be in the
process of being set up or may have been in business for a short
time, but have not sold their product commercially.

Other early-stage:

• Financing provided to companies that have completed the
product development stage and require further funds to initiate
commercial manufacturing and sales. They will not yet be
generating profit.

Late-stage

Expansion financing:

• Capital provided for the growth and expansion of a company
which is breaking even or even trading profitably. Funds may 
be used to finance increased production capacity, market or
product development and/or provide additional working 
capital. Capital provided for turnaround situations is also
included in this category.

Management Buy-Out (MBO):

• Funds provided to enable current operating management and
investors to acquire an existing business.

Management Buy-In (MBI):

• Funds provided to enable a manager or group of managers
from outside the company to buy into the company.

Follow-on investment

A company which has previously received private equity.

Secondary purchase

Purchase of existing shares in a company from another private
equity firm, or from other shareholders.

Public to private

Purchase of the share capital of a company quoted on a stock
exchange with the intention of de-listing the company and taking 
it private.

General Terms

Carried interest (“carry”)

Carried interest or simply ‘carry’ represents the share of a 
private equity fund’s profit (usually 20%) that will accrue to the
general partners.

Committed funds (or “raised funds” or “committed capital”)
Capital committed by investors. This will be requested or ‘drawn
down’ by private equity managers on a deal-by-deal basis. 
This amount is different from invested funds for two reasons.
Firstly, most partnerships will invest only between 80% and 
95% of committed funds. Second, one has to deduct the 
annual management fee which is supposed to cover the 
cost of operation of a fund.

Distributions

Payments to investors after the realisation of investments of 
the partnership.

Divestments (or realisations or exits)

Exits of investments, usually via a trade sale or an IPO (Initial
Public Offering) on a stock market.

Draw downs

Payments to the partnership by investors in order to finance
investments. Funds are drawn down from investors on a
deal-by-deal basis.

Fund of funds

Private equity funds whose principal activity consists of investing
in other private equity funds. Investors in funds of funds can
thereby increase their level of diversification.

Gearing, debt/equity ratio or leverage the level of a company’s
borrowings as a percentage of shareholder funds.

Hurdle rate

Arrangement that caps the downside risk for investors. 
It allows investors to get preferential access to the profits of the
partnership. In the absence of reaching the hurdle return, general
partners will not receive a share of the profit (carried interest). 
A hurdle rate of 10% means that the private equity fund needs 
to achieve a return of at least 10% before the profits are shared
according to the carried interest arrangement.

Limited partnership

Most private equity firms structure their funds as limited
partnerships. Investors represent the limited partners and 
private equity managers the general partners.

Realisation

The sale of an investment.

Secondary market

The secondary market enables institutional investors to sell their
stakes in a private equity partnership before it is wound up.

Trade sale

Sale of the equity share of an investee company to another
company.

Turnaround

A loss making company which can be successfully transformed
into a profit maker.

Further information on our website

www.svgcapital.com
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